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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. David Shou-Yeh Wong

Chairman

Mr. Wong, aged 79, was appointed as the Chairman of the Bank in
1983. He is also the Chairman of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited
(“DSFH”), Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”), Banco Comercial
de Macau, S.A., Dah Sing Insurance Company (1976) Limited, Macau
Insurance Company Limited and various other companies. He serves
as a member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of
the Bank, DSFH and DSBG. Mr. Wong is the Honorary President of
Guangdong Chamber of Foreign Investors and a Vice President of
The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers. He holds a Bachelor of Science
degree in Electrical Engineering from Massachusetts Institute of
Technology and has over 55 years of experience in banking and
finance. He is the father of Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong, a Vice
Chairman, the Managing Director and Chief Executive of the Bank.

Mr. Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
Vice Chairman

Mr. Wong, aged 67, joined the Bank in 1977 and has served and
managed various departments before appointed as a Director in 1989,
promoted to a Managing Director in 2000 and then appointed as Vice
Chairman in April 2011. He is the Vice Chairman, Managing Director
and Chief Executive of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited, the Managing
Director and Chief Executive of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited,
Chairman of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited and a director of various
major subsidiaries of the Group. He is also a Non-Executive Director
and Vice Chairman of Bank of Chongqging Co., Ltd. (listed in Hong
Kong) in which the Group has a 14.66% equity interest. Mr. Wong is
an Associate of The Institute of Bankers (U.K.) and a Founder Member
of The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers and The International Retail
Banking Council of the U.K. He holds a Higher Diploma in Business
Studies from the Hong Kong Polytechnic College (now known as Hong
Kong Polytechnic University) and has over 40 years of experience in
banking.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
Vice Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive

Mr. Wong, aged 50, is currently a Vice Chairman and the Managing
Director and Chief Executive of the Bank. He joined the Bank in
2000, and was appointed as an Executive Director in 2005 and a Vice
Chairman in March 2010. Mr. Wong was appointed as the Managing
Director and Chief Executive of the Bank in August 2017. He is also
a Director of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited, Banco Comercial de
Macau, S.A., Dah Sing Insurance Company (1976) Limited and Macau
Insurance Company Limited. Mr. Wong is currently a member of
The EFAC Financial Infrastructure and Market Development Sub-
Committee, a sub-committee under the Exchange Fund Advisory
Committee (“EFAC”) of the Hong Kong Monetary Authority, a member
of the Industry Advisory Committee on Long Term Business established
by the Insurance Authority, and a Non-official Member of the Trade
and Industry Advisory Board of the Trade and Industry Department.
Mr. Wong holds a Master of Business Administration degree from
Harvard University, U.S.A. and a Bachelor of Laws (Honours) degree
from King’s College, London, and is a qualified solicitor in England and
Wales and in Hong Kong. Mr. Wong is a son of Mr. David Shou-Yeh
Wong, the Chairman of the Boards of the Bank, Dah Sing Financial
Holdings Limited and Dah Sing Banking Group Limited.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Gary Pak-Ling Wang
Deputy Chief Executive and Group Chief Financial and Operating
Officer

Mr. Wang, aged 59, joined the Bank as the Group Financial Controller
in 1995 and was promoted as a Director in 1997, responsible for
the overall financial management and control, operations and IT
functions of the Group for a number of years. He was promoted as the
Managing Director and Chief Executive of the Bank in May 2011 and
was re-designated as the Deputy Chief Executive and Alternate Chief
Executive of the Bank in August 2017. He is also an Executive Director
and Deputy Chief Executive of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited
(“DSFH”), an Executive Director of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
(“DSBG”) and the Group Chief Financial and Operating Officer of the
Bank, DSFH and DSBG as well as a Director of Banco Comercial
de Macau, S.A. and Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited. Mr. Wang is a
qualified accountant, a Fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants of the U.K. and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He holds a Bachelor of Social Science
degree from The University of Hong Kong and has over 30 years of
experience in financial management and banking.

Mr. Nicholas John Mayhew
Deputy Chief Executive

Mr. Mayhew, aged 52, joined the Bank in 1998, and was appointed
as an Executive Director in 2007 and as the Deputy Chief Executive
in August 2011. He was appointed as an Executive Director and the
Deputy Chief Executive of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited on 1 June
2017. Mr. Mayhew is currently a Director of Dah Sing Bank (China)
Limited, Dah Sing Insurance Company (1976) Limited and Macau
Insurance Company Limited. He was an Executive Director of Dah Sing
Financial Holdings Limited (the ultimate holding company of the Bank)
during the period from 6 August 2004 to 31 May 2017. He also serves
as Head of Treasury and Corporate Finance of the Bank, responsible
for its treasury and corporate finance activities. Mr. Mayhew holds a
Bachelor of Arts degree (Hons) (in Chinese and Economics) from the
University of London. He has over 30 years of experience in financial
services both in the U.K. and Hong Kong.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. Phoebe Mei-Chun Wong
Alternate Chief Executive

Ms. Wong, aged 53, joined the Bank as the Head of Retail Banking
in February 2012, responsible for the development and management
of overall retail banking, bancassurance, retail brokerage, wealth
management businesses, private banking and vehicle financing.
She was appointed as an Executive Director in May 2012 and
an Alternate Chief Executive in May 2014. She holds a Master of
Business Administration degree from Brunel University (UK) via Henley
Management College and a Bachelor of Arts degree from the University
of Hong Kong. Ms. Wong has over 30 years of experience in retail and
personal banking business with other banks operating in Hong Kong,
including Standard Chartered Bank and CITIC Bank International.

Mr. Cliff Wai-Kin Chan

Mr. Chan, aged 48, joined the Bank as General Manager and Head
of Wealth Management in 2009, and was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Bank in March 2019. He is responsible for the
formulation and execution of overall business strategies of the Bank’s
wealth management business, including securities brokerage, retail
wealth management, and private banking. He holds a Bachelor of
Arts degree from the University of Cambridge and a Master degree in
Business Administration from the Harvard Business School. He is a
Chartered Financial Analyst of the CFA Institute and a Certified Private
Wealth Professional of the Private Wealth Management Association.
Mr. Chan has over 20 years of extensive experience in various areas
including financial services, manufacturing and public administration.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Robert Tsai-To Sze
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Sze, aged 79, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Bank in 1996. He is also an Independent Non-Executive
Director of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”), Dah Sing
Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”), Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited
and Dah Sing Insurance Company (1976) Limited. He serves as the
Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Bank, DSFH and DSBG, a
member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”)
of the Bank and DSBG and the Chairman of the NRC of DSFH. He
was the Chairman of the NRC of DSBG from August 2005 to August
2017. Mr. Sze is an Independent Non-Executive Director of Hop Hing
Group Holdings Limited, Nanyang Holdings Limited and Sunwah
Kingsway Capital Holdings Limited. He was an Independent Non-
Executive Director of Min Xin Holdings Limited (resigned in April
2018) and China Travel International Investment Hong Kong Limited
(resigned in October 2018). Mr. Sze is a Fellow of The Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He was a former partner of an
international firm of accountants with which he practised for over 20
years.

Mr. Seng-Lee Chan
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Chan, aged 73, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Bank in May 2012 and Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
(“DSBG”), the immediate holding company of the Bank, in August
2008 after his retirement in June 2008 as the Chief Executive Officer of
Heidelberg China Limited. He was appointed as a member of the Audit
Committee and the Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of the Bank in December 2017. He has served as a member
of the Audit Committee and the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of DSBG since May 2011. He was further appointed as the
Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of DSBG
on 22 August 2017. Mr. Chan has over 40 years of experience primarily
in the print media industry and has a sound knowledge of the Asian
markets, particularly in China.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Independent Non-Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Yuen-Tin Ng
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Ng, aged 68, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Bank in October 2012, and an Independent Non-
Executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee of Dah Sing
Banking Group Limited in April 2012. He is also an Independent Non-
Executive Director of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited (“DSB China”) (a
key operating subsidiary of the Bank), appointed in February 2013. He
has served as a member of the Risk Management and Compliance
Committee of the Bank since May 2013 and was appointed as a
member of the Audit Committee of the Bank in December 2017. He
was appointed as a member of the Audit Committee, Connected
Transactions Control Committee and Risk Management Committee
of DSB China in February 2013. He was further appointed as the
Chairman of the Connected Transactions Control Committee and the
Remuneration Committee of DSB China in June 2015 and September
2015 respectively. Mr. Ng is also an Independent Non-Executive
Director of Chinney Alliance Group Limited, a public company listed
in Hong Kong. Mr. Ng is an Associate of The Chartered Institute of
Bankers (UK) and a Fellow and an honorary advisor of The Hong Kong
Institute of Bankers. Mr. Ng has 40 years of extensive experience
in banking and financial industry with a focus on the corporate and
institutional banking business management for the last 12 years prior
to his retirement from Hang Seng Bank Limited in 2011.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Independent Non-Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Blair Chilton Pickerell
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Pickerell, aged 63, was appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive Director (“INED”) of the Bank on 19 December 2017 and a
member of Risk Management and Compliance Committee of the Bank
on 21 August 2018. He was also appointed as an INED of Dah Sing
Banking Group Limited, the immediate holding company of the Bank,
on 20 December 2017.

Mr. Pickerell is an Independent Director and a member of the Finance
Committee and Nominating and Governance Committee of the
Principal Financial Group, Inc. (which is listed on NASDAQ in the
U.S.). He is an INED and a member of the Nomination Committee and
the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee of Link Real Estate
Investment Trust (which is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)). He is also a member of the
Supervisory Committee of The Tracker Fund of Hong Kong (a Hong
Kong unit trust whose units are listed on the Stock Exchange). He is
also a strategic advisor of CreditEase Holdings (HK) Limited and a
member of the Advisory Board of Anthemis Insurance Venture Growth
Fund I. He is the Chairman of Harvard Business School Association
of Hong Kong Limited and an executive committee member of
the International Advisory Council of the Faculty of Business and
Economics of The University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Pickerell was a court member of The University of Hong Kong from
December 2008 to November 2014 and a member of the Main Board
and GEM Listing Committees of the Stock Exchange from July 2015 to
July 2016. He was an INED and a member of the Audit Committee of
Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (the ultimate holding company of
the Bank) from 1 June 2013 to 19 December 2017.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Independent Non-Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Blair Chilton Pickerell (Continued)
Independent Non-Executive Director (Continued)

Mr. Pickerell joined Nikko Asset Management Group as the Head
of Asia and Global Chief Marketing Officer in 2010 and served as
the Chairman, Asia of Nikko Asset Management Company until July
2015. He joined Jardine Matheson Holdings Group in 1984 and held
various positions in Jardine Matheson Holdings Group. In 2003,
he joined HSBC Investments (Hong Kong) Limited (now known as
HSBC Global Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited) as the Chief
Executive Officer, Asia Pacific. From 2007 to 2010, he served as
managing director and Chief Executive Officer, Asia of Morgan Stanley
Investment Management.

Mr. Pickerell holds an MBA degree from Harvard Business School,
U.S.A. and an MA degree (in East Asian Studies) and a BA degree (in
Political Science) from Stanford University, U.S.A.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Independent Non-Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Paul Michael Kennedy
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Kennedy, aged 62, was appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Bank in December 2018. He is also an
Independent Non-Executive Director and a member of the Audit
Committee of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited, an Independent
Non-Executive Director of Octopus Holdings Limited and Octopus
Cards Limited and an Independent Non-Executive Director of Vistra
Group Holdings (BVI) Il Limited. He was a financial services partner
of KPMG Hong Kong from 1991 to 2006 and Managing Partner of
KPMG’s Shanghai office from 2000 to 2005. Mr. Kennedy was chief
operating officer and executive director of the Securities and Futures
Commission during the period from 2006 to 2010 and he subsequently
took up a role as a Managing Director of HSBC Hong Kong’s Global
Banking Division from 2010 to 2012. Mr. Kennedy was appointed as
Special Advisor to the Chief Executive of Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited (“HKEX”) in January 2013 and subsequently served as
the Group Chief Financial Officer of HKEX from May 2013 to December
2017. He continued to serve as Senior Advisor of HKEX until July 2018.
Mr. Kennedy is a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales. He holds a Bachelor of Arts in Accounting
and Financial Administration from the University of Bangor in the
United Kingdom and has over 35 years of experience in the financial
services industry encompassing auditing and professional advisory
services, regulation, risk management, banking and listed company
management.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Independent Non-Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. David Wai-Hung Tam
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Tam, aged 70, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director and a member of the Risk Management and Compliance
Committee of the Bank in March 2019. He is also an Independent Non-
Executive Director of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited. He started
his career with The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited in 1968 and held various senior positions until February 1999.
In March 1999, Mr. Tam joined Hang Seng Bank Limited and was a
Deputy General Manager and a Head of Commercial Banking during
2003 to 2008 and the Chief Risk Officer from 2008 until his retirement
in 2012. He was also a director of Yantai Bank, a city commercial
bank in Yantai, from December 2012 to June 2017. He is currently
an Independent Non-Executive Director and a member of the Audit
Committee of Xinyi Glass Holdings Limited and a Non-Executive
Director and a member of the Audit Committee of Nameson Holdings
Limited. Mr. Tam is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Bankers and the Chartered Institute of Bankers in the UK and an
associate of the Institute of Bankers. He holds a master’s degree in
Business Administration from the University of Toronto, Canada. Mr.
Tam has more than 45 years of experience in commercial banking
industry in Hong Kong and the PRC.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Barbara Yuen-Lai Ma
Head of Commercial Banking

Ms. Ma, aged 53, joined the Bank as Head of Commercial Banking in
February 2020, responsible for overseeing and supervising commercial
banking business. She has nearly 30 years of solid banking experience
in Hong Kong, the United Kingdom and the United States, mainly in
commercial and corporate banking with a full spectrum of clients in
various sectors. Ms. Ma attained a Bachelor of Science (Economics)
degree from The London School of Economics and Political Science.
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DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Ms. Betty Wai-Yee Chung
Deputy Chief Operating Officer and Group Head of Information
Technology

Ms. Chung, aged 54, joined the Bank in January 2019 as the Deputy
Chief Operating Officer and Group Head of Information Technology.
Ms. Chung has over 30 years of solid banking and IT experience. Prior
to joining the Bank, she held various IT positions in multinational and
regional financial institutions. Ms. Chung holds an Executive Master of
Business Administration degree from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong and a degree of Bachelor of Science in Computer Science from
Purdue University, U.S.A.

Ms. Mei-Kin Cheong (Kimmy Cheong)
General Manager and Group Head of Operations

Ms. Cheong, aged 47, joined the Bank as General Manager and Group
Head of Operations of the Bank in January 2020. Ms. Cheong has over
20 years of solid experience in retail banking, project management and
operations management in banking industry. Ms. Cheong attained a
Bachelor of Science degree and a Master of Business Administration
degree from The Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Clement Poon
General Manager and Group Financial Controller

Mr. Poon, aged 50, joined the Bank in January 2003 as the Head
of Financial Accounting Department and was appointed as General
Manager and the Group Financial Controller of the Bank in December
2014. He graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and
attained a Bachelor of Arts degree in Accountancy. He is a Fellow of
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants of the U.K. and an
Associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Poon has over 20 years of experience in accounting and financial
management in the banking industry.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Ms. Sze-Ching Chan (Amy Chan)
General Manager and Group Head of Human Resources

Ms. Chan, aged 48, joined the Bank in January 2018 as General
Manager and Group Head of Human Resources Division. Ms. Chan has
over 25 years of experience in the human resources field, of which 22
years are in the banking and financial industry. She graduated from the
University of Strathclyde, U.K., with a Bachelor of Arts degree followed
by a Postgraduate Diploma in Human Resources Management.
Ms. Chan is a Fellow of The Chartered Institute of Personnel and
Development of the U.K.

Mr. Ka-Wai Wong (Kevin Wong)
General Manager and Group Head of Compliance

Mr. Wong, aged 54, joined the Bank in 2014 as General Manager
and Group Head of Compliance. Mr. Wong has solid experience in
managing regulatory compliance and providing compliance service,
with many years of experience in the financial services sector and
regulatory supervision. Mr. Wong attained a Bachelor Degree of
Commerce (Accounting) from The University of Birmingham, UK,
a Master Degree of Finance from Curtin University of Technology,
Australia and a Master of Laws Degree in International Corporate and
Financial Law from University of Wolverhampton, UK.

Mr. Frederick Ka-Wai Lau
General Manager and Head of Group Risk

Mr. Lau, aged 49, joined the Bank in 2010 as the General Manager
and Head of Market Risk, and progressed to become the Head of Risk
Management and Control Department within the Group Risk Division
of the Bank in 2012. Mr. Lau was appointed as the Head of Group Risk
in April 2018. He has over 25 years of working experience covering
mainly risk management and other roles in the banking sector, and
also in regulatory supervision capacity. Mr. Lau attained a degree in
business administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong
and a master degree in business administration from the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology.
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DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Mr. Vincent Ho-Wing Yau
Chief Executive Officer and Director of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited

Mr. Yau, aged 57, joined the Bank and was appointed as the Alternate
Chief Executive Officer and Head of Business Development of Dah
Sing Bank (China) Limited (“DSB China”), a key operating subsidiary
of the Bank, in September 2012. He was appointed as an Executive
Director of DSB China in December 2014 and the Chief Executive
Officer of DSB China in February 2015. Mr. Yau has over 30 years of
experience in the banking industry in China and Hong Kong, and had
assumed various senior executive positions in Standard Chartered
Bank before joining the Bank.

Mr. Pak-Hung Lau
Chief Executive Officer and Director of Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.

Mr. Lau, aged 55, joined the Bank and was appointed as the Chief
Executive Officer and Director of Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.
(incorporated in Macau) in January 2020. Mr. Lau has over 30 years
of solid banking experience in Hong Kong and Macau. He started his
career in banking by joining HSBC in 1986 and immediately before
joining the Bank, he was the CEO of HSBC Macau Branch.
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The Board of Directors and the Management of Dah Sing Bank, Limited
(the “Bank” or the “Group”) are committed to maintaining a high
standard of corporate governance practices and devote considerable
effort to identify and formalize best practices. We believe that sound
and effective corporate governance practices are essential for
delivering sustainable value, enhancing a culture of business integrity
and maintaining investors’ confidence. Good corporate governance
promotes and safeguards the interests of shareholders and other
stakeholders including customers and employees, thereby enhancing
the credibility and reputation of the Bank.

The Bank abides strictly by the relevant laws and regulations in Hong
Kong, and observes the rules and guidelines issued by regulatory
authorities including the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (“HKMA?”). It
has complied with the requirements set out in the Supervisory Policy
Manual module CG-1 entitled “Corporate Governance of Locally
Incorporated Authorised Institutions” (“CG-1”) and CG-5 entitled
“Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System” (“CG-5"), Guidance
on Empowerment of Independent Non-Executive Directors and the
circulars on Bank Culture Reform issued by the HKMA in all material
aspects.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES AND
PRACTICES

The Bank has in place a corporate governance framework which
identifies all the key participants of the Group and the ways which
they relate to each other and their roles in the application of effective
governance policies and processes.

The Bank has adopted a set of Board Governance Policy and
Procedures (“BGPP”) since 2013. The BGPP of the Bank is subject
to regular review and update to ensure compliance with the latest
regulatory requirements.
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DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES AND
PRACTICES (Continued)

The BGPP has been developed in pursuance of the requirements of the
CG-1, which has laid down the governance framework and structures
of the Bank covering the responsibilities of the board, the organization
and functioning of the board, board committees, appointment of
directors and succession, board qualification and training, delegation
of authority and oversight of senior management, evaluation of the
board and individual directors, governance in group structure, controls
on structures established on behalf of customers, risk management,
and legal obligations of directors.

The supervision of the management and direction of the business and
affairs of the Bank shall be vested in the Board, who, in addition to the
powers and authorities set out in the Bank’s constitutional documents
expressly conferred upon them, may exercise all such powers and do
all such acts and things as may be exercised or done or approved by
the Bank. In discharging its responsibilities, the Board shall take into
account the legitimate interests of shareholders, depositors and other
relevant stakeholders.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of the Bank has the ultimate responsibility for the
supervision, leadership, operations and financial soundness of the
Bank. In discharging its responsibilities, the Board actively engages
in the affairs of the Bank and is cognizant of material changes in the
Bank’s business and the external environment in which the Bank
operates. The Board acts honestly and in good faith in the interest
of the Bank, and on an informed and prudent basis, having regard to
the legitimate interests of shareholders, depositors and other relevant
stakeholders.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Board comprises thirteen
members, of whom seven are Executive Directors and six are
Independent Non-Executive Directors. Members of the Board are as
follows:

Executive Directors

David Shou-Yeh Wong — Chairman

Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) — Vice Chairman

Harold Tsu-Hing Wong - Vice Chairman, Managing Director and Chief
Executive

Gary Pak-Ling Wang - Deputy Chief Executive and Group Chief
Financial and Operating Officer

Nicholas John Mayhew — Deputy Chief Executive

Phoebe Mei-Chun Wong — Alternate Chief Executive

Cliff Wai-Kin Chan

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Robert Tsai-To Sze
Seng-Lee Chan
Yuen-Tin Ng

Blair Chilton Pickerell
Paul Michael Kennedy
David Wai-Hung Tam

The biographical information of the Directors is disclosed in the
“Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile” of this Annual Report.

The Board possesses appropriate experience, competencies and
personal qualities, including professionalism and integrity, to discharge
its responsibilities adequately and effectively. In addition, the Board
collectively has adequate knowledge and expertise relevant to each
of the material business activities that the Bank pursues and the
associated risks in order to ensure effective governance and oversight.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

According to the Terms of Reference of the Board, the key
responsibilities of the Board include:

° setting and overseeing the objectives and strategies of the
Group

° approving annual budget and business plan, and monitoring
performance and execution of plan

o establishing and overseeing risk governance

o appointment and oversight of senior management, and ensuring
competent management is in place

o setting corporate values and standards

. overseeing the remuneration policy

o ensuring a suitable and transparent corporate structure

° ensuring effective audit function and internal control

° ensuring an appropriate level of effectiveness in respect of the

structure, operation and risk management of the Bank

° matters involving conflict of interest of substantial shareholder or
any Director

° material acquisition or disposal of assets (not in the ordinary
business or operation of the Bank), investments and business
reorganization

° material capital projects with long-term commitments

° delegation of authority to Board level Committees or individual
Directors (for approving specific transactions)

° delegation to Senior Management the authority and responsibility
to manage the regular businesses and affairs of the Bank and its
subsidiaries consistent with the objectives and strategies of the
Bank, and within the risk framework and limits approved by the

Board
° appointment of Directors and Senior Management
° actively engaging in succession plans for the chief executive and

other key senior executives as appropriate

Board meetings are held at least four times a year. In addition, special
Board meetings are held when necessary. Dates of regular Board and
Board Committee meetings are scheduled in the prior year to provide
sufficient notice to give all Directors an opportunity to attend. For
special Board meetings, reasonable notice is given. Board agenda
is approved following consultation with the Directors and Senior
Management. All Board meetings involve the active participation,
either in person or through other electronic means of communication,
of Directors. The Board held four meetings in 2019.



DREARE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEEBT2EES

EREERRSZEeRREAANBERER
ERNTEEE  BESEFANASZEEZEN
LBE BEEBRTRAEBRZEE RALH
MEEgARRREERAREEE - EFETE
Higs REMSZ EaAK MBRHEE - R
ERRHDEBZERERTAEERTE - UEE
AREEEBREATHENER SEFRE X
BEERTHBEATRERMEEZSHRENE
ARF YEBAEZRNESTGERLRKNL
FEFGRHES -

BEREES

ExZBe (BB ) BEERNEZIMNE
EEASEARNMBHREREMRE ARk
SMNBRZ BBV EZ TIE - ARSI RS - BT R
HERGHMEESSEH BERZBEENERER
BN EFEERFTTHIZCERETHASF
H - BRFERRZ2THANRE2ER - Lptit
REZEGZEE -

ERZBEEBFEARTZITBABERBITRE
B BTBEH  SEMKEE  SERRER
TE  SEAEHRELIE RARRITZINEZ

REH - EEREHSAR

RAFHRE  BERZBEER=-AEREEHAS
BYFNTES - ERZEGZNERLBME
E(XRE)  BBMNEERRRALE - BXEE8
EN2019FHBITT =ZREE -

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has delegated its authority to various committees to deal
with specific matters under written terms of reference, which set out
in detail their respective authorities and responsibilities. The Audit
Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, and Risk
Management and Compliance Committee were established under
the authority of the Board. The composition and terms of reference of
these committees are reviewed and updated regularly to ensure that
they remain appropriate and in line with the regulatory requirements,
the Group’s business and changes in governance practices. All Board
Committees adopt the same governance processes as the Board
as far as practicable and report to the Board on their decisions or

recommendations after each meeting.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee (“AC”) has the authority to review all matters
related to financial statements and disclosure, audit work performed
by internal and external auditors, internal control systems, risk
management system and compliance for the whole Group. The
AC reports to the Board following each AC meeting, drawing the
Board’s attention to significant issues or matters of which the Board
should be aware, identifying any matters in respect of which it
considers that action or improvement is needed, and making relevant
recommendations.

The AC meets at least three times a year with the Bank’s executives
including the Chief Executive, Deputy Chief Executive, Group Financial
Controller, Head of Group Risk, Group Head of Internal Audit, and
representatives from the Bank’s external auditor. Special meetings of
the AC are held when necessary.

As at the date of this Annual Report, the AC comprises three members
and all the members are INEDs. The members of the AC are Messtrs.
Robert Tsai-To Sze (Chairman), Seng-Lee Chan and Yuen-Tin Ng. The
AC held three meetings in 2019.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

The AC was established with written terms of reference and its major
roles and functions are as follows:

° To ensure the objectivity and credibility of financial reporting

° To review the internal control system and compliance with
regulatory requirements

o To make recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor and to
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor

° To review and monitor the external auditors’ independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards

o To approve the appointment, resignation or dismissal of the
head of internal audit

o To approve audit plans

o To review the effectiveness of the internal audit function

° To review findings and reports of the internal and external
auditors

° To review and monitor the integrity of the Bank’s annual and
interim financial statements, including significant financial
reporting judgments used in producing the financial statements

° To review the Bank’s internal controls and reports its major
findings and comments to the Board

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) is responsible
for overseeing the remuneration matters of the Bank, and also to
review and endorse the nomination of candidates for appointment as
Non-Executive Directors (including INEDs), Executive Directors and
Senior Management, prior to the approval by the Board of the Bank.
The NRC reports to the Board regularly on its findings, decisions and
recommendations.

The NRC meets at least twice a year and at such other times as the
NRC deems appropriate.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (Continued)

As at the date of this Annual Report, the NRC comprises three
members, majority of whom are INEDs and is chaired by an INED. The
members of the NRC are Messrs. Seng-Lee Chan (Chairman), Robert
Tsai-To Sze and David Shou-Yeh Wong. The NRC held four meetings
in 2019.

The NRC was established with written terms of reference and its major
roles and functions are as follows:

o To review and endorse the nomination of directors and senior
management

o To assist the Board in discharging its responsibility for the design
and operation of the Bank’s remuneration system

o To review and make recommendation to the Board in respect of
the Bank’s remuneration policy and practices

° To review and endorse the specific remuneration packages of
directors and senior management

. To ensure that regular review of the Bank’s remuneration system
and its operation is conducted

. To review the structure, size, composition and diversity of the
Board and also its committees at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board

° To regularly review the efficiency and effectiveness of the
functioning of the Board and also its committees, particularly in
respect of the composition of Board and committee members

o To advise and assist the Board in discharging its culture reform
and related responsibilities

KHIRITAR AR 2019FF 4
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EEEBTZEEEW BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
EREEREREES Risk Management and Compliance Committee
EREERGHRZEG(IRBEERAREZE The Risk Management and Compliance Committee (‘RMCC”) is to
gHEEARTZAREERE RERREHRES provide guidance and oversight on the Bank’s risk management
MEE  wIRREERMEREEBRATE E strategy and development, review risk management issues and the
ErezRREEREREZRBIREER#E resolution thereof, review risk management policies and major risk
F UREHNFTENEETARETERER & limits prior to the approval by the Board, and review major regulatory
EERRITHARBELTIIE ZESEE TR compliance issues and development, and exercise oversight on the
DEGETTER R A R B 1R g R ﬁftk compliance function and activities of the Bank. It has the authority to
KEEFEERNEIE - BREERERZEERN conduct any enquiry and review on matters related to risk management
BrRg®HE - fﬂﬁé%@[#ﬁ%%%ﬁ&Zi%% and compliance with risk policy and regulatory requirements. The
EXEE  BREFERDZTHHRECEE - RMCC reports to the Board following each RMCC meeting, drawing
WRtiREEE G 2 & o the Board’s attention to significant issues or matters of which the

Board should be aware, identifying any matters in respect of which it
considers that action or improvement is needed, and making relevant
recommendations.

EREEMEREZEESTFALRRITZITHAR The RMCC meets at least four times a year with the Bank’s executives
BRETHAER - BT  SEERRERERE including the Chief Executive, Deputy Chief Executives, Head of
B EEARETERERRABESRILER Group Risk, Group Head of Compliance and Group Head of AML and
BEEERTHRIUAEE - TAHEREEH Financial Crime Risk. Special meetings of the RMCC are held when
EREEREREZEGRMEE - necessary.
RAFHRA  BREEREREESH-BEY As at the date of this Annual Report, the RMCC comprises three INEDs
EMITEF(BE B VIFRTESHEREE (including an INED who serves as the Acting Chairman) and the Chief
&) RARITITINBE AR - B ERRERES Executive of the Bank. The members of the RMCC are Messrs. Blair
SRERERNBITE I ERITESEMELLE Chilton Pickerell, Yuen-Tin Ng and David Wai-Hung Tam, who are
RIFHSENRERMEAEURRBITITREAHR T INEDs of the Bank and Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong, who is the Chief
HEEAE - AREEREREEGN2019F HE Executive of the Bank. The RMCC held four meetings in 2019.

TTIEREE -
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Risk Management and Compliance Committee (Continued)

The RMCC was established with written terms of reference and its
major roles and functions are as follows:

° To assist the Board in reviewing all major risk management
policies and risk limits, including capital management policy and
capital plan, as well as the recovery plan

o To assist the Board in reviewing all major compliance and legal
issues, including those relating to anti-money laundering

o To assist the Board in overseeing the implementation of the
stress-testing programme, reviewing the stress-testing results,
including the stress test against capital plan and ensuring that
suitable actions are taken to mitigate potential risks where
necessary

o To monitor and ensure that major risk management policies and
risk limits of the Bank and its subsidiaries comply with relevant
regulatory requirements, and follow up on non-compliance issues
and their resolutions

o To provide periodic update to the Board on its work, finding and
recommendations

° To review any risk and/or compliance issues raised by the HKMA
which are considered significant by the Head of Group Risk,
Group Head of Compliance, Group Head of AML and Financial
Crime Risk or Group Head of Internal Audit

o To oversee the resourcing for the risk management and
compliance functions of the Bank, including anti-money
laundering and counter-terrorist financing

o To interact with the AC to ensure consistency and compatibility
in actions and minimize any potential gaps in risk management
oversight

o To promote sound risk governance and a strong risk
management culture and provide guidance and oversight on the
development of risk management strategies as well as the risk
tolerance and risk appetite of the Bank
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RISK APPETITE FRAMEWORK

The Bank’s risk appetite is defined as the level of risk the Bank is
willing to take, having regard to its resources and financial capacity,
strategic objectives and regulatory constraints (e.g. capital and liquidity
requirements), with the expectation that the risk taken or to be pursued
is sufficiently compensated or at acceptable return with reasonable
confidence level. Against this background, the risk appetite framework
is comprised of a Risk Appetite Statement (“RAS”) and a set of
risk tolerance is established. The RAS covers five key dimensions
of the risks and returns of the Bank, namely the target returns to
shareholders, earnings volatility, solvency, liquidity and others while
more granular risk types including credit risk, market risk, liquidity risk,
interest rate risk and other less quantifiable risks (e.g. operational risk,
reputation risk and strategic risk, cyber risk, legal risk and conduct
risk, etc.) are controlled under different risk limits and risk mitigation
measures that constitute the risk tolerance of the Bank.

The RAS is a high level statement which sets out the risk-return
requirements as well as the risk taking capacity of the Bank, taking
into account its financial and capital strength and covers a wide range
of metrics including return on average shareholders’ funds, liquidity
maintenance ratio, core funding ratio, leverage ratio and measures of
impact on profitability and capital adequacy ratio under selected stress
scenarios, etc. Moreover, to ensure that the Bank’s operations and
risk taking activities are in line with the RAS, the Bank has adopted a
set of risk tolerance levels to govern and control specific categories of
risk, which is made up of major quantitative risk limits as well as some

qualitative measures.
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RISK APPETITE FRAMEWORK (Continued)

As for the process of risk appetite setting, the Board determines the
optimal risk appetite having regard to the Bank’s capital, risk and
strategy. In addition, the Board is responsible for overseeing the
development and monitoring of the Bank’s risk appetite to ensure
that the Bank is able to achieve sustainable growth in pursuing its
business strategy, operating within its tolerance levels. The RAS is
designed to be consistent with the Bank’s business strategy, risk
and return balance and market outlook, for the medium to longer
term and it is not intended to be changed frequently, unless there are
significant changes in the Bank’s strategy and operating environment.
Furthermore, during the annual and other ad hoc reviews of the RAS
framework, risk scenarios covering different courses of development
of the global economies including highly stressed scenarios are
developed for the purpose of conducting the firm-wide stress test. The
results together with regulatory developments will be taken as one of
the key considerations in the review of risk appetite.

Compliance with the RAS and risk tolerance is monitored and reported
to the Board and the RMCC respectively on a quarterly basis to ensure
that the businesses of the Bank are conducted within the requirements
of the risk appetite framework. Moreover, the risk appetite framework
and major risk appetite limits are subject to the review by the RMCC
and the Board on an annual basis, when the annual budget and
medium term plan of the Bank are reviewed and approved, or new
business and risk strategies are to be approved.

RECRUITMENT AND SELECTION OF MEMBERS OF THE
BOARD

The Bank uses a formal, considered and transparent procedure for
the appointment of new Directors. The proposed appointment will
first be reviewed by the NRC, taking into account the balance of skills,
knowledge and experience on the Board. Upon recommendation of the
NRC, the proposed appointment will then be reviewed and, if thought
fit, approved by the Board after due deliberation.

In accordance with the requirement under the Banking Ordinance,

approval from the HKMA will need to be sought prior to the
appointment of any person as a Director of the Bank.

KHIRITAR AR 2019FF 4
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RECRUITMENT AND SELECTION OF MEMBERS OF THE
BOARD (Continued)

The Bank issues appointment letters to each of the INEDs, setting
out the terms and conditions of their appointments. For proposed
appointment as INEDs of the Bank, the factors as laid down in the
HKMA'’s Guidance on Empowerment of INEDs will be considered to
assess the independence of a proposed INED of the Bank. The same
factors will be revisited to reassess the independence of any INED
who has served the Board of the Bank for more than 9 years, where
applicable.

Pursuant to the Board Appointment and Succession Policy of the
Bank, the Board or NRC should satisfy itself that the candidate
nominated for appointment is a fit and proper person for appointment,
taking into account the following features and attributes of the

candidate:

o age

° education background and professional qualification

° experience, especially working and commercial experience
o stature and reputation in the community

. capability

o professional and/or business management skills

° track record

° independence of mind (particularly in the case of non-executive
directors and INEDs)

° any financial or other interest in the business of the Bank

° other directorship

° intellectual strength

° fitness and propriety

Candidates as proposed Board members should not have any
conflict of interest that may impede their ability to perform their duties
independently and objectively or subject them to undue influence from:

° personal, professional or other economic relationships with other
members of the board or management (or with other entities
within the group)

° other persons including shareholders

° relationship arising from or connected to past or present
positions held
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RECRUITMENT AND SELECTION OF MEMBERS OF THE
BOARD (Continued)

A Board director candidate has to confirm that there is no conflict of
interest prior to his/her appointment, apart from clearance under the
relevant regulatory requirements relating to connected lending.

REMUNERATION INFORMATION

Remuneration information in line with the requirements set out in CG-5
is disclosed in the Regulatory Disclosure Statement at the Bank’s
website at www.dahsing.com and is accessible at the following direct
link:

http://www.dahsing.com/html/en/about_us/regulatory_disclosures.html

MAJOR SHARE OWNERSHIP AND VOTING RIGHTS AND
RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Bank is a wholly owned subsidiary of Dah Sing Banking Group
Limited. The ultimate holding company of the Bank is Dah Sing
Financial Holdings Limited. Both Dah Sing Banking Group Limited and
Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited are listed companies in Hong
Kong.

The Bank’s related party transactions are set out in Note 42 to the
Financial Statements of this Annual Report.

OTHERS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Bank did not engage in
any material and complex or non-transparent structure that is difficult
for supervisors and stakeholders of the Bank to reasonably assess the
risks to which it is exposed.

RITRITAR AT 2019F F ],
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of Dah Sing Bank, Limited (the “Bank”) are the
provision of banking, financial and other related services. The principal
activities of the subsidiaries are shown in Note 26 to the financial

statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Bank and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2019 are set out in the consolidated income
statement on page 37.

The Directors declared an interim dividend of HK$2.95 per share,
totalling HK$182,900,000, which was paid on 18 September 2019.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$7.6
per share, totalling HK$471,200,000.
BUSINESS REVIEW

No business review for 2019 is prepared as the Bank is exempted
under section 388(3)(b) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance since
it is a wholly owned subsidiary of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited for
the financial year ended 31 December 2019.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Bank during the year are shown in
Note 37 to the financial statements.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to HK$1,351,000.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Bank during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman

Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
Vice Chairman

Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
Vice Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive

Robert Tsai-To Sze*
Seng-Lee Chan*
Yuen-Tin Ng*
Blair Chilton Pickerell”
Paul Michael Kennedy*
David Wai-Hung Tam* (appointed with effect from 18 March 2019)
Gary Pak-Ling Wang
Executive Director, Deputy Chief Executive and Group Chief

Financial and Operating Officer

Nicholas John Mayhew
Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive

Phoebe Mei-Chun Wong
Executive Director and Alternate Chief Executive

Cliff Wai-Kin Chan (appointed with effect from 18 March 2019)

Eddie Shing-Tat Lau (resigned with effect from 31 January 2020)
Executive Director and Alternate Chief Executive

* Independent Non-Executive Directors

There being no provision in the Bank’s Articles of Association for
retirement by rotation, all Directors continue in office.

KHIRITAR AR 2019FF 4
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DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

A list of the names of all the directors who have served on the
boards of the subsidiaries of the Bank during the year and up to the
date of this Report of the Directors is provided in the “Directors of
Subsidiaries” section which follows this Report of the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Pursuant to the Share Option Schemes (the “Schemes”) as approved
by the shareholders of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”)
and Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”), the Bank’s ultimate
and immediate holding companies respectively, eligible participants
may be granted options at a consideration of HK$1 per option to
subscribe for shares of DSFH or DSBG. The exercise price per option
share is varied by tranches of grant, which is concluded on the basis
no less exacting than the requirement set out in Rule 17.03(9) of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) being determined as no less
than the higher of (i) the closing price of the relevant shares traded on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “SEHK”) on the date
of grant; and (ji) the average closing price of the relevant shares traded
on the SEHK for the 5 business days immediately preceding the date
of grant.

The following were arrangements which subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year which enabled the Directors of the
Bank to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in its
holding companies.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(Continued)

Directors’ interests in the Schemes during the year are described

below:

(a)

(b)

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Share Option
Scheme (the “DSFH Scheme”)

At the annual general meeting held on 27 May 2015, the
shareholders of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”),
the Bank’s ultimate holding company, approved the adoption of
a share option scheme of DSFH (the “DSFH Scheme”).

During the year, no options were granted to Directors of the
Bank under the DSFH Scheme and no Directors had outstanding
options under the DSFH Scheme.

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited Share Option Scheme
(the “DSBG Scheme”)

At the annual general meeting held on 27 May 2014, the
shareholders of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”), the
Bank’s immediate holding company, approved the adoption of a
share option scheme of DSBG (the “DSBG Scheme”).

During the year, no options were granted to Directors of the
Bank under the DSBG Scheme.

During the year, save for Messrs. Gary Pak-Ling Wang, Nicholas
John Mayhew and Eddie Shing-Tat Lau and Ms. Phoebe Mei-
Chun Wong, no other Directors of the Bank had outstanding
options granted under the DSBG Scheme and none of the
Directors had acquired shares in DSBG by exercising options
granted under the DSBG Scheme.

Apart from the above, at no time during the year was the Bank, its

subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding companies a party

to any arrangements to enable the Directors of the Bank to acquire

benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the

Bank or any other body corporate.

KHIRITAR AR 2019FF 4
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors do not have any service contracts with the Bank.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT
IN RELATION TO THE BANK’S BUSINESS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation
to the Bank’s business to which the Bank, its subsidiaries, its fellow
subsidiaries or its holding companies was a party and in which a
Director of the Bank or an entity connected with a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the Directors of the Bank is
currently in force and was in force throughout the financial year ended
31 December 2019.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Bank were entered
into or existed during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of transactions with related parties of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2019 have been set out in Note 42 to the financial

statements.
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2019, the Bank has fully complied with the requirements set out in
the Banking (Disclosure) Rules issued by the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority under section 60A of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance. The
Bank has fully complied with such disclosure requirements.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Bank.

On behalf of the Board
Hon-Hing Wong
Vice Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2020
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The names of the directors who have served on the boards of the
subsidiaries of the Bank during the year ended 31 December 2019 and
up to 24 March 2020, being the date of the Report of the Directors of
the Bank for the year, are set out below:

(in alphabetical order)

CHAN Hoi-Kit Frederick
CHAN Wai-Kin Cliff

CHANG Pui-Yuk Vanessa
CHENG Yu-Chung (Patrick CHENG)
CHIU Yuk-Fai Alick

HO Ka-Yeung Eric

KONG Yiu-Fai (Eddie KONG)*
LAU Ka-Wai Frederick

LAU Pak-Hung

LAU Shing-Tat Eddie*
Nicholas John MAYHEW

NG Yuen-Tin

POON Clement

POON Wing-Fai Jimmy

SZE Tsai-To Robert

WANG Pak-Ling Gary
WONG Hon-Hing (Derek WONG)
WONG Mei-Chun Phoebe
WONG Shou-Yeh David
WONG Tsu-Hing Harold

YAU Ho-Wing Vincent

YUEN Yat-To (Henry YUEN)

*  Those who have resigned/ceased as a Director of the relevant subsidiary(ies)
of the Bank.
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

#Z2019412 431 H L5 /Z For the year ended 31 December 2019
(ABEETh%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

FfaE
Note 2019 2018
FEUA Interest income 7,472,638 6,712,125
FEZH Interest expense (3,416,863)  (2,559,303)
BRI E WA Net interest income 7 4,055,775 4,152,822
PR E KRB A Fee and commission income 1,433,414 1,477,833
RS E RAEZH Fee and commission expense (286,450) (316,604)
FHREERBAESBRA Net fee and commission income 8 1,146,964 1,161,229
FEERA Net trading income 9 102,773 14,697
HbZEWA Other operating income 10 68,474 72,145
EEWA Operating income 5,373,986 5,400,893
BEY Operating expenses 11 (2,861,392)  (2,710,488)
BRI E R B R 2 & ERF Operating profit before impairment losses 2,512,594 2,690,405
EEREEE Credit impairment losses 13 (356,386) (233,441)
HRETREREEEEZ Operating profit before gains and losses on
Wi & BB AT 2 & E R T certain investments and fixed assets 2,156,208 2,456,964
HEHMEEEE 2 FEHE Net loss on disposal of other fixed assets (6,568) (1,932)
REMEATFERARZF(BR), Net (loss)/gain on fair value adjustment of
Wezs investment properties (28,289) 57,488

HEARXFEAEAEEHEA
Hith 2 Wk i & B & BE 2 %
(&#8), Mz

Net (loss)/gain on disposal of financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive
income (24) 1,682

Bt NI E 2R EEE Impairment loss on the investment in an

associate 23 (287,000) (633,000)
i AN e Share of results of an associate 701,857 659,708
FEME ARG B 2 5 Share of results of jointly controlled entities 32,072 27,234
BRBE AR A Profit before taxation 2,568,256 2,568,144
T8 Taxation 14 (352,986) (427,485)
AERITRRELFERR Profit for the year attributable to

shareholders of the Bank 2,215,270 2,140,659
FAZEEF2328 2 eE I ANGRE MK 2 — The notes on pages 43 to 232 are an integral part of these consolidated
o o financial statements.
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A EEREER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

#Z%E2019412 A31H |L4FZ For the year ended 31 December 2019
(ABEET h%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2019 2018
FERA Profit for the year 2,215,270 2,140,659
FEHMEE KR Other comprehensive income for the year
AIREEEF D LA WERAIEE ©  Items that may be reclassified to the consolidated
income statement:
BHIRE Investments in securities
NAFEFEBEZES T AEMEME  Net change in fair value of debt instruments at fair
Wi BB TR 2 AT EZE)FHE value through other comprehensive income 395,412 (413,774)
WA ETEBEEEHT AEMEE  Net change in allowance for expected credit losses
WamiEH LA EREEEER of debt instruments at fair value through other
R E)FR comprehensive income 4,487 (1,804)
TRETE (R EIE R EEE AR ¢ Net loss/(gain) realised and transferred to income
statement upon:
—HENAAFEFEHEEE) — Disposal of debt instruments at fair value through
FFAHMEERE BB LA other comprehensive income 24 (1,682)
B LAl 2 RFER IR Deferred income tax related to the above (52,137) 73,537
347,786 (343,723)
REFIMEE IS HRRAEN =2 Exchange differences arising on translation of the
financial statements of foreign entities (159,946) (306,372)
TEEHHDRRGFERERNIER ¢ ltems that will not be reclassified to the consolidated

income statement:

UAFEFEBEZS T AHMEME  Net change in fair value of equity instruments at fair

WSS E TAZ A FEZS)F5  value through other comprehensive income 951 1,608

B bt 2 IRIER 18 Deferred income tax related to the above (157) (265)
794 1,343
MGRHEE 2 FEHMEE Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year,

Wz, (&) net of tax 188,634 (648,752)
NBRHRBERAZEEEHINEEEE Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 2,403,904 1,491,907
FAZE R F232B 2 M I NGB EHER 2 — The notes on pages 43 to 232 are an integral part of these consolidated
& o financial statements.
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ira BRI LR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2019412 931H As at 31 December 2019
(LABBET %R ) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

B e
Note 2019 2018
BE ASSETS
Re RERITHAE SR Cash and balances with banks 17 17,642,131 16,352,429
TERIT1E 1218 A WE|BRRIAF 3K Placements with banks maturing between one and
twelve months 5,494,972 10,241,980
RIEBEERSENES Trading securities 18 8,387,953 7,621,184
UAFEFEAEEHABRNEMEE Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 18 328,768 327,483
TESMTA Derivative financial instruments 19 567,816 727,043
FEEERREMARE Advances and other accounts 20 145,035,203 136,186,907
ARTER2 B HZ 8T A Financial assets at fair value through
FHBHNCHEE other comprehensive income 21 42,163,205 41,654,436
AR ASIBR M S R A E Financial assets at amortised cost 22 15,644,389 9,132,720
BN E Investment in an associate 23 3,888,775 3,620,597
HREFRIEEIRE Investments in jointly controlled entities 24 96,363 87,691
eSS Goodwill 25 811,690 811,690
B EE Intangible assets 25 58,252 58,252
1TE R A E T EE Premises and other fixed assets 27 2,814,303 2,923,147
REM Investment properties 28 1,208,641 1,236,930
BT IR & Current income tax assets - 1,563
EAETIRE B Deferred income tax assets 34 115,216 154,354
BESH Total assets 244,257,677 231,138,406
afE LIABILITIES
RITE Deposits from banks 2,465,069 3,797,556
PTEEmMT A Derivative financial instruments 19 1,093,028 473,273
FHEEBERENEE Trading liabilities 30 5,516,558 5,758,954
BFEER Deposits from customers 31 183,544,477 173,910,012
BEITHERE Certificates of deposit issued 32 6,750,825 6,535,076
RIEER Subordinated notes 33 5,510,181 5,449,082
HinfR B KTER Other accounts and accruals 10,805,338 8,237,099
BRI A G Current income tax liabilities 470,748 593,997
EETIRAE Deferred income tax liabilities 34 17,293 17,508
E8EEst Total liabilities 216,173,517 204,772,557
i EQUITY
PR Share capital 37 6,200,000 6,200,000
HifFE(BEREET) Other reserves (including retained earnings) 38 20,985,573 19,267,262
RRES Shareholders’ funds 27,185,573 25,467,262
BEIMERMTE Additional equity instruments 39 898,587 898,587
EREE Total equity 28,084,160 26,365,849
EREREEEs Total equity and liabilities 244,257,677 231,138,406
EEEN20209F3 A24 B b M IR o Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24
March 2020.
EEHE FHE Hon-Hing Wong Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
EFE o hir Director Managing Director
FAZHEF2RH 2 W I ANIRE B wET 2 — The notes on pages 43 to 232 are an integral part of these consolidated
B o financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

#Z%E2019412 A31H |L4FZ For the year ended 31 December 2019
(LAB® T JLhI%517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

RERTRAEMGEE
Attributable to the shareholders of the Bank
o
BEEMIA
A  HinfEE  REEF  Additional
Share Other  Retained equity EZAF
capital reserves earnings instruments Total equity
201951 1B &8 Balance at 1 January 2019 6,200,000 812,021 18,455,241 898,587 26,365,849
MinE R BB SRS ER Changes on initial application of
F165% 22 HKFRS 16 - - (9,817) - (9,817)
&E5,22019F1 818 Restated balance at
35 1 January 2019 6,200,000 812,021 18,445,424 898,587 26,356,032
FEHR Profit for the year - - 2,215270 - 2215270
FEEMEERE Other comprehensive income for the year - 188,634 - = 188,634
PARRIE S (AR 1E & Provision for equity-settled
ETREN 2 Bt share-based compensation - 1,406 - = 1,406
BIMERITTAZ Distribution payment of additional
IREFIE equity instruments - - (41,682) - (41,682)
PR (ERERRES - B3 A EE Reclassification of net change in
NFEFEEEEERA fair value of equity instruments
g el Yol Sk at fair value through other
TREZRATVEEEHFE comprehensive income upon
(Br7i1%) derecognition, net of tax = - - - _
2018F KRR S 2018 final dividend - - (452,600) - (452,600)
2019F R HIR B 2019 interim dividend - - (182,900) - (182,900)
201912831 B4 Balance at 31 December 2019 6,200,000 1,002,061 19,983,512 898,587 28,084,160

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HZE2019F12 31 H L FZ (4) For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Continued)
(LABBETth57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

ARITH R FE (L
Attributable to the shareholders of the Bank

LS
BT A
BA  EfuE  RER&F  Additional
Share Other  Retained equity  EmART
capital reserves earnings instruments Total equity
20181 A1 H &% Balance at 1 January 2018 6,200,000 1,368,751 17,649,790 898,587 26,117,128
MinE R BB SRS ER Changes on initial application
EO5 2 EH) of HKFRS 9 - 50,626 (380,254) - (329,628)
s RE B s 2R Impact of initial application of
LN NG| HKFRS 9 on share of an associate
7 = 25,445 (284,490) - (259,045)
&E5|,2201841 A1H Restated balance at
Fe 1 January 2018 6,200,000 1,444,822 16,985,046 898,587 25,528,455
FERF Profit for the year - - 2,140,659 - 2,140,659
FEHMEEESE Other comprehensive loss
for the year - (648,752) - - (648,752)
PARRAESZ (ST ARR IR 1E Provision for equity-settled
AT 2 B share-based compensation - 1,420 - - 1,420
BIMERIETA 2 Distribution payment of additional
IREETIE equity instruments - = (39,033) - (39,033)
b’AiM:ﬁEuZJ K EXHHR Reclassification of net change in
NFEFEREZHHA fair value of equity instruments
E{&i@ﬂﬂlﬁﬁ’\ﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁ’li at fair value through other
TAZAFEESFE comprehensive income upon
(BHi12) derecognition, net of tax - 14,531 (14,531) - -
2017 REHR S 2017 final dividend - - (434,000) - (434,000)
2018F AR AR B 2018 interim dividend - - (182,900) - (182,900)
201812 A31 B &% Balance at 31 December 2018 6,200,000 812,021 18,455,241 898,587 26,365,849
FASEHEF2RH 2 W I AIRA IS HwET 2 — The notes on pages 43 to 232 are an integral part of these consolidated
5 o financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

#Z%E2019412 A31H |L4FZ For the year ended 31 December 2019
(ABEET h%7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

42

(!

Note 2019 2018
RETH2HERE Cash flows from operating activities
KEEBRA(FTR) RS FE Net cash from/(used in) operating activities 40(a) 10,295,517  (2,870,440)
RETEZEHERE Cash flows from investing activities
BEAMETEEE Purchase of other fixed assets (101,593) (173,833)
HEH M EEEEMSHIA Proceeds from disposal of other fixed assets 927 134
REEBMAR &8 Net cash used in investing activities (100,666) (173,699)
RMETE2HERE Cash flows from financing activities
BITIREETS Issue of subordinated notes 40(c) 1,753,426 =
BERREBY Repayment of subordinated notes 40(c) (1,765,339) —
e Ebin 2 MERK Principal element of lease payments (177,895) =
RIMER M T A 2 REFIE Distribution payment on additional equity
instrument (41,682) (89,033)
SNEBBITRERKRER Interest paid on subordinated notes
BH LB and debt securities issued 40(c) (291,958) (293,730)
K EEERARAR S Dividends paid on ordinary shares (635,500) (616,900)
BEEBTAR ST Net cash used in financing activities (1,158,948) (949,663)
ReRERRLER LM, Net increase/(decrease) in cash
(m2)REE and cash equivalents 9,035,903 (3,993,802)
FURERERKRLIEE Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the year 15,417,604 19,545,608
MESREAE 7 52 Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (30,614) (134,202)
ERAERERRELER Cash and cash equivalents at end
of the year 40(b) 24,422,893 15,417,604
FA3E B F 2328 7 M zE T B EmER 2 — The notes on pages 43 to 232 are an integral part of these consolidated
5 o financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

1. —RER

RIRITERAT ([ARIT ) BEK B R (518
[REEDERS  BFARPEREHRTERT B
FIRTT R EAL AR 2 BARTS

KRT—HEDTEBEMAOE@EE - Tt
BEBEFETITIE1085% Y A L3618 -

RRITZBEEERARAARTEREBEFRAF
(TR#FR D AFR B ETRF -

BB A ERRN 0 AR A B SRR A B T oL
PR - WE 202053 A24 B ES S & F3EK -

2. IEETHERHE

AT BEERAERRARA L TR SR -
BRRAEAIN  EREMBFEMRAE 2 -

21 mEEE

AEBzHGEUBRRRREEGHAMAE(E
BEIMAE ) BEMZMAERET BN BRE
E([FEM RS ER ] - RREREERNER
NEBUBREER BEGFE(HES
EADAREREBZGHE) BEEEERN IR
RAIRBER RGP 622 MimR -

ARG ISR IRIBE LN ATERERE - I
MIRAFEIIRZRE BEREME - UATFE
SFEREEFF ARBEEKE (AR FEFE
BHEEHFTAHMEZERSE DNESRMEE  HF
BEEAgZERMEERSRABMARTFETE
BEBFHFABENEREERSRBE(REN
ETR)ZBfMEHTE -

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Dah Sing Bank, Limited (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) provide retail banking, commercial banking and related
financial services in Hong Kong, Macau, and the People’s Republic of
China.

The Bank is a financial institution incorporated in Hong Kong. The
address of its registered office is 36th Floor, Everbright Centre, 108
Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The ultimate holding company is Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited
(“DSFH”), a listed company in Hong Kong.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of Hong Kong dollars (HK$’000), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 24 March 2020.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the reporting years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs” is a collective term which includes all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of investment
properties, financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI”), financial assets and financial liabilities held for
trading, and financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative
instruments) at fair value through profit or loss, which are carried at fair

value.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ T JThI%17R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in applying the Group’s
accounting policies. Changes in assumptions may have a significant
impact on the financial statements in the period the assumptions
changed. Management believes that the underlying assumptions
are appropriate and that the Group’s financial statements therefore
present the financial position and results fairly. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements
are disclosed in Note 4.

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

The Group has applied the following standards and amendments
for the first time for their annual reporting period commencing 1
January 2019:

. HKFRS 16, “Leases”

o Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation —
Amendments to HKFRS 9

° Annual Improvements to HKFRS Standards 2015 - 2017
Cycle.



MRS R MY ot
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. FEHBEHME@® 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
21 wREEE@) 2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
() ZKEBERA 2 # RN ER () (a New and amended standards adopted by the

(1) EBEBRUBH/EERE165:(H
)

AREBDEPE201991 51 B R4
BEATIHREEAFE165(AE) - 1
TEXE RN 2 5 T8 BB AR SRR T &
F52018F R EZ LLEBH T - HUR
BHEER| 2 BN OB R AR
RR2019F1 1B 2B EAER
A o FEETBERNMIEE2.21 K5 -

NS BT HREERIF165RE - A
SRR BERBBGHENFEI7R
(HEYZRAISBAMCERE | 2M
ERAEEEERE - ZZBEKRT
2 FE % IE A ARR20194F
1A1B ZEE BRI EREB MG 231
B2 - BARAEEEREEAZ
THEBBEMIMSEERE - 120194
1A1BENT2.4%=5.8% °

Group (Continued)

(1) HKFRS 16, “Leases”

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16, “Leases”
retrospectively from 1 January 2019, but has not restated
comparatives for the 2018 reporting period, as permitted
under the specific transition provisions in the standard.
The reclassifications and the adjustments arising from the
new leasing rules are therefore recognised in the opening
balance sheet on 1 January 2019. The new accounting
policies are disclosed in note 2.21.

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognised lease
liabilities in relation to leases which had previously been
classified as “operating leases” under the principles of
HKAS 17, “Leases”. These liabilities were measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted
using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate as of 1
January 2019. The incremental borrowing rates applied to
the lease liabilities of the Group, as lessees, ranged from
2.4% to 5.8% on 1 January 2019.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ T JThI%17R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
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2. FEEHEHREEMEm@
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(@) New and amended standards adopted by the
Group (Continued)

1)

HKFRS 16, “Leases” (Continued)

(i) Practical expedients applied

In applying HKFRS 16 for the first time, the Group
has used the following practical expedients
permitted by the standard:

° applying a single discount rate to a portfolio of
leases with reasonably similar characteristics;

° relying on previous assessments on whether
leases are onerous as an alternative to
performing an impairment review — there were
no onerous contracts as at 1 January 2019;

o accounting for operating leases with a
remaining lease term of less than 12 months as
at 1 January 2019 as short-term leases;

° excluding initial direct costs for the
measurement of the right-of-use asset at the
date of initial application; and

. using hindsight in determining the lease term
where the contract contains options to extend
or terminate the lease.

The Group has also elected not to reassess
whether a contract is, or contains a lease at the
date of initial application. Instead, for contracts
entered into before the transition date, the Group
relied on its assessment made and applied HKAS
17 and Interpretation 4, “Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease”.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. FESTHEHBE@

21 HmBEEE@m
() KREBHRAY 2 3 RASAEETER ()

1

ERMBHEERE1657GE
)

(i) HEEBEZFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(@) New and amended standards adopted by the

Group (Continued)

(1) HKFRS 16, “Leases” (Continued)

(i)  Measurement of lease liabilities

2019
R2018F 12831 B E 2 Operating lease commitments disclosed
LEERE as at 31 December 2018 1,294,532
BEBRAAEARVIGEABRZ Discount using the lessee’s incremental
g E E A RANIR borrowing rate at the date of initial application (131,075)
kR - REREER A HZ Less: short-term leases or low-value leases recognised
HEEEEEERE on a straight-line basis as expense (935)
Nk - BEELBEDRARZ Less: lease agreements that have been
HEER contracted for but not yet commenced (444,139)
Nk - BERRRIDEREETE Less: adjustments as a result of a different treatment
ZBRIBTTES| B2 R of extension and termination options (180,122)
R2019F1 A1EERZHERE Lease liabilities recognised as at 1 January 2019

(i) FHEBEEEZ:E
HEAZERBREE R XA
S A I 42 3B W B R TE T
REERYERERMTE

(i)  Measurement of right-of-use assets

538,261

The associated right-of-use assets are related
to property leases which were measured on a
retrospective basis as if the new rules had always
been applied.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ T JThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
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2. FEEHEHREEMEm@ 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(FF) KEBRM 2 HTRASNEETER (%)

(1) EBEBRUBH/EERE165:(H
&)@

(iv) R2019%F1A1H 244
B A TR AR 2 53

SETBUR 2 B E R BRN2019%F
TA1BZREMBRREAT
JIEE :

e EHAEAE-EM
523,787,000/ 7T

T
~

=
7

e T 4 E B - R
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21 wREEE@) 2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the
Group (Continued)

(1) HKFRS 16, “Leases” (Continued)

(iv)  Adjustments recognised in the statement of
financial position on 1 January 2019

The changes in accounting policy affected the
following items in the statement of financial position
on 1 January 2019:

o Right-of-use assets - increased by
HK$523,787,000

° Prepayments — decreased by HK$647,000

° Accounts payable - decreased by
HK$5,304,000

° Lease liabilities - increased by
HK$538,261,000

The net impact on retained earnings on 1 January
2019 was a decrease of HK$9,817,000 .

(v)  Lessor accounting

The Group did not need to make any adjustments
to the accounting for assets held as lessor under
operating leases as a result of the adoption of
HKFRS 16.

(b) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have
been published that are not mandatory for 31 December 2019
reporting periods and have not been early adopted by the Group.
These standards are not expected to have a material impact
on the Group in the current or future reporting periods and on
foreseeable future transactions.
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2. FEEHBE#SEm@ 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

22 HMEMKEHRER 2.2 Consolidation

AP HRRBIEANRITREMENBRAREE The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements

12 A31 8 1E 2 IRk © of the Bank and all its subsidiaries made up to 31 December.
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(a) Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which
the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the
Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to
the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control

ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for business combinations by the Group. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values
of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related
costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis,
the Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over
the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and previously
held interest measured is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the statement
of comprehensive income.
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2.2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)
(a) Subsidiaries (Continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in
the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

(b) Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests
as transactions with equity holders of the Bank. For purchases
from non-controlling interests, the difference between any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests
are also recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest
in the entity is remeasured to its fair value, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are

reclassified to profit or loss.
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2.2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)
(c) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting and
are initially recognised at cost. The Group’s investment in an
associate includes goodwill (net of any accumulated impairment

loss) identified on acquisition.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits
or losses is recognised in the income statement, and its share
of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in
reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are
adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless
it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associates.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is
any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is
impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of
the associate and its carrying value and recognises the amount
adjacent to “share of results of an associate” in the income

statement.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses in associate are recognised in the
income statement.

In the Bank’s statement of financial position, the investments
in associates are stated at cost less provision for impairment
losses. The results of associates are accounted for by the Bank
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)
(d) Jointly controlled entities

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby the Group
and other parties undertake an economic activity, which is
subject to joint control and none of the participating parties has
unilateral control over the economic activity.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities
are accounted for using equity method of accounting. The
consolidated income statement includes the Group’s share
of the results of jointly controlled entities for the year, and the
consolidated statement of financial position includes the Group’s
share of the net assets of the jointly controlled entities.

2.3 Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement
for all debt instruments measured at amortised cost and fair value
through other comprehensive income using the effective interest
method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the
interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the
effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment
options) but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation
includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to
the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been
written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is
recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Fee and commission income and expense

Fee and commission income from contracts with customers is
measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a
customer. The Group recognises revenue when it transfers control
over a service to a customer.

Fees for ongoing account management, custody services and other
servicing fees that are continuously provided over an extended period
of time are recognised on systematic basis over the period the service is
provided.

Revenue related to transaction-based arrangements such as
interchange, broking services and import or export services is
recognised at the point in time when the transaction takes place.

2.5 Dividend income

Dividends are recognised in the income statement when the Group’s
right to receive payment is established.

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities
Measurement methods
Amortised cost and effective interest rate

The amortised cost is the amount at which the financial asset or
financial liability is measured at initial recognition minus the principal
repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the
effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount
and the maturity amount and, for financial assets, adjusted for any loss
allowance.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
Measurement methods (Continued)
Amortised cost and effective interest rate (Continued)

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset (i.e. its amortised cost before any impairment allowance)
or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. The calculation does
not consider expected credit losses and includes transaction costs,
premiums or discounts and fees and points paid or received that are
integral to the effective interest rate, such as origination fees. For
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets (assets that
are credit-impaired at initial recognition) the Group calculates the
credit-adjusted effective interest rate, which is calculated based on
the amortised cost of the financial asset instead of its gross carrying
amount and incorporates the impact of expected credit losses in
estimated future cash flows.

When the Group revises the estimates of future cash flows, the
carrying amount of the respective financial assets or financial liability
is adjusted to reflect the new estimate discounted using the original
effective interest rate. Any changes are recognised in profit or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
Measurement methods (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell
the asset.

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset or financial
liability at its fair value plus or minus, in the case of a financial asset
or financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are incremental and directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of the financial asset or financial liability, such as fees and
commissions. Transaction costs of financial assets and financial
liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in
profit or loss. Immediately after initial recognition, an expected credit
loss (“ECL”) allowance is recognised for financial assets measured
at amortised cost and investments in debt instruments measured at
FVOCI which results in an accounting loss being recognised in profit or
loss when an asset is newly originated.

When the fair value of financial assets and liabilities differs from the
transaction price on initial recognition, the Group recognises the
difference as follows:

(@  When the fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active
market for an identical asset or liability (i.e. a Level 1 input)
or based on a valuation technique that uses only data from
observable markets, the difference is recognised as a gain or
loss.

(b) In all other cases, the difference is deferred and the timing of
recognition of deferred day one profit or loss is determined
individually. It is either amortised over the life of the instrument,
deferred until the instrument’s fair value can be determined using
market observable inputs, or realised through settlement.
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DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Financial assets

(i) Classification and subsequent measurement

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

. Fair value through profit or loss (including held for trading);

° Fair value through other comprehensive income; or

. Amortised cost.

The classification requirements for debt and equity instruments
are described below:

Debt instruments

Debt instruments are those instruments that meet the definition
of a financial liability from the issuer’s perspective, such as
loans, government and corporate bonds and trade receivables
purchased from clients in factoring arrangements.

Classification and subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depend on:

o the Group’s business model for managing the asset; and

o the cash flow characteristics of the asset.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
(i) Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued)

Based on these factors, the Group classifies its debt instruments
into one of the following three measurement categories:

° Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”), and
that are not designated at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVPL”), are measured at amortised cost. The carrying
amount of these assets is adjusted by any ECL allowance
recognised and measured as described in section (ii)
below. Interest income from these financial assets is
calculated using the effective interest rate method.

° FVOCI: Financial assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling the assets,
where the assets’ cash flows represent SPPI, and that
are not designated at FVPL, are measured at FVOCI.
Movements in the carrying amount are taken through other
comprehensive income (“OCI”), except for the recognition
of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign
exchange gains and losses on the instrument’s amortised
cost which are recognised in profit or loss. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss. Interest income from these financial assets is
calculated using the effective interest rate method.

° FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a
debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVPL
and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in
profit or loss and presented in the income statement in the
period in which it arises.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

(i) Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued)

Business model: the business model reflects how the Group
manages the assets in order to generate cash flows. That is,
whether the Group’s objective is solely to collect the contractual
cash flows from the assets or is to collect both the contractual
cash flows and cash flows arising from the sale of assets. If
neither of these is applicable (e.g. financial assets are held for
trading purposes), then the financial assets are classified as
part of “other” business model and measured at FVPL. Factors
considered by the Group in determining the business model for
a group of assets include past experience on how the cash flows
for these assets were collected, how the asset’s performance
is evaluated and reported to key management personnel,
how risks are assessed and managed and how managers are
compensated. Securities held for trading are held principally for
the purpose of selling in the near term or are part of a portfolio
of financial instruments that are managed together and for which
there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking. These securities are classified in the “other” business
model and measured at FVPL.

SPPI: Where the business model is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows or to collect contractual cash flows and
sell, the Group assesses whether the financial instruments’ cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest (the
“SPPI test”). In making this assessment, the Group considers
whether the contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic
lending arrangement (i.e. interest includes only consideration
for the time value of money, credit risk, other basic lending
risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending
arrangement). Where the contractual terms introduce exposure
to risk or volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending
arrangement, the related financial asset is classified and
measured at FVPL.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are
SPPI.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

(i) Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued)

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when
its business model for managing those assets changes. The
reclassification takes place from the start of the first reporting
period following the change. Such changes are expected to be
very infrequent and none occurred during the period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments are instruments that meet the definition of
equity from the issuer’s perspective; that is, instruments that do
not contain a contractual obligation to pay and that evidence a
residual interest in the issuer’s net assets. Examples of equity
instruments include basic ordinary shares.

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at
fair value through profit or loss, except where the Group’s
management has elected, at initial recognition, to irrevocably
designate an equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income. When this election is used, fair value
gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss, including on disposal. Dividends,
when representing a return on such investments, continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Group’s
right to receive payments is established.

Gains and losses on equity investments at FVPL are included in
the “Net trading income” in the income statement.
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(i) Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the ECL
associated with its debt instrument assets carried at amortised
cost and FVOCI and with the exposure arising from loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts. The Group
recognises a loss allowance for such losses at each reporting
date. The measurement of ECL reflects:

° An unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes;

° The time value of money; and

o Reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort at the reporting date about
past events, current conditions and forecasts of future

economic conditions.

Impairment allowance of financial assets measured at amortised
cost is presented as a deduction from the gross carrying amount
of the assets. Impairment allowance of loan commitments and
financial guarantee contracts is recognised as a provision as
part of “Other accounts and accruals”. The carrying amount of
debt instruments measured at FVOCI is their fair value. Their
impairment allowance is recognised as part of “Investment

revaluation reserve”.

Note 3.2.2 provides more detail of how the ECL allowance is

measured.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

(iii)  Modification of loans

The Group sometimes renegotiates or otherwise modifies
the contractual cash flows of loans to customers. When this
happens, the Group assesses whether or not the new terms are
substantially different to the original terms. The Group does this
by considering, among others, the following factors:

. If the borrower is in financial difficulty, whether the
modification merely reduces the contractual cash flows to
amounts the borrower is expected to be able to pay.

° Whether any substantial new terms are introduced, such as
a profit share/equity-based return that substantially affects
the risk profile of the loan.

° Significant extension of the loan term when the borrower is
not in financial difficulty.

° Significant change in the interest rate.

o Change in the currency the loan is denominated in.

° Insertion of collateral, other security or credit
enhancements that significantly affect the credit risk
associated with the loan.

If the terms are substantially different, the Group derecognises
the original financial asset and recognises a “new” asset at
fair value and recalculates a new effective interest rate for the
asset. The date of renegotiation is consequently considered
to be the date of initial recognition for impairment calculation
purposes, including for the purpose of determining whether a
significant increase in credit risk has occurred. However, the
Group also assesses whether the new financial asset recognised
is deemed to be credit-impaired at initial recognition, especially
in circumstances where the renegotiation was driven by the
debtor being unable to make the originally agreed payments.
Differences in the carrying amount are also recognised in profit
or loss as a gain or loss on derecognition.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

(iii)  Modification of loans (Continued)

If the terms are not substantially different, the renegotiation or
modification does not result in derecognition, and the Group
recalculates the gross carrying amount based on the revised
cash flows of the financial asset and recognises a modification
gain or loss in profit or loss. The new gross carrying amount
is recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows at the
original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest
rate for purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets).

(iv) Derecognition other than on a modification

Financial assets, or a portion thereof, are derecognised when
the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the assets
have expired, or when they have been transferred and either
(i) the Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership, or (ii) the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and the
Group has not retained control.

The Group enters into transactions where it retains the
contractual rights to receive cash flows from assets but assumes
a contractual obligation to pay those cash flows to other entities
and transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards. These
transactions are accounted for as “pass through” transfers that
result in derecognition if the Group:

° Has no obligation to make payments unless it collects

WESNREZEE equivalent amounts from the assets;
. WP ENEREE & . Is prohibited from selling or pledging the assets; and
o BEATEESERNEE NELKRE & . Has an obligation to remit any cash it collects from the

EZEMRE o
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assets without material delay.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

(iv) Derecognition other than on a modification (Continued)

Collateral (shares and bonds) furnished by the Group under
standard repurchase agreements and securities lending and
borrowing transactions are not derecognised because the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards on the basis of the
predetermined repurchase price, and the criteria for derecognition
are therefore not met. This also applies to certain securitisation
transactions in which the Group retains a subordinated residual
interest.

When the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the
assets have been transferred, and the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership,
and the Group has retained control of the transferred assets, the
Group applies continuing involvement approach.

Under this approach, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvement
and recognise the associated liability, to reflect the rights and
obligations retained by the Group. The net carrying amount of
the transferred asset and associated liability is: (a) the amortised
cost of the rights and obligations retained by the Group, if the
transferred asset is measured at amortised cost; or (b) equal to
the fair value of the rights and obligations retained by the Group
when measured on a stand-alone basis, if the transferred asset is

measured at fair value.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
Financial liabilities
(i) Classification and subsequent measurement

In both the current and prior period, financial liabilities are
classified as subsequently measured at amortised cost, except
for:

o Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:
this classification is applied to derivatives, financial
liabilities held for trading (e.g. short positions in the
trading booking) and other financial liabilities designated
as such at initial recognition. Gains or losses on financial
liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss are
presented partially in other comprehensive income (the
amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability
that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability, which is determined as the amount that is not
attributable to changes in market conditions that give rise
to market risk) and partially profit or loss (the remaining
amount of change in the fair value of the liability). This is
unless such a presentation would create, or enlarge, an
accounting mismatch, in which case the gains and losses
attributable to changes in the credit risk of the liability are
also presented in profit or loss;

o Financial liabilities arising from the transfer of financial
assets which did not qualify for derecognition, or when
the continuing involvement approach applies. When the
transfer of financial asset did not qualify for derecognition,
a financial liability is recognised for the consideration
received for the transfer. In subsequent periods, the Group
recognises any expense incurred on the financial liability;
when continuing involvement approach applies; and

° Financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

(i) Derecognition

Financial liabilities are derecognised when they are extinguished
(i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires).

The exchange between the Group and its original lenders of
debt instruments with substantially different terms, as well
as substantial modifications of the terms of existing financial
liabilities, are accounted for as an extinguishment of the original
financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability.
The terms are substantially different if the discounted present
value of the cash flows under the new terms, including any
fees paid net of any fees received and discounted using the
original effective interest rate, is at least 10% different from the
discounted present value of the remaining cash flows of the
original financial liability. In addition, other qualitative factors,
such as the currency that the instrument is denominated in,
changes in the type of interest rate, new conversion features
attached to the instrument and change in covenants are also
taken into consideration. If an exchange of debt instruments or
modification of terms is accounted for as an extinguishment, any
costs or fees incurred are recognised as part of the gain or loss
on the extinguishment. If the exchange or modification is not
accounted for as an extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred
adjust the carrying amount of the liability and are amortised over
the remaining term of the modified liability.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due,
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Such financial
guarantees are given to banks, financial institutions and others on
behalf of customers to secure loans, overdrafts and other banking
facilities.

Financial guarantee contracts are initially measured at fair value and
subsequently measured at the higher of:

° The amount of the loss allowance; and

° The fee received on initial recognition less income recognised in
accordance with the principles of HKFRS 15.

Loan commitments provided by the Group are measured as the
amount of the loss allowance. The Group has not provided any
commitment to provide loans at a below-market interest rate, or that
can be settled net in cash or by delivering or issuing another financial
instrument.

For loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, the loss
allowance is recognised as a provision. However, for contracts that
include both a loan and an undrawn commitment and the Group
cannot separately identify the expected credit losses on the undrawn
commitment component from those on the loan component, the
expected credit losses on the undrawn commitment are recognised
together with the loss allowance for the loan. To the extent that the
combined expected credit losses exceed the gross carrying amount of
the loan, the expected credit losses are recognised as a provision.



MRS R MY ot
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. FEEHEHREEMEm@

2.8 FTETAER¥HES

PTETASZYRITETAGHZ AEAFE
R HRRATEENE - ENTETANRQ
FERLHE WERBEEAK : EATEREA
2 AtERBEAR -

FLEDTA T ARARKE K (PIAN PR E SR 2
HIHE) - MENA MBS Z IR REREE
AR ER Bl e REERD R FHERE
WIEDBEGERE - B ARITETAEER
ERIPTAE TAFEIR W -

o HEEMEREREEAHIEZIMEE

o  AAMEREHRZENTAKGEITETAZ

EE K

o REBHNMIFHRARFEF 2 EHEE A

1BaRat

o

feln

BRASEREREBEEZRERNANR/ARFEFER
HEFF ARSI - WEARITETATIRAF
EDRAARK - EAFENESNKSRAER

RAFEEREKEROIDEBURNZITETA
ERREERTEERRE T TA - IEERIZA
BURESIHRIER 2ME - AEBRES TITAT
ARCEREELREREE I AE A FHENS
HPTE(RFELM) -

ANER BN RTSL B T ROk 8 M IR B ST T
AR YERERREERRIETETSH
R ZH) R o REE TR FIE MR AR E
AR R Z0ITE TARTHHHA FEE
BRREBIEH RS -

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Derivative and hedging activities

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured
at fair value. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is
positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative.

Certain derivatives are embedded in hybrid contracts, such as
the conversion option in a convertible bond If the hybrid contract
contains a host that is a financial asset, then the Group assesses the
entire contract as described in the financial assets section above for
classification and measurement purposes. Otherwise, the embedded
derivatives are treated as separate derivatives when:

° Their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related
to those of the host contract;

. A separate instrument with the same terms would meet the
definition of a derivative; and

° The hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit
or loss.

These embedded derivatives are separately accounted for at fair value,
with changes in fair value recognised in the income statement unless
the Group chooses to designate the hybrid contracts at fair value
through profit or loss.

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss depends
on whether the derivative is designated and qualifies as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Group
designates certain derivatives as hedges of the fair value of recognised
assets or liabilities or firm commitments (fair value hedges).

The Group documents, at the inception of the hedge, the relationship
between hedged items and hedging instruments, as well as its risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge
transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both at
hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives
that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting
changes in fair values of hedged items.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Derivative and hedging activities (Continued)

(a) Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and
qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the income statement
under “Net trading income — Net gain/(loss) arising from financial
instruments subject to fair value hedge”, together with any
changes in the fair value of the hedged asset that are attributable
to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting,
the adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged item for
which the effective interest method is used is amortised to
profit or loss over the period to maturity. The adjustment to
the carrying value of a hedged equity security and remains in
retained earnings until the disposal of the hedged item.

(b) Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge
accounting

Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge
accounting. Changes in the fair value of any derivative instrument
that does not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised
immediately in the income statement under “Net trading
income”. For derivatives that are managed in conjunction with
designated financial assets or financial liabilities, the gains and
losses arising from changes in their fair value are included under
“Net trading income — Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments at
fair value through profit or loss”.

2.9 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in
the statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent
on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of
business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Bank or the counterparty.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Sale and repurchase agreements

The liability to counterparties in respect of securities sold subject
to repurchase agreements (“repos”) is included in amounts due to
other banks, deposits from banks, or other accounts and accruals,
as appropriate. Securities purchased under agreements to resell
(“reverse repos”) are recorded as loans and advances to other banks
or customers, as appropriate. The difference between the sale and
repurchase price is treated as interest and accrued over the life of
the agreements using the effective interest method. Securities lent to
counterparties are also retained in the financial statements.

Securities borrowed are not recognised in the financial statements,
unless these are sold to third parties, in which case the purchases and
sales are recorded with the gain or loss included in trading income.
The obligation to return them is recorded at fair value as a trading
liability.

2.11 Repossessed assets

Loans on which collateral assets have been repossessed are not
derecognised and are carried in the statement of financial position with
appropriate amounts of impairment allowances made. In the case of
delinquent loans on which collateral assets have been foreclosed and
repossessed by the Group pursuant to legal arrangements or court
orders, and with the legal title of the assets having been passed to the
Group, such loans are derecognised. The foreclosed assets held for
resale are included in “Advances and other accounts — Other assets”.

2.12 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The
chief operating decision maker is the person or group of persons that
allocates resources to and assesses the performance of the operating
segments of an entity. The Group has determined the Chief Executive
and members of the Executive Committee (“EC”) as its chief operating
decision maker.

All transactions between operating segments are conducted on an
arm’s length basis, with inter-segment revenues and costs being
eliminated on consolidation. Income and expenses directly associated
with each segment are included in determining operating segment
performance.
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DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Segment reporting (Continued)

Based on the requirements of HKFRS 8, the Group has the following
segments: Personal Banking, Commercial Banking, Treasury, Overseas
Banking and Others.

2.13 Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in HK dollars, which is the Group’s presentation
currency and the functional and presentation currency of the
Bank and major part of the Group.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency of the relevant entity using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement.

All foreign exchange gains and losses recognised in the income
statement are presented net in the income statement within the
corresponding item. Foreign exchange gains and losses on other
comprehensive income items are presented in the statement of
comprehensive income within the corresponding item.

In the case of changes in the fair value of foreign currency
denominated monetary assets classified as FVOCI, a distinction
is made between translation differences resulting from changes
in amortised cost of the assets and other changes in the carrying
amount of the assets. Translation differences related to changes
in the amortised cost are recognised in the income statement,
and those related to changes in the carrying amount, except for
impairment, are recognised in equity.



MRS R MY ot
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

213

SHERUE@

INEIRE ()
(Z) XBRAEE @)

FEKMIRR - B AR TFEAEARE
B ABRNRATAERSE - B EZE)
ERAHERSEHER L —BN2% - %—
FEHMIRR - WBRRAUAFEFERR
BEE AREMERANENEREE 2 EEE
7 HEEZRAAREANKRESHE
fa o

() EBET A4

FrETREEREESEBTRNEE TS
(B IEBBIREE 2 %) 2 5 E Rk
MIRAT AR RE BE5E

) BUBRAKRMEINZEERBER
BRSO 2R 2 e B A T B K i
g

(i) BUER ARSI 195 F i
B (Wt FHELIFZER S A R
TEXNRERRZEEOH - A
X HARR 5 AERBRE) K

@iy FTERBERBERAESEAN—E
BIEE o

FitiEIRE A 2 M R = RN s R
HiFERIATZ25H -

RiFARER  RERIIMBFREMES
ZAMMERE - HIABRRERIRA o HEINE
BRHLE - ZFABRERRIELERSZ
BB e Sk B IR e AR A HERR o

EEE RN AL Y BB RATERE -
WEEREN B AERABEE WK
WAz ERRY -

213

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(b) Transactions and balances (Continued)

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as
investments in equity instruments held at fair value through
profit or loss, are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation difference on certain other non-monetary items, such
as equities classified as FVOCI, are included in the investment
revaluation reserve in equity.

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group’s entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that statement of financial position;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a
separate component of equity.

Exchange differences arising from the above processes are
reported in shareholders’ equity under “Exchange reserve”.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities are taken to
shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are recognised in the income statement as
part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of

a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.14 Premises and other fixed assets

Premises comprise mainly offices and shops. Leasehold land classified
as finance lease and all other fixed assets are stated at historical cost
less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are expensed in the income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences amortisation
from the time when the land interest becomes available for its intended
use. Amortisation on leasehold land classified as finance lease and
depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their cost to their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, as follows:
- Premises Over the remaining period of lease
- Furniture, fittings, equipment Over the estimated useful lives

and motor vehicles generally between 3 and 10
years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at each end of the reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.17).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in the income

statement.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.15 Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the companies in the
consolidated Group, is classified as investment property.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related

transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair value. Fair
value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any
difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific asset. If
this information is not available, the Group uses alternative valuation
methods such as recent prices on less active markets or discounted
cash flow projections. These valuations are performed in accordance
with the guidance issued by the International Valuation Standards
Committee. These valuations are reviewed annually by external
valuers. Investment property that is being redeveloped for continuing
use as investment property, or for which the market has become less

active, continues to be measured at fair value.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other things,
rental income from current leases and assumptions about rental

income from future leases in the light of current market conditions.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the income statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the income statement.
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DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.15 Investment properties (Continued)

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as premises and other fixed assets, and its fair value at the date of
reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes.

If an item of premises and other fixed assets becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference resulting
between the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the
date of transfer is recognised in equity as a revaluation of premises
and other fixed assets under HKAS 16. However, if a fair value gain
reverses a previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the
income statement.

2.16 Goodwill and intangible assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the acquiree as at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is
carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested annually for impairment. Impairment losses on goodwill are not
reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of
impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-generating
units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the business combination on which the goodwill arose.

Intangible assets arising from an acquisition are recognised separately
from goodwill when they are separable or arise from contractual or
other legal rights, and their value can be measured reliably. They
include core deposits, contracts and customer relationships intangible
assets, and trade names. Intangible assets are stated at cost less
amortisation, and/or accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is
calculated based on estimated useful life ranging from 5 to 12 years
using a diminishing balance method.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Impairment of goodwill, intangible assets and non-
financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or are not yet available for use
are not subject to amortisation, but are tested annually for impairment.
Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicated that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels (cash-generating units) for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows. Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at each reporting date.

In the Bank’s financial statements, impairment testing of the investment
in a subsidiary or an associate is also required upon receiving dividend
from that entity if the dividend exceeds the Bank’s share of the total
comprehensive income of that entity concerned in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of that entity in the
Bank’s statement of financial position exceeds the Bank’s share of
the carrying amount of that entity’s net assets including goodwill in its
consolidated statement of financial position.

2.18 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised directly in other comprehensive income. In
such case, the tax is recognised in other comprehensive income within
the corresponding item.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantially enacted at the end of the reporting
period in the countries where the Bank and the subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period
and that are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised. The tax effects of income tax
losses available for carry forward are recognised as an asset when it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
these losses can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax related to investment properties is measured
according to the tax consequence on the presumption that they are
recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred income tax related to fair value re-measurement of financial
assets at FVOCI, which is charged or credited directly to equity, is also
credited or charged directly to equity and is subsequently recognised
in the income statement upon the realisation of relevant investments.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Employee benefits
(a) Pension obligations

The Group offers a mandatory provident fund scheme and a
number of defined contribution plans, the assets of which are
generally held in separate trustee-administered funds. These
pension plans are funded by payments from employees and by
the relevant Group companies.

The Group’s contributions to the mandatory provident fund
schemes and defined contribution retirement schemes are
expensed as incurred. Other than mandatory provident fund
contribution, the Group’s contributions may be reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave prior to
vesting fully in the contributions.

(b) Share-based compensation

The Group has the choice to pay the intrinsic value of the share
option or to issue new shares to a grantee at the date of exercise
under the share-based compensation plans. The total amount to
be expensed over the vesting period is determined by reference
to the fair value according to settlement type.

For cash-settled share-based compensation, the total cost is the
fair value of the options granted, with re-measurement at each
reporting period with any change in the cost recognised in the
income statement, with a corresponding credit or adjustment to
the “Liabilities”.

For equity-settled share-based compensation, the total cost is
measured and recognised based on the fair value of the equity
options at the grant date, with a corresponding credit to the
“Shared-based compensation reserve” in the shareholders’
funds. The total cost, which is fixed based on the fair value at
the grant date, is charged to income statement in accordance
with the terms of the vesting of the options over time. When
the options are exercised, the holding company will issue new
shares to settle its obligation, and transfer applicable amount
from the “Share-based compensation reserve” to the “Share
capital” account.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Employee benefits (Continued)
(c) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave and long service leave
as a result of services rendered by employees up to the end of
the reporting period.

(d) Bonus plans

Liabilities for bonus plans due wholly within twelve months after
the end of the reporting period are recognised when the Group
has a present or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation
can be made.

2.20 Provisions

Provisions for restructuring costs and legal claims are recognised
when: the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as
a result of past events; it is more likely than not that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount
has been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions comprise lease
termination penalties and employee termination payments. Provisions
are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership were not transferred to the Group as lessee were classified
as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of
any incentives received from the lessor) were charged to profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

From 1 January 2019, leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is
available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and non-
lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices. However,
for leases of real estate for which the Group is a lessee, it has elected
not to separate lease and non-lease components and instead accounts
for these as a single lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of
the following lease payments:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any
lease incentives receivable

o variable lease payment that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the

commencement date, if any

° amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual

value guarantees, if any

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably
certain to exercise that option, and

° payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Leases (Continued)

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally
the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay
to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to
the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar
terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

. where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the
individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes
in financing conditions since third party financing was received

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate
adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the Group, which does
not have recent third party financing, and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country,
currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The
finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

° any lease payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received

° any initial direct costs, and

o restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Payments associated with short-term leases and all leases of low-
value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense
in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12
months or less.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as trustees and in other fiduciary capacities
that result in the holding or placing of assets on behalf of individuals,
trusts and other institutions. These assets are excluded from the
Group’s financial statements, as they are not assets of the Group.

2.23 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as a liability in the
financial statements in the period in which they are approved by
shareholders.

2.24 Cash and cash equivalents

In the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise
balances with less than three months’ maturity from the date of
acquisition, including: cash, balances with banks and other financial
institutions, treasury bills, other eligible bills and certificates of deposit
and investment securities which are readily convertible to known
amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.

2.25 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required or the
amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as
a provision.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.25 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets (Continued)

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events
and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain events not wholly within the

control of the Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable. When such inflow is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and those
activities involve the analysis, evaluation, acceptance and management
of some degree of risk or combination of risks. Taking risk is core
to the financial business, and operational risks are an inevitable
consequence of being in business. The Group’s aim is therefore to
achieve an appropriate balance between risk and return and minimise

potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

The Group’s risk management policies are designed to identify and
analyse these risks, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and
to monitor the risks and adherence to limits by means of reliable and
up-to-date information systems. The Group regularly reviews its risk
management policies and systems to reflect changes in markets,
products and emerging best practice.

Risk management is carried out pursuant to the overall strategy and
policies approved by the Board of Directors. The Risk Management
and Compliance Committee (“RMCC”) under the authority delegated
by the Board oversees and guides the management of different risks
which are more particularly managed and dealt with by the Group
Risk Division (“GRD”) and different functional committees. In addition,
Internal Audit is responsible for the independent review of risk
management and the control environment.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

To further enhance the risk governance and risk management
standards, the Board has approved a Risk Strategy framework that
also covers the Group’s Risk Appetite framework. The Risk Strategy
sets out the core values and high level risk management direction of
the Group, taking into account of the overall business strategy and
direction, under which a robust Risk Appetite framework is established
to guide the strategic planning process and strengthen the risk-return
management. Fundamentally, the Risk Appetite framework sets out
the types and amount of risk that the Group is willing to take in order
to achieve its business plan. The Group’s risk appetite metrics are
composed of key indicators for measuring capital, risks, return and
liquidity and this is supplemented by a set of risk tolerances made
up of major risk limits of the Group. In order to ensure that business
is conducted within our established risk appetite, monitoring on
the compliance with the risk appetite limits and risk tolerance is
undertaken on a quarterly basis. In this connection, the Group has
set out its Risk Appetite Statement that covers five key dimensions
of the risks and returns of the Group, namely, the target returns to
shareholders, earnings volatility, solvency, liquidity and other key risk
measures. The GRD is responsible for the ongoing monitoring of the
compliance with the Risk Appetite Statement and the regular reporting
of the status to the RMCC and the Board. Moreover, the Risk Appetite
framework and major risk appetite limits are subject to review by the
RMCC and the Board on an annual basis.

The most important types of risk are credit risk, liquidity risk, market

risk and operational risk. Market risk includes currency risk, interest
rate risk and other price risks.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments

The Group accepts deposits from customers at both fixed and floating
rates, and for various periods, and seeks to earn positive interest
margins by investing and lending these funds in a wide range of
assets. The Group seeks to increase these margins by consolidating
short-term funds and lending for longer periods at higher rates, while
maintaining sufficient liquidity to meet all claims that might fall due.

The Group also seeks to apply its interest margins through its
lending to commercial and retail borrowers and to charge customers
appropriate fees and commission, taking into consideration credit risk
and market conditions. Such exposures involve not just on-balance
sheet loans and advances, as the Group also enters into guarantees
and other commitments such as letters of credit, performance bonds
and other bonds.

The Group also trades in financial instruments where it takes positions
in exchange-traded and over-the-counter (“OTC”) instruments,
including derivatives, to take advantage of short-term market
movements in equities and bonds and in currency and interest rates.
The Board places trading limits on the level of exposures that can
be taken in relation to market positions. Apart from specific hedging
arrangements, foreign exchange and interest rate exposures are
normally offset by entering into counterbalancing positions (including
transactions with customers or market counterparties), or by the use of
derivatives, thereby controlling the variability in the net cash amounts
required to liquidate market positions.

The Group also uses interest rate swap and other interest rate
derivatives to mitigate interest rate risk arising from changes in interest
rates that will result in decrease in the fair value of fixed rate assets or
increase in the fair value of fixed rate liabilities. Part of these financial
instruments are designated as fair value hedges, and the terms of
hedge including hedged item, amount, interest rates, hedge period
and purpose are determined and documented at the inception of each
fair value hedge. Hedge effectiveness is assessed at inception on a
prospective basis and is reassessed, on an ongoing basis, based on
actual experience and valuation. Fair value hedge relationships that
do not meet the effectiveness test requirement of hedge accounting
are discontinued with effect from the date of ineffectiveness of the fair
value hedge.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge
accounting

Fair value hedges of interest rate risk

The Group uses interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure to changes
in the fair values of fixed-rate issued liabilities and fixed-rate debt
securities held in respect of a benchmark interest rate (mainly LIBOR
and HIBOR). Pay-floating/receive-fixed interest rate swaps are
matched to specific issuances of fixed-rate liabilities or pay-fixed/
receive-floating interest rate swaps are matched to fixed-rate debt
securities held with terms that closely align with the critical terms of
the hedged item.

Only the interest rate risk element is hedged and therefore other risks,
such as credit risk, are managed but not hedged by the Group. Interest
rate risk to which the Group applies hedge accounting arises from
fixed-rate issued liabilities and fixed-rate debt securities held, whose
fair value fluctuates when benchmark interest rates change. The Group
hedges interest rate risk only to the extent of benchmark interest rates
because the changes in fair value of a issued liability or debt security
are significantly influenced by changes in the benchmark interest rate.
Hedge accounting is applied where economic hedge relationships
meet the hedge accounting criteria.

Before fair value hedge accounting is applied by the Group, the Group
determines whether an economic relationship between the hedged
item and the hedging instrument exists based on an evaluation of the
qualitative characteristics of these items and the hedged risk that is
supported by quantitative analysis. The Group considers whether the
critical terms of the hedged item and hedging instrument closely align
when assessing the presence of an economic relationship. The Group
evaluates whether the fair value of the hedged item and the hedging
instrument respond similarly to similar risks.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge
accounting (Continued)

Fair value hedges of interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group establishes a hedge ratio by aligning the par amount of the
fixed-rate debt security or issued liabilities and the notional amount of
the interest rate swap designated as a hedging instrument. Possible

sources of ineffectiveness are as follows:

(i) changes in market liquidity and bid-ask spread of the debt

securities;

(i)  the fair value changes related to the benchmark rate before next
fixing date and on the fixed spread over the benchmark rate of
the interest rate swap;

(i)  changes in interest rate sensitivity at different fair value level;

(iv)  the effect of the counterparty and the Group’s own credit risk
on the fair value of the interest rate swap, which is not reflected
in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the change in
interest rate; and

(v)  differences in maturities of the interest rate swap and the debt
securities held or the certificates of deposit issued.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge
accounting (Continued)

Fair value hedges of interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group held the following interest rate swaps as hedging

instruments in fair value hedges of interest risk.

=
2019%12H31H 31 December 2019 Maturity
1EHUR 10 E 5F N E

Less than Z55 More than
REER - RERE R Risk category - interest rate risk 1 year 1-5 years 5 years
BT BE-FRE Hedge of issued liabilities —

certificates of deposit
[ Nominal amount 4,447,271 470,000 -
19 ] E A 2 Average fixed interest rate 2.26% 2.20% -
HhEITZ BEIAEER Hedge of issued liabilities —
subordinated notes
H{E Nominal amount 1,752,008 3,698,682 =
S5 ] E F = Average fixed interest rate 6.63% 4.61% =
HHREITCBE-EE Hedge of issued liabilities — borrowing
H{E Nominal amount - 817,604 =
19 ] E A 2 Average fixed interest rate - 3.25% -
b g 2 A A FEE A E#F) Hedge of debt securities held at fair value
AT AE A2 E W A E RS through other comprehensive income
H{E Nominal amount 1,020,058 11,088,515 9,556,679
9 ] E F = Average fixed interest rate 3.78% 4.06% 3.59%
ERIEE 2 B ERR AR Hedge of debt securities held at
P BR A (E T 75 5 amortised cost

H{E Nominal amount - 1,405,242 4,029,446
9 B E A = Average fixed interest rate - 3.81% 3.63%
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31 ERAEMIARE@m 3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)
311 FERBREERE TE]EEZITET 3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge

A accounting (Continued)

FRE R 2 D FEH @)

Fair value hedges of interest rate risk (Continued)

88

FHA R
201812 H31H 31 December 2018 Maturity
1FELAR 160 E 5% E

Less than £5%F More than
B 8 Rl — ) = [ Risk category — interest rate risk 1 year 1-5 years 5 years
BT BE-FRE Hedge of issued liabilities —

certificates of deposit
EE Nominal amount 3,779,924 655,000 -
19 ] E A 2 Average fixed interest rate 2.15% 2.10% -
HhET . BEIAEER Hedge of issued liabilities —
subordinated notes
H{E Nominal amount 1,761,930 3,719,630 -
S5 ] E F = Average fixed interest rate 5.25% 5.38% —
HHREITCBE-EE Hedge of issued liabilities — borrowing
[ Nominal amount 587,310 822,234 -
19 ] TE A 2 Average fixed interest rate 1.94% 3.25% -
HihiEE 2 A A EE A E %) Hedge of debt securities held at fair value
AT AE A2 E W A ERS through other comprehensive income

H({E Nominal amount 631,946 7,454,921 9,405,654
9 ] E F = Average fixed interest rate 5.45% 4.22% 3.67%

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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3.

3.1

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

accounting (Continued)

Fair value hedges

3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge

The amounts relating to items designated as hedging instruments and

™ hedge ineffectiveness were as follows:
2019
BRGE
20195
AR
ZATERD
BERRERAES Change in
HHIAZER fair value
Line item in used FERARRE
?EE{E the statement of forcalculating ~ ZEMAN KREASSEHHREN
H{E Carrying amount financial position hedge Ineffectiveness Z1EH
Nominal BE &ff where the hedging ineffectiveness recognised in  Line item in profit or loss that
amount Assets Liabilities  instrument is included for 2019 profitorloss includes hedge ineffectiveness
Fl=mk
Interest rate risk
Rt — Hht 2 4,917,271 1,283 6,247 {TESRIA 10,352 (210) RATEHRMEEERTIAZE
Interest rate swaps - hedge of Derivatives financial W3/ (B18)
certificates of deposit instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from
financial instruments subject to
fair value hedge
MR — Ehie (B ET 5,450,690 58,929 494 {TESRIA 100,923 (19) BATEHMEERIALF
Interest rate swaps - hedge of Derivatives financial Wi/ (B18)
subordinated notes instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from
financial instruments subject to
fair value hedge
MRS - hfEE 817,604 9,048 - (TESRIA 13,870 79 AATEHHOEBSRIAZE
Interest rate swaps - hedge of Derivatives financial Wi/ (B18)
borrowing instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from
financial instruments subject to
fair value hedge
MRS — s B 2 AT E 21,665,252 36,903 496,334 FTESRBIA (750,221) 6576 AATEHANEBSHIAZF
S REZE AL 2 AREN Derivatives financial Wi/ (E8)
EBES instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from
Interest rate swaps - hedge of debt financial instruments subject to
securities held at fair value through fair value hedge
other comprehensive income
M i H — S 2 DA E 5,434,688 4,001 219507 FTESBIA (104,791) 755 RARTEHTOEERIALF
AR BTS2 Derivatives financial e/ (B518)
Interest rate swaps - hedge of debt instruments

securities held at amortised cost

Net gain/(loss) arising from
financial instruments subject to
fair value hedge
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3.

3.1

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge

accounting (Continued)

Fair value hedges (Continued)

The amounts relating to items designated as hedging instruments and

hedge ineffectiveness were as follows: (Continued)

2018
RREE
20185
$HhR
2AVERD
Change in
HBRRRAES fair value
i IE2EH used FERRMEER
%@ﬁ Line item in the statement for calculating 2 ¥Rk WaslRAB SRR
HfE Carrying amount of financial position where hedge Ineffectiveness ZJ8H
Nominal BE BfE  the hedging instrument  ineffectiveness recognisedin  Line item in profit or loss that
amount Assets Liabilities is included for2018  profitorloss  includes hedge ineffectiveness
GilEdals
Interest rate risk
MR — 4,434,924 333 1,662 {TEERTE 3,949 (64 RBATEHHNRBSBTA
Interest rate swaps - hedge of ZE/ (Ei8)
certificates of deposit Derivatives financial Net gain/(loss) arising from
instruments financial instruments subject to
fair value hedge
Fz= i 8 — S ig B ER 5,481,560 18,952 53,127 fT4&mIA (51,363) (1,814) RATELHEAESRIE
Interest rate swaps - hedge of Derivatives financial a&”ﬁz s/ (B1#)
subordinated notes instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from
financial instruments subject to
fair value hedge
GlESEE Ryl 1,409,544 1 4751 [TAESRTA 3,833 (49) AATEHMNHEHERIA
Interest rate swaps - hedge of Derivatives financial a&”ﬁz s/ (B1#)
borrowing instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from
financial instruments subject to
fair value hedge
MR — B 2 AR E 17,492,521 418,358 51685 (TESRTE 154,707 1314 BRFESTOEECRIA
T2 BHEHH AR MR ENEN Derivatives financial a&”ﬁz s/ (B1#)
BEBER instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from

Interest rate swaps - hedge of debt
securities held at fair value through
other comprehensive income

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge
accounting (Continued)

Fair value hedges (Continued)

The amounts relating to items designated as hedged items were as

follows:
2019
REBEHBHRER
BRELERE N
RERZEMER
BEZAYE
HHEREEEE
Accumulated
BEEHERREE amount of fair value
ZHWER 2D hedge adjustments
HHERAESE remaining in the
Accumulated amount of statement of
fair value hedge adjustments HERRERESHH FRL B A financial position
on the hedged item EEZER ZATEEE for any hedged
RAEE included in the carrying amount Line item in the Change in items that have
Carrying amount of the hedged item statement of financial value used for ceased to be
BE 8 BE &ff  position in which the calculating hedge  adjusted for hedging
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities  hedged item is included ineffectiveness gains and losses
FHE - 4,911,074 - (6997) EBETHFAE (10,562) -
Certificates of deposit Certificates of deposit
issued
L - 5,510,181 - 50,491  AEEH (100,942) -
Subordinated notes Subordinated notes
A& - 826,811 - 9207  HITER (13,791) -
Borrowing Deposits from banks
BAZARTEERH 247,170 - 465,052 - ATEHEREES 756,797 -
SEHAL B EERED AR 2GR
EBES SREE
Debt securities held at Financial assets at fair
fair value through other value through other
comprehensive income comprehensive income
PN o 5,651,040 - 216,352 - R 105,546 -
BBES PREE
Debt securities held at Financial assets at

amortised cost

amortised cost
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge
accounting (Continued)

Fair value hedges (Continued)

The amounts relating to items designated as hedged items were as

follows: (Continued)

2018
REERBHRARA
BRI AR
RS Z A
BEZATE
Hh2ERELE
Accumulated
BfFEARRREE amount of fair value
ZHREZATE hedge adjustments
HRZRAZLR remaining in the
Accumulated amount of statement of
EIRELE R SIERLS BHTEREAHE  BISEHSAN  fiancia postion
on the hedged item BB VEE 2ATEES for any hedged
FEE included in the carrying amount Ling item in the Change in items that have
Carying amount of the hedged item statement of financial value used for ceased to be
EE Bk AE A position in which the calculating hedge  adjusted for hedging
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities  hedged item is included ineffectiveness gains and losses
& - 4,422,293 - (12631) BETOFHE (4,083) -
Certificates of deposit Certificates of deposit
issued
BHE - 5,449,082 - (32478 1&(BEH 49,549 -
Subordinated notes Subordinated notes
B8 - 1,405,035 - 4509 iR 4,082) -
Borrowing Deposits from banks
BAZARTEHERH 17,082,443 - (367,375) - URTEFEEHEEY (153,393) -
ZEHAL B EEREN AR EERED
BHES TRAE
Debt securities held at Financial assets at fair
fair value through other value through other

comprehensive income

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

comprehensive income



MRS R MY ot
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HHEERREREm)
3.2 FERM

AEFBZIBEERBAERARRZHF REE
BITHAEE 2 EREE - WEREVRALRE
EeERRKEERS UhemTAZES (B
FTHETE) -

rEERBERBEEZEG((RERFEERZRS
BEMEREANEERRMD - FEEREZER
g((EEEEZEg DEMERRERREZS
(TERKERREZER ) IROANAEHFE
REMEXEB EERRREREEAZEER
g ZEREEMTTRAREEEIFELHETH
TEERSREBREEAEBERK - EERRET
B AR HEMER 2 REBHIINMEEBRR
A o

AEENREEREEREUNEERR - 58
HWERARBECEBRRAREZL2E A L E
ARBREEEABREEE 2185 R AL -
BEE FEZREehGERRIMETHMERER
zHRIEERRKO EERBEREELR - A%
BN E XIS EE AR EBRAERER
KR - 2 MR E RSB -

REECRTERREBEY T AHEZNLEH
MBERERF - TEHETEERR - AR
B EENS  RERBEBRE T HA
ABE o

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk

The Group’s main credit risk is that borrowers or counterparties
may default on their payment obligations due to the Group. These
obligations arise from the Group’s lending and investment activities,
and trading of financial instruments (including derivatives).

The Group has a Group Credit Committee (“GCC”) for approving major
credit exposures. The Credit Management Committee (“CMC”) and the
Treasury & Investment Risk Committee (“TIRC”) are the committees
responsible for credit policy formulation and portfolio monitoring of
the loan and treasury businesses respectively. These committees are
all chaired by the Chief Executive with certain Executive Directors
and senior business and credit officers as members. Credit risk
measurement, underwriting, approval and monitoring requirements are

detailed in credit policies.

The Group manages all types of credit risk on a prudent basis. Credits
are extended within the parameters set out in the credit policies
and are approved by different levels of management based upon
established guidelines and delegated authorities. Credit exposures,
limits and asset quality are regularly monitored and controlled by
management, credit committees and GRD. The Group’s internal
auditors also conduct regular reviews and audits to ensure compliance
with credit policies and procedures, and regulatory guidelines.

The Group has established policies and processes for the approval and

review of new products and activities, and credit policies with details of
the loan grading, or credit scoring, processes and impairment policies.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.1 Credit risk measurement

Credit risk grading

The Group uses internal credit risk grading that reflects the credit
quality of the borrowers. The Group uses internal credit grading
scorecards tailored to the various categories of counterparty. The
credit grading scorecards take into consideration borrower and loan
specific information collected at the time of application (such as
disposable income, and level of collateral for retail exposures; and
financial indicators and qualitative indicators for corporate exposures).
For retail exposures, this is supplemented with internal data such as
delinquency status and external data such as credit bureau scoring
information on individual borrowers. In addition, the scorecards enable
expert judgement from the credit risk officer to determine the final
internal credit grade for each exposure. This allows for considerations
which may not be captured as part of the other inputs into the
scorecards.

The following are additional considerations for each type of portfolio
held by the Group:

Retail

After the date of initial recognition, for personal unsecured lending
of retail business, the likelihood of default is monitored on a periodic
basis by behavioural score. This score is mapped to a Probability of
Default (“PD”).

Corporate

For corporate business, the credit grade is determined at the borrower
level. A relationship manager will incorporate any updated or new
information/credit assessments into the credit grading scorecard on an
ongoing basis. In addition, the relationship manager will also update
information about the creditworthiness of the borrower every year from
sources such as financial statements. This will determine the updated
internal credit grading.

Using the internal observed default rate supplemented with external
default data, and by applying statistical methods, PD master scales
are calibrated to arrive at the PD for each credit grade.

Treasury

For debt securities and interbank exposures under the Treasury
portfolio, external rating agency credit grades are used. These
published grades are continuously monitored and updated. The PDs
associated with each grade are determined based on default rates
published by the rating agencies.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement

HKFRS 9 outlines a “three-stage” model for impairment based on
changes in credit quality since initial recognition as summarised below:

° A financial instrument that is not credit-impaired on initial
recognition is classified in “Stage 1” and has its credit risk
continuously monitored by the Group.

° If a significant increase in credit risk (“SICR”) since initial
recognition is identified, the financial instrument is moved to
“Stage 2” but is not yet deemed to be credit-impaired.

° If the financial instrument is credit-impaired, the financial
instrument is then moved to “Stage 3”.

o Financial instruments in Stage 1 have their ECL measured at an
amount equal to the portion of lifetime expected credit losses
that result from default events possible within the next 12
months. Instruments in Stages 2 or 3 have their ECL measured
based on expected credit losses on a lifetime basis.

° A pervasive concept in measuring ECL in accordance with
HKFRS 9 is that it should consider forward looking information.

o Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets
are those financial assets that are credit impaired on initial
recognition. Their ECL is always measured on a lifetime basis
(Stage 3).
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

The following diagram summarises the impairment requirements under
HKFRS 9 (other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial

assets):
BYRERE2EEEREE
Change in credit quality since initial recognition
< >
B ER 1 PEER 2 FEER 3
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
(VAR (EERR B TR E AL ) (EEREBEEE)
(Initial recognition) (Significant increase in credit risk (Credit-impaired assets)
since initial recognition)
1218 A B e e B E51E 2 EEHREEER 2 EFEEE B SR
12-month expected credit losses Lifetime expected credit losses Lifetime expected credit losses

72N 5= 8] 3t 2 B AR T BR AN 2 3 22 4 R0 R AR v 2t 40
T

3221 fFEE B AR b

ENAUNT - RXZRENKGAEZERREHMT
A farMEEREAEEN -

o  SMEFEATE - EINEEFRLREKR
TS - RIRERRNEBEIHERA
HEERRARIFRERR 2 EH TRE—R

o HORMATE  ENBEETRERS
g E—BEARZMA

o  EaHAXK(AHEZ]EE30X

s NEXRAAME  BEERAERERAIAR

N

s EHRERAECRBZEZREER(ZEZE
BNZEFIEE2RREHEE - DBZE
RZRTE THEIERA Z (EE R R AERIZ 5
HFZEKIFRENE
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The key judgements and assumptions adopted by the Group in
addressing the requirements of the standard are discussed below:

3.2.2.1 Significant increase in credit risk

The Group considers a financial instrument to have experienced a
SICR when one or more of the following criteria have been met:

° when there is significant adverse external credit rating transition
for the bond portfolio, migrating from investment grade to non-
investment grade, or one notch downgrade for bond with original
non-investment grade at purchase

° when there is internal credit rating transition, ranging from one
notch to five notches, for corporate portfolio

° when the day past due (“DPD”) exceeds 30 days

° when the borrower is reported as “Early Warning” for corporate
portfolio

° when the borrower is reported as Special Mention according
to the loan classification of the Hong Kong Monetary Authority
(“HKMA?”). The decision to classify the loans is based on
the borrower’s repayment ability and likelihood of individual
counterparties being default.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)
3.2.2.1 Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The assessment of SICR is performed on a monthly basis at a portfolio
level for all retail financial instruments held by the Group. In relation to
corporate financial instruments, where an Early Warning list is used to
monitor credit risk, this assessment is performed at the counterparty
level and on a monthly basis. The criteria used to identify SICR are
revised as when appropriate by the respective credit departments of
the portfolios.

The Group has not used the low credit risk exemption for any financial
instruments in the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.
3.2.2.2 Definition of default and credit-impaired assets

The Group defines a financial instrument as in default, which is aligned
with the definition of credit impaired (referred to as “Stage 3 financial
assets”), when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following
observable data:

. significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

o a breach of contract such as a default or past due event;

o the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms
that the Group would not consider otherwise;

° the borrower is bankrupt;

° it is reported as substandard, doubtful or loss according to the
loan classification of the HKMA. The decision to classify the
loans is based on the borrower’s repayment ability and likelihood

of individual counterparties being default; and

° the disappearance of an active market for a security because of
financial difficulties.

REIRITAR AR 2019F F 3]



RIFEER R M ot

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ T JThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

98

3. UBEREE@

3.2 FERRBm@®

322 RAEERE A& )
3222 ENREEREEEZES @)

AERARRBIEMETERZ ER—RRRE
ERE - BRIFERBEEATERBRELRSR
2\ B B BB K R e 3 48 EL AR B FRAR o 1t
BHI0 A HHEBIOA ZTEER IR BEER
B -

3223 STEFAHEERE - 28 BRREES
TR Z A

BEEEBBENIREREERRABIENISEEE

;EEMF%QFE/JEEEWQQMH HAR([121@ A
R ) sk 2 iR AT 2 - BEEEEETENK
AE - BARBRAE(RORBRAE]) REHE
KE([BOBERXR)ZEMBBIER  HEXE
R

s  EUIARKRERAEEMBEELR

—fE121& A B ([ 1218 B HfEE 25 A

KR NIEREFEZ 2 BREREE ([ 282K

ARE|ED 2P GRIR B[ 2 REE
BEBEZERE])

o EHNRBAEDREAEEBEQRRT

—fE121& A B ([ 1218 B HAFEE 49 /2 Bz &

& D sk 2 BRI EAR (T 2 BRE 40 &L F

FEDRISZEF - flI0 - SAERAEMS -

AEEBENHERRE AN L EMRRE

BRBER  ZERAHNREE  TERIER
ZRRINEHE

o  EXBAERERAEETEEELNRRAE
ZIBRIEE - BUBARERZHFER
REMERIFGEF RER R E M EEREZ
ﬁ@%ﬁiotm%%ﬁﬁém%ﬁ%ﬁm

BAEEA ZIBRE D IER « EABK
T&mfﬁ%ﬁ&%%% EHE - 121F A 5
MEAMER R T M EELAR - RN T— @121
RHMZAECBHEEAZBRE L RER
BABKRETMERAE  RERZEFTE
BRI B S AR TERTE B KRB A L

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.2.2 Definition of default and credit-impaired assets (Continued)

A loan that has been renegotiated due to deterioration in the
borrower’s condition is usually considered to be credit-impaired
unless there is evidence that the risk of not receiving contractual cash
flows has reduced significantly and there are no other indicators of
impairment. In addition, a retail loan that is overdue for 90 days or
more is considered credit-impaired.

32.2.3 Measuring ECL - Explanation of inputs, assumptions and
estimation techniques

The ECL is measured on either a 12-month (“12M”) or Lifetime basis
depending on whether a SICR has occurred since initial recognition or
whether an asset is considered to be credit-impaired. Expected credit
losses are the discounted product of the PD, exposures at default
(“EAD”), and loss given default (“LGD”), defined as follows:

° The PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on
its financial obligation (as per “Definition of default and credit-
impaired” above), either over the next 12 months (“12M PD”), or
over the remaining lifetime (“Lifetime PD”) of the obligation.

° EAD is based on the amounts the Group expects to be owed
at the time of default, over the next 12 months (“12M EAD”) or
over the remaining lifetime (“Lifetime EAD”). For example, for a
revolving commitment, the Group includes the current drawn
balance plus any further amount that is expected to be drawn up
to the current contractual limit by the time of default, should it

occur.

o LGD represents the Group’s expectation of the extent of loss on
a defaulted exposure. LGD varies by type of counterparty, type
and seniority of claim and availability of collateral or other credit
support. LGD is expressed as a percentage loss per unit of
exposure at the time of default. LGD is calculated on a 12-month
or lifetime basis, where 12-month LGD is the percentage of loss
expected to be made if the default occurs in the next 12 months
and Lifetime LGD is the percentage of loss expected to be made
if the default occurs over the remaining expected lifetime of the
loan.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

32.2.3 Measuring ECL - Explanation of inputs, assumptions and
estimation techniques (Continued)

The ECL is determined by projecting the PD, LGD and EAD for
each future month and for each individual exposure. These three
components are multiplied together and adjusted for the likelihood
of survival (i.e. the exposure has not prepaid or defaulted in an earlier
month). This effectively calculates an ECL for each future month,
which is then discounted back to the reporting date and summed.
The discount rate used in the ECL calculation is the original effective
interest rate or an approximation thereof.

The Lifetime PD is developed by applying a maturity profile to the
current 12M PD. The maturity profile looks at how defaults develop on
a portfolio from the point of initial recognition throughout the lifetime
of the loans. The maturity profile is based on historical observed data
and is assumed to be the same across all assets within a portfolio and
credit grade band. This is supported by historical analysis.

The 12-month and lifetime EADs are determined based on the
expected payment profile, which varies by product type.

o For amortising products and bullet repayment loans, this is
based on the contractual repayments owed by the borrower over
a 12-month or lifetime basis. This will also be adjusted for any
expected overpayments made by a borrower. Early repayment/
refinance assumptions are also incorporated into the calculation.

o For non-revolving products, the exposure at default is predicted
by taking current drawn balance and adding a “credit conversion
factor” which allows for the expected drawdown of the remaining
limit by the time of default.

. For revolving products, the EAD is estimated by taking the

maximum between the on-balance sheet exposure and the
estimated utilized amount at default based on utilisation rate.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

32.2.3 Measuring ECL - Explanation of inputs, assumptions and
estimation techniques (Continued)

The 12-month and lifetime LGDs are determined based on the
factors which impact the recoveries made post default. These include
collateral type and projected collateral values, historical discounts to
market/book values due to forced sales, time to repossession and
recovery costs observed.

Forward-looking economic information is also included in determining
the 12-month and lifetime PD, EAD and LGD. Refer to note 3.2.2.4 for
an explanation of forward-looking information and its inclusion in ECL
calculations.

The assumptions underlying the ECL calculation, such as how the
maturity profile of the PDs and how collateral values change etc., are
regularly monitored and reviewed.

3.2.24 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models

The assessment of SICR and the calculation of ECL both incorporate
forward-looking information. The Group has performed historical
analysis and identified the key economic variables impacting credit risk
and expected credit losses for each portfolio.

These economic variables and their associated impact on the PD, EAD
and LGD vary by financial instrument. Expert judgment has also been
applied in this process. Forecasts of these economic variables (the
“base economic scenario”) are provided by some economic research
institutions twice a year and provide the best estimate view of the
economy over the next five years. For the economic variables out of
the forecasting periods (i.e. after the next five years), the point-in-time
default risk level at the last forecasting period is referenced to estimate
the lifetime default risk level of each instrument. The impact of these
economic variables on the PD, EAD and LGD has been determined
by performing statistical regression analysis to understand the impact
changes in these variables have had historically on default rates and
loss rates.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.24 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(Continued)

In addition to the base economic scenario, the Group’s economist
and the Group Risk function also provided other possible scenarios
along with scenario weightings. At 31 December 2019 and 2018, the
Group concluded to have two additional scenarios to capture possible
outcomes beyond those under the base economic scenario, namely
the good and the bad scenarios. The good and bad scenarios are set
with reference to the historical observations of the macro-economic
factors and the Group’s loan loss experience for a period over 20
years. The scenario weightings are determined by a combination of
statistical analysis and expert credit judgement, taking account of the
range of possible outcomes each chosen scenario is representative of.

The assessment of SICR is performed by considering either the change
in credit quality, expert credit judgement and backstop indicator. This
determines whether the whole financial instrument is in Stage 1, Stage
2, or Stage 3 and hence whether 12-month or lifetime ECL should be
recorded. Following this assessment, the Group measures ECL as
either a probability weighted 12-month ECL (Stage 1), or a probability
weighted lifetime ECL (Stages 2 and 3). These probability-weighted
ECLs are determined by running each scenario through the relevant
ECL model and multiplying it by the appropriate scenario weighting.

As with any economic forecasts, the projections and likelihoods of
occurrence are subject to a high degree of inherent uncertainty and
therefore the actual outcomes may be significantly different to those
projected. The Group considers these forecasts to represent its best
estimate of the possible outcomes that the chosen scenarios are
appropriately representative of the range of possible scenarios.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.24 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(Continued)

Economic variable assumptions

In its models, the Group relies on a broad range of forward-
looking economic information as inputs, such as the forecasts of
macroeconomic factors like property price indices, GDP growth rates,
unemployment rates, and interest rates. A range of macroeconomic
factors is maintained based on statistical data tests and expert
judgement to ensure that relevant factors could be taken into
consideration in the ECL models.

The scenarios “base”, “good” and “bad” were determined based on
the underlying assumptions described in the below table. In particular,
the “base” scenario makes reference to a set of macroeconomic
forecasts from different economic research institutions and the
“good” and “bad” scenarios depends on the simulated ECL using a
designated period of historical macroeconomic variables. The year of
the lowest simulated ECL was assumed good scenario whereas the
year of the highest simulated ECL was assumed the bad scenario. A
designated period of historical data that covers peaks and troughs of
economic cycles were selected for this exercise to ensure the selection
of scenarios stays unbiased.

Scenario Underlying assumptions of the scenario

Base Forward-looking macroeconomic factors are a key
component of the macroeconomic outlook. The base
scenario is based on a set of macroeconomic forecasts
sourced from reputable economic research institutions
which formulate a “base case” view of the most probable
future direction of relevant economic variables.

Good This scenario is determined as the year of having lowest
ECL by applying a full set of applicable historical economic
variables to the entire portfolio starting from 1995.

Bad This scenario is determined as the year of having highest
ECL by applying a full set of applicable historical economic
variables to the entire portfolio starting from 1995.
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3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.24 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models

(Continued)
AR EEE 2 RE (F) Economic variable assumptions (Continued)
RAREETEEEEE 2 ERBARBESIRET Significant period-end assumptions used for the ECL estimate are set

out as below.

S ATHE P9 &

Average of 5-Year

15 HA AR

One-Year

7A2019412H31H As at 31 December 2019 Forward-Looking Forward Looking
B AHEEAELRZE Hong Kong GDP Growth H Base 1.6% -1.3%
(BDH) Rate (%) RAF Good 2.9% 4.8%
TR Bad 1.3% -5.9%
ESEEYEER Hong Kong Residential Property % Base 4.3% 1.2%
EHEEH (o) Price Index Change (%) Rif Good 12.1% 11.1%
TR Bad -15.5% -32.5%

BEBREX(BHL) Hong Kong Unemployment Ht Base 3.5% 3.6%*

Rate (%) Rif Good 3.1% 3.1%*

TR Bad 6.0% 5.9%*
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.24 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models

(Continued)

Economic variable assumptions (Continued)

5 BRRTHE 98K 14F EARTHE
Average of 5-Year One-Year
2018412 H31H As at 31 December 2018 Forward-Looking Forward Looking
S AHEEAELRZE Hong Kong GDP Growth E Base 2.2% 2.2%
(B2 Rate (%) Ri#f  Good 2.9% 4.8%
TR Bad 1.3% -5.9%
ESEEYEER Hong Kong Residential Property % Base 2.2% -6.3%
EHEH(AHLL) Price Index Change (%) RyF Good 12.1% 11.1%
TR Bad -15.5% -32.5%
BREREXR(BOL) Hong Kong Unemployment Hp Base 3.2% 3.0%
Rate (%) Raf Good 3.1% 3.1%
TR Bad 6.0% 5.9%

* * These one-year forward looking rates represent forecast average rates for

F1FEHAEENRCR1FH BRI FHH

BN

RESHKEBRZRNAMEE - REBETRE
EELERRAEFT TRKBEL S 2 A EEE
BB DMN » W 0T R AN R S AR
BEIR g KRR 2 S BURAERETE 2 A X
ENRAR o
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one year.

To derive the probabilities weighting for the selected scenarios, an
economic state analysis that covers a full economic cycle to estimate
the range of probabilities in different economic states is performed.
The use of historical data that covers peaks and troughs of economic
cycles is adopted for the analysis ensures that calculated probabilities

stay unbiased.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.24 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(Continued)

Economic variable assumptions (Continued)

To supplement the economic state analysis for more forward looking
elements and to capture latest developments of the market and
economy, assessments are performed by the in-house economist
and the Group Risk function with expert judgement exercised for the
determination of the probability weightings application to the three
scenarios.

The weightings assigned to each economic scenario, “base”, “good”
and “bad” as at 31 December 2019 and 2018, were 70%, 10% and
20% respectively.

To reflect the updated market conditions as at 31 December 2019,
the Group adopted a set of weaker forward-looking assumptions in
the base case scenario, which is reflected in an increase in the ECL
allowances at 31 December 2019. The probability weighting assigned
to the economic scenarios, as shown above, remained unchanged.

Other forward-looking considerations not otherwise incorporated
within the above scenarios, such as the impact of any regulatory,
legislative or political changes, have also been considered, but are not
deemed to have a material impact and therefore no adjustment has
been made to the ECL for such factors. This is reviewed and monitored
for appropriateness on a quarterly basis.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.24 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The most significant assumptions affecting the ECL allowance are as
follows:

Retail portfolios

(i) Unemployment rates, given its impact on secured and unsecured

borrowers’ ability to meet their contractual repayments;

(i)  GDP growth rates, given the significant impact on companies’
performance and collateral valuations; and

(i)  Property price indexes, given the significant impact it has on
mortgage collateral valuations.

Corporate portfolios

(i) Unemployment rates, given its impact on secured and unsecured

borrowers’ ability to meet their contractual repayments;

(i) GDP growth rates, given the significant impact on companies’
performance and collateral valuations; and

(iiiy  Property price indexes, given the significant impact it has on
mortgage collateral valuations.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.24 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models

(Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

Set out below are the changes to the ECL that would result from

reasonably possible changes in these parameters from the actual

assumptions used in the Group’s economic variable assumptions:

=8 Retail
EREEBENY
ECL Impact
2019 2018
REE Unemployment rates +1% 12,580 15,369
-1% -1,106 -999
EEAEEREER GDP growth rates +0.5% -2,209 -1,706
-0.5% 2,244 1,734
Y ER IR Property price indexes ~ +5% -284 -69
-5% 450 319
(= Corporate
EHEESENSE
ECL Impact
2019 2018
RER Unemployment rates +1% 128,952 104,173
-1% -65,802 -54,159
HAEREERE GDP growth rates +0.5% -15,239 -12,761
-0.5% 16,559 13,878
VI ERIEE Property price indexes ~ +5% -22,035 -17,242
-5% 23,089 20,202
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (c

ontinued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.3 Risk limit control and mitigation policies

The Group has an established framework to manage and control
concentrations risk with respect to individual borrower or counterparty
group, industry or country. Exposure limits by borrower or counterparty
group, industry or country are in place and their exposures are
monitored and reported to credit committees regularly.

The large exposure limits to borrower or counterparty groups are
capital based while the limits for industry are relative to the size of the
overall credit portfolio. Country limits are also set up with reference to
the sovereign credit rating from international credit rating agencies. All
these limits aim to achieve a more balanced portfolio.

To mitigate credit risk and where appropriate, the Group will obtain
collateral to support the credit facility granted. To control credit
risk exposure to counterparty arising from derivative positions,
the Group limits its derivative dealings with approved financial
institutions, and uses established market practices on credit support
and collateral settlement to reduce credit risk exposure to derivative
counterparties. Overall credit risk limit for individual financial institution
counterparty, including valuation limit for derivatives, is approved
by the GCC with reference to the financial strength and credit rating
of individual counterparty. The acceptable types of collateral and
their characteristics are established within the credit policies, as are
the respective margins of finance. Enforceable legal documentation
establishes the Group’s direct, irrevocable and unconditional recourse
to any collateral, security or other credit enhancements provided.

In relation to lending commitments that are unconditionally cancellable
without prior notice, the Group would assess the necessity to
withdraw the credit line in case where the credit quality of a borrower
deteriorates. Accordingly, these commitments do not expose the
Group to significant credit risk.

Irrespective of whether collateral is taken, all credit decisions are
based upon the customer’s or counterparty’s credit profile, cashflow
position and ability to repay.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)
(@) Loans and advances

The Group has guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes
of collateral for securing loans and advances. The principal
collateral types are:

° Mortgages over properties;

° Charges over business assets such as premises and

accounts receivable;

° Charges over financial instruments such as debt securities
and equities;

° Charges over deposits; and

° Charges over shares.

In addition, in order to minimise credit loss, the Group will, where
possible, seek additional collateral from the borrower as soon
as impairment indicators are noticed on relevant individual loans
and advances.

(o) Debt securities

Debt securities and treasury bills are generally unsecured, with
the exception of asset-backed securities and similar instruments,
which are secured by portfolios of financial instruments or
underlying assets.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.3 Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)
(c) Derivatives

All counterparty credit risk for derivatives trading are managed
as part of the credit risk control and monitoring process in
respect of the counterparty including credit controls such as
setting individual limit for valuation risk, daily settlement limits
and performing periodic credit assessment. Moreover, the
Group requires derivative contract counterparties to enter into
International Swaps and Derivatives Association Agreement or
analogous master agreement in order to follow the standardised
market practice of close-out netting arrangement in the event of
default or early termination and in accordance with the regulatory

requirements.

Collateral arrangements with most counterparties are also
in place to limit our unsecured derivative exposures to these
counterparties.

3.2.4 Write-off policy

The Group writes off financial assets, in whole or in part, when it has
exhausted all practical recovery efforts and has concluded there is
no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery include (i) ceasing enforcement
activity and (ii) where the Group’s recovery method is foreclosing
on collateral and the value of the collateral is such that there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering in full.

The Group may write-off financial assets that are still subject to
enforcement activity. The outstanding contractual amounts of such
assets written off during the year ended 31 December 2019 was
HK$48 million (2018: HK$46 million).
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.25 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held
or other credit enhancements

The following tables contain analysis of the credit risk exposure of
financial instruments. The gross carrying/notional amount of financial
assets below also represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk on these assets.

(1) Financial assets subject to impairment

At 31 December 2019
BEE/ 2528

Gross carrying/notional amount

BHEE
BREE  REEMUT BRER
E% Special  Sub-standard &t ECL B
Pass mention or below Total allowance Net
RANBHRER Balance and placements with banks 23,139,527 - - 23,139,527 2424 23,137,103
— BB - Stage 1 23,139,527 - - 23,139,527 2424 23,137,103
—REk2 - Stage 2 - - - - - =
—RE3 - Stage 3 - - - - - -
DYNTEE I8 LR N Debt instruments at fair value through
2 AlanERTA other comprehensive income 41,247,785 - - 41,247,785 27,355 41,220,430
— B - Stage 1 41,247,785 - - 41,247,785 27,355 41,220,430
-2 - Stage 2 - - - - - -
—[RER3 - Stage 3 - - - - - =
INBSRR AR BB TA Debt instruments at amortised cost 15,655,922 - - 15,655,922 11,533 15,644,389
—BB - Stage 1 15,655,922 - - 15,655,922 11,533 15,644,389
—Rek2 - Stage 2 - - - - - =
—FEE3 - Stage 3 - - - - - -
RFER Advances to customers 134,885,092 1,014,153 1,049,226 136,948,471 1,008,586 135,939,885
—EB - Stage 1 129,025,419 - - 129,025,419 474,635 128,550,784
— e - Stage 2 5,859,673 1,014,153 - 6,873,826 152,754 6,721,072
—F&E3 - Stage 3 - - 1,049,226 1,049,226 381,197 668,029
CUED Trade bills 3,381,956 - 11,907 3,393,863 1,989 3,391,874
—[BE - Stage 1 3,356,669 - - 3,356,669 1,982 3,354,687
—H&E2 - Stage 2 25,287 - - 25,287 7 25,280
—[&Exs - Stage 3 - - 11,907 11,907 - 11,907
JERT I8 REMERE Accrued interest and other accounts 5,244,203 4,118 59,717 5,308,038 18,561 5,289,477
—RE - Stage 1 5,233,405 - - 5,233,405 8,496 5,224,909
— g2 - Stage 2 10,798 4,118 - 14,916 598 14,318
—[BE3 - Stage 3 - - 59,717 50,717 9,467 50,250
BRRERIBER Loan commitments and financial
guarantees 81,210,407 23,846 10931 81,245,184 148,642 81,096,542
— B - Stage 1 78,548,873 - - 78548873 140,087 78,408,786
2] - Stage 2 2,661,534 23,846 - 2,685,380 8,555 2,676,825
—RE3 - Stage 3 - - 10,931 10,931 - 10,931
= Total 304,764,892 1,042,117 1,131,781 306,938,790 1,219,090 305,719,700

EREBMMBEERR - EFIRARFERE
BEEFHH AR MEARENEBTAZA
ELRMNREEGFETESHENE

HEEEE -

For the purpose of this disclosure, notional amount of debt
instruments at FVOCI and the associated ECL allowance
maintained in investment revaluation reserve are presented.
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3. BKERMEEmE) 3.
3.2 EERME@®)
325 KFIAHFEZHHm B A M s EEZ A

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.5 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held

CREEEREEE @)
(1) ZAEREFENSEEE @)

20184F12H31H

or other credit enhancements (Continued)

(1) Financial assets subject to impairment (Continued)

At 31 December 2018
REE/ 4528

Gross carrying/notional amount

BHEE
BREE  RBEUAT BREE
% Special  Sub-standard Bt ECL 8
Pass mention or below Total allowance Net
RANSBRER Balance and placements with banks 26,598,116 - - 26598,116 3707 26,594,409
S EY - Stage 1 26,598,116 - - 26598,116 3,707 26,594,409
—[E2 - Stage 2 - - - - - -
—[&ER3 - Stage 3 - - - - - -
WATEE BEZEHA Debt instruments at fair value through
L2 EkEMEFTA other comprehensive income 41,894,806 - - 41,894,806 20870 41,871,936
S EY - Stage 1 41,894,806 - - 41,894,806 20870 41,871,936
— e - Stage 2 - - - - - -
—[&ER3 - Stage 3 - - - - - -
DESRRATIRMEB LA Debt instruments at amortised cost 9,137,667 - - 9,137,667 4,947 9,132,720
—[B&R1 - Stage 1 9,137,667 - - 9,137,667 4,947 9,132,720
—f&ER2 - Stage 2 - S S S S S
&3 - Stage 3 - - - - - -
RFER Advances to customers 126,888,960 771,153 970,166 128,630,279 913,923 127,716,356
—[B&1 - Stage 1 123,150,162 1,893 - 123,152,055 423650 122,728,405
—[B&R2 - Stage 2 3,738,798 769,260 - 4508058 127,284 4,380,774
—[BE3 - Stage 3 = = 970,166 970,166 362,989 607,177
B55E Trade bills 4,677,262 = - 4,677,262 2123 4,675,139
—B&1 - Stage 1 4,663,269 = = 4,663,269 2,100 4,661,169
—[B&2 - Stage 2 13,993 - = 13,993 23 13970
—[BE3 - Stage 3 - - = = = =
JESTRIS RE AR Accrued interest and other accounts 3,744,149 2,806 65,242 3,812,197 16,785 3,795,412
—BEA - Stage 1 3,735,272 - - 3735212 6,651 3,728,621
—[BE2 - Stage 2 8,877 2,806 - 11,683 491 11,192
—[BER3 - Stage 3 - - 65,242 65,242 9,643 55,599
B RIBER Loan commitments and financial
quarantees 76,786,797 43591 13,716 76,844,104 146,267 76,697,837
— BB - Stage 1 74,789,140 - - 74,789,140 139,657 74,649,483
— g2 - Stage 2 1,997,657 43591 - 2,041,248 6,592 2,034,656
— B3 - Stage 3 - - 13,716 13,716 18 13,698
at Total 289,727,757 817,550 1,049,124 291,594,431 1,110,622 290,483,809
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3.2

325

B 75 JE B i 2B ()

EERKE @)
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EEFEABEWT
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F1ERIIER IR A EBABERTRF
MR ZENERIE - KREFARKDH
ENEEEA2HMENSNERAE 26
N TEEE

2R FRIEE |8 E R EEAIE KT
MEFH 2 E108% - KRBRALERRRE
5 Rid TR BHIRERZE R - BIFTaE
SAREERBEERK -
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3.2
325

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held
or other credit enhancements (Continued)

(1) Financial assets subject to impairment (Continued)

The credit ratings are broadly categorised as follows:

Retail

Class 1 “pass”, which covers loans that are current or within 30
DPD.

Class 2 “special mention”, which generally covers loans with
31-90 DPD.

Class 3 “sub-standard or below”, which generally covers loans
that are more than 90 DPD.

Corporate

Class 1 “pass”, which covers Grade 1 to 9 of the Group’s internal
loan grading system, represents loans for which borrowers are
current in meeting commitments and for which the full repayment
of interest and principal is not in doubt.

Class 2 “special mention”, which covers Grade 10 of the Group’s
internal loan grading system, represents loans with which
borrowers are experiencing difficulties and which may lead to
credit losses to the Group if the deterioration in loan quality
cannot be contained.

Class 3 “sub-standard or below”, which covers Grade 11 to 13
of the Group’s internal loan grading system, represents loans
in which borrowers are displaying a definable weakness that is
likely to jeopardise repayment; or collection in full is improbable
and the Group expects to sustain a loss of principal and/
or interest; or loans that are considered uncollectible after all
collection options have been exhausted.

REIRITAR AR 2019F F 3]
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.5 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held
or other credit enhancements (Continued)

(1) Financial assets subject to impairment (Continued)
Treasury
Class 1 “pass”, which covers exposures to counterparties of

with internal credit rating of BB- or above.

Class 2 “special mention”, which covers exposures to
counterparties of with internal credit rating of B+ to B-.

Class 3 “sub-standard or below”, which covers exposures to
counterparties of with internal credit rating of CCC+ or below.

(2) Financial assets not subject to impairment

FREE
Gross carrying amount
2019 2018
RHIEEEREHNEE Trading assets
— BB — Debt securities 8,387,953 7,621,184
—$TET A - Derivatives 457,652 289,399
HHHTET AR Hedging derivatives 110,164 437,644
AT EEREEFHTABENEREE Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
—EES - Debt securities 328,768 327,483
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3. HHEERREREm)
3.2 EERR@m

3.25 Kif AfFBZ BB R M EIEFA
CREEEREE @)

AEBE Z FERBALRXE THIFTEE — S5 ¢
. B2 A 1 2.3% 15 5 FBTE R B AR
AP R ERA(20185F : 2.6%) :

o  HMAPZERANBZEEERTIEEMRMZ
fg&

. FEEREZREFERRBIEREFER LR
UERER)0.77% (20184 : 0.75%) : &

. BB AR HEMEFIEERT7%(20184F :
80% )V EA-ZEEHRI ©

326 Ea R

BEFERRBRERMT

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.25 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held
or other credit enhancements (Continued)

The results of credit performance of the Group can be further assessed
with reference to the following:

° 2.3% of the loans and advances portfolio are categorised in the
top grade of the internal rating system (2018: 2.6%);

° Mortgage loans, which represent the biggest group in the
portfolio, are backed by collateral;

o Loans and advances to customers that are credit-impaired
constituted 0.77% (2018: 0.75%) of the total loans and advances
to customers; and

° 77% (2018: 80%) of the investments in debt securities and other
bills have at least an A- credit rating.

3.2.6 Loans and advances

Loans and advances to customers are summarised as follows:

2019 2018
BN BT ERE Gross loans and advances 136,948,471 128,630,279
Rk - R EEEER Less: total impairment allowances (1,008,586) (913,923)
R Net 135,939,885 127,716,356
EEREZERRBER Credit-impaired loans and advances 1,049,226 970,166
HIBR : PEEXS REZEM Less: Stage 3 impairment allowances (381,197) (362,989)
R Net 668,029 607,177
BEER DA TE Fair value of collaterals held * 590,496 503,728
FEEREERRBFEEFER Credit-impaired loans and advances as
NBFBEE DL a % of total loans and advances to
customers 0.77% 0.75%

* ERmAFERBEERRTEREFREES
#% MEPEREEETE

Fair value of collateral is determined at the lower of the market value of
collateral and outstanding loan balance

REIRITAR AR 2019F F 3]
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3. HKERERE@ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 =ERR@ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

326 EFREBH @ 3.2.6 Loans and advances (Continued)

TRYRIEE BN RAR ZBEERED BIL The table below shows the percentage of impairment allowance as a
BERRBRZBDLL percentage of loans and advances for each of the three broad internal

rating classes.

2019 2018
WAEXEE B
HEMREREE e
Aok At
BREBHK  Impairment  EF&EFX  Impairment
B2tk allowance as Bt allowance as
Loans and a % of Loans and a % of
advances loan balance advances loan balance
% % % %
487 Class
1—1E% 1 - pass 98.5 0.4 98.6 0.4
0 — 4B EsT 2 — special mention 0.7 10.0 0.6 11.2
3—IRAIAT 3 — sub-standard or below 0.8 36.3 0.8 37.4
100.0 0.7 100.0 0.7
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3.
3.2

326 EXREB5 (&)

B 75 JE B i 2B ()

EERKE @)

(F) BRERMBREENFONESER
BEZEFERRBR

EEREER R B B MRS B E

R HRER R D FERERIAITAT

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.6 Loans and advances (Continued)

(a)

The analysis of the gross amount of credit-impaired loans
and advances by class, along with the fair value of the related

Loans and advances to customers that are credit-

impaired under HKFRS 9

collateral held by the Group as security, is as follows:

BFEERR
B A FEERE BRE(E DNFPE
Gross  Impairment Carrying Fair value of
2019%12A31H At 31 December 2019 exposure allowance amount collateral held
EEREZER Credit-impaired loans
EAERK : Loans to individual:
—EAR ~ Credit cards 16,835 14,251 2,584 -
—RIBER - Mortgages 41,881 3,691 38,190 39,683
—HEft - Others 287,805 136,103 151,702 577
REEER : Loans to corporate entities:
—HHEN - Term loans 233,055 66,321 166,734 177,317
—IRIBER - Mortgages 137,177 16,159 121,018 130,594
—B5/E - Trade finance 180,868 61,503 119,365 137,395
—HAth - Others 151,605 83,169 68,436 104,930
EEREZ B e Total credit-impaired loans 1,049,226 381,197 668,029 590,496

REIRITAR AR 2019F F 3]
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3. HKERERE@ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 =ERR@ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
326 BEFRE ) 3.26 Loans and advances (Continued)
() REBMKEREENZIRESER (@ Loans and advances to customers that are credit-
BEZ2EFERE BN (@) impaired under HKFRS 9 (Continued)
HEEAD
[E\ B 4258 B BREE ~¥E
Gross Impairment Carrying  Fair value of
2018412H31H At 31 December 2018 exposure allowance amount collateral held
EEREIER Credit-impaired loans
AR : Loans to individual:
— =R — Credit cards 15,134 12,449 2,685 -
—RIBEN — Mortgages 44,351 4,643 39,708 43,169
—HAh — Others 283,493 132,913 150,580 2,198
BEER : Loans to corporate entities:
—HHER — Term loans 251,403 79,206 172,197 175,496
—RIBER - Mortgages 101,429 8,827 92,602 99,069
—BEZmE - Trade finance 154,078 73,630 80,448 94,333
—EAftb — Others 120,278 51,321 68,957 89,463
SERECERBRE Total credit-impaired loans 970,166 362,989 607,177 503,728
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3. HMBEREE@®
3.2 FEAMG®
326 B RB @)
(2) BE3EANLEZERRBRK

() BHREEEIAEE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.6 Loans and advances (Continued)
(b) Loans and advances overdue for more than 3 months

(i) Gross amount of overdue loans

2019 2018
BEREE B AR (EE
B BEiegs
Gross Gross
amount 1h#azE amount of Ih4a%E
of overdue Bk overdue At
loans % of total loans % of total
REBEFENERE Gross advances to customers
AR which have been overdue for:
—3{AA LA =6/ A — six months or less but over
three months 180,317 0.13 99,729 0.08
—61E A EE1F — one year or less but over six
months 250,661 0.18 51,812 0.04
—1F L E - over one year 318,703 0.23 429,568 0.33
749,681 0.54 581,109 0.45

KEFIRITAR AR 2019FF 4
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3. MBEREE@® 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 =ERR@ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
326 BEX KRB &@) 3.2.6 Loans and advances (Continued)
(Z) EH3EA L L2 ERK B (@) (b) Loans and advances overdue for more than 3 months

(Continued)

(i) EEKEEEARBLZHE (i)  Value of collateral held and impairment allowances
EE R e against overdue loans and advances

ERRBH iRl
REBHE Al il = K3
Outstanding Current  FIAMESMA ReRENHD ERABERE  AEER

amount of market Portion  Portion not  Other credit Stage 3

loans and value of covered by covered by risk  impairment

2019F12H31H At 31 December 2019 advances collateral collateral collateral  mitigation allowances
BHAEERFEHR  Overdue loans and advances

B to customers 749,681 885,515 578,446 171,235 - 226,415

BERRBT AR
KEBHE BmE gl AR Hivf= 8 PEER3
Outstanding Current  FTAWEZMY REEREND BRAESERE  HEERE

amount of market Portion ~ Portion not  Other credit Stage 3
loans and value of  covered by  covered by risk  impairment
2018124311 At 31 December 2018 advances collateral collateral collateral mitigation  allowances
BAKEEZFEHKL  Overdue loans and advances
ELA to customers 581,109 565,273 392,626 188,483 - 227,437
a7 RS T EAEMEED - RE Collateral held mainly represented pledged deposits,
W) o AR B A [ S A EE AN R4 o mortgages over properties and charges over other fixed

assets such as equipment.
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3. HHEERREREm)
3.2 EERME@®)
326 EXREB5 (&)

(A) REAER(CHREBEELRZE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.6 Loans and advances (Continued)

(c) Rescheduled advances net of amounts included in

HER) overdue advances shown above

{h#azg Ih 4R %8
AL AL
2019 % of total 2018 % of total
BFEEXK Advances to customers 270,909 0.20 311,262 0.24

P ER SR IE S Stage 3 impairment allowances 112,734 115,877

327 EZZE 3.2.7 Trade bills

2019 2018

—6{E AN EE1F

PEERSBEEM

3.2.8 WOl i
RERFE ZWEERRIT

Trade bills which have been
overdue for:
— one year or less but over six
months 11,907 -

Stage 3 impairment allowances = =

3.2.8 Repossessed collateral

Repossessed collateral held at the year-end is as follows:

2019 2018

BEME Nature of assets
BdEkyES Repossessed properties 287,397 153,639
A Others 7,782 8,336
295,179 161,975

WEHERRRATIERBRHEE - BURIBRAN
IEB B2 (ERARERET ©

R 5T A B 38 42 (8 5 59,274,000% 7T (2018 4F :
60,349,000/ 7T ) 2 7 R B R e 5 T E Atb 3 -
Th & BRI AR B it R BT 845 2 VA S 718 A
PR ERE R B - ZIEE M A2 W 202 [ &
tEEJETHRIEBHEZEE - HAZERE
AR | EFERR o

Repossessed collaterals are sold as soon as practicable with the
proceeds used to reduce the outstanding indebtedness of the

borrowers concerned.

Certain other properties in the Mainland China with a total estimated
realisable value of HK$59,274,000 (2018: HK$60,349,000), which had
been foreclosed and repossessed by the Group pursuant to orders
issued by courts in the Mainland China, represent assets held by the
Group for resale and have been reported under “Other assets” in Note

29. The relevant loans had been derecognised.

REIRITAR AR 2019F F 3]
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3. HHEERREREm)
3.2 EERRE@m
329 EEERE

TREHIZEBVEME LR EIRAREIREER
ZEFPERRER - BEREE R BER T
EEERERNHRE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.9 Loss allowance

The tables below provide a reconciliation of the Group’s ECL
allowances for loans and advances to customers, loan commitments

and financial guarantees by stage under HKFRS 9.

28 Retail
1423 P FR2 fEE23 &3t
FRHEE HHEE BHEE RAEE
BIRER BIRER BREE ERER
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ECL ECL ECL ECL
allowance allowance allowance allowance
20191818 At 1 January 2019 355,793 18,823 150,005 524,621
B Transfers:
PR R ER2 Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 2 (3,208) 26,714 - 23,506
PRER18875 S ER3 Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 3 (20,277) - 248,162 227,885
P& ER28E 1% EREER Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1 41 (3,133) - (2,392)
P ER o885 ZFEERS Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3 - (8,796) 25,688 16,892
PR EREBM S ER2 Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 2 - - (25) (25)
P& ER 38814 K EX Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 1 209 - (581) (372)
HRFTRAE © BBASREERER New financial assets originated, purchased
LERMEE or derecognised during the period 47,896 1,521 7,729 57,146
PDs/LGDs/EADs/ Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs/forward
RIE 1B RAR 2 B8 looking assumptions 1,528 (5,195) (10,431) (14,098)
FRFRBEER Unwinding of discount 68 90 24 182
ki Write-offs - - (266,237) (266,237)
HNEE B B B Foreign exchange and other movements (47) - (290) (337)
20195F12H31H At 31 December 2019 382,703 30,024 154,044 566,771
20181 A1H At 1 January 2018 304,889 19,699 155,888 480,476
| Transfers:
PRER188% EREER2 Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 2 (2,500) 9,649 - 7,149
PEEX 1S EFEERS Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 3 (11,307) - 210,442 199,135
P& ER2#E R EREERA Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1 405 (4,653) - (4,248)
PR ER 28812 S REERS Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3 - 4,311) 16,022 11,711
PEER 3L K ER2 Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 2 - - - =
P& R 38815 K ER1 Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 1 - - - -
HAAETRA © B8 ASREHRER New financial assets originated, purchased
LEMEE or derecognised during the period 58,127 (6,245) (16,789) 35,093
PDs/LGDs/EADs/ Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs/forward
RIS MR 2 28 looking assumptions 6,488 4,870 33,395 44,753
FRFRBEER Unwinding of discount 91 56 21 168
% Write-offs - - (248,973) (048,973)
HINEEE % L At B Foreign exchange and other movements (400) (242) 0 (643)
2018F12831H At 31 December 2018 355,793 18,823 150,005 524,621
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3. HHEERREREm)
3.2 EERM@m)
329 EEEME®)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.9 Loss allowance (Continued)

b1 3 Corporate
P B FEEx2 fEE23 &t
RHEE RHEE BHEE RHEE
EiEEE BEEE EE%EE Ea%EE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ECL ECL ECL ECL
allowance allowance allowance allowance
20191818 At 1 January 2019 207,514 115,053 213,002 535,569
i Transfers:
PRER1881 S ER2 Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 2 (7,318) 16,088 = 8,770
PEEX 1B EEERS Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 3 (1,353) = 80,436 79,083
P& ER 2875 = R Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1 3,421 (7,961) = (4,540)
P ERo8E% ZFEERS Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3 - (1,371) 29,144 27,773
PR ER3EB R ER2 Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 2 - 2 (3,898) (3,896)
PR BB ERE Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 1 = = - -
HRFTRAE © BASREERER New financial assets originated, purchased

ZEeRMEE or derecognised during the period 67,424 10,456 (37,096) 40,784
PDs/LGDs/EADs/ Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs/

AIEMER RS 2 28 forward looking assumptions (37,455) (2,326) 37,412 (2,369)

R AETE Unwinding of discount 134 1,501 38 1,673
g Write-offs - - (91,623) (91,623)
HNE e E A 2 B Foreign exchange and other movements (348) (157) (262) (767)
20195128314 At 31 December 2019 232,019 131,285 227,153 590,457
2018F1A1H At 1 January 2018 141,960 180,711 295,711 618,382
B Transfers:
PEER 1S B =R ER2 Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 2 (1,915) 5,692 = 3,777
PRSI EREERS Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 3 (159) - 28,797 28,638
B R 2 5 S RE R Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1 12,218 (28,951) - (16,733)
PR ER2EER EFEERS Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3 - (1,599) 3,957 2,358
PR ER3E BREER2 Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 2 - 10 (10) -
PR ER3E S B B Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 1 = = = -
HRFETRAE © FBEASREHRER New financial assets originated, purchased

2 EREE or derecognised during the period 69,233 (55,332) (69,225) (55,324)
PDs/LGDs/EADs/ Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs/forward

AIRE R RS 2 EE) looking assumptions (18,571) 13,210 56,977 56,616
FRBRELIR Unwinding of discount 466 1,426 13 1,905
b6z Write-offs - - (102,957) (102,957)
4NGE Bz ELfh 8 Foreign exchange and other movements (718) (114) (261) (1,093)
2018F12831H At 31 December 2018 207,514 115,053 213,002 535,569
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3. HHEERREREm) 3.
3.2 EERMKE@)
329 EEEE®)

TREHZEEVERE LR BN A RBIREER
ZEBAEAEFERRBR L REEAERE
PAERIWBEROEESER) VG -

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.9 Loss allowance (Continued)

The tables below provide a reconciliation of the Group’s gross
exposure (in terms of the aggregate of carrying amount of loans and
advances to customers and notional amount of loan commitments and

financial guarantees) by stage under HKFRS 9.

ZE€ Retail
P B P& ER2 P& E3 &t
R kA EkiazE ERazE EEAzE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross Gross Gross Gross
exposure exposure exposure exposure
20191 81H At 1 January 2019 105,622,646 227,866 343,679 106,194,191
B Transfers:
PEER1EE ERER2 Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 2 (464,557) 464,557 - -
PEEX 1S E EREERS Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 3 (296,364) - 296,364 -
P& ER28E 1% EREER Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1 49,443 (49,443) - -
PR ER28E S S ER3 Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3 - (46,382) 46,382 -
PR R3S B BR2 Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 2 - 29 (29) -
P ER3E R SRR Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 1 4,460 - (4,460) -
BRESIN RRBTEEE) Changes of gross exposure other than
modifications 4,486,410 (37,986) (68,839) 4,379,585
Y Write-offs - - (266,237) (266,237)
AN B L fh 2 Foreign exchange and other movements (56,994) - (327) (57,321)
20195F12H31H At 31 December 2019 109,345,044 558,641 346,533 110,250,218
2018F1A1H At 1 January 2018 101,935,074 212,315 362,725 102,510,114
| Transfers:
PRER18E1 S ER2 Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 2 (176,170) 176,170 = =
PRER18E1 =S ER3 Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 3 (227,025) - 227,025 =
P& R 28814 K ER Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1 55,192 (55,192) - =
PR ER 2B A ER3 Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3 - (26,274) 26,274 =
BE EX3E S K ER2 Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 2 = = - -
B EX 3815 K R 1 Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 1 - = = -
BB BB AR TEEE) Changes of gross exposure other than
modifications 4,090,793 (76,994) (20,647) 3,993,152
b6z Write-offs - - (248,973) (248,973)
AN % E fth B Foreign exchange and other movements (55,218) (2,159) (2,725) (60,102)
2018F12H31H At 31 December 2018 105,622,646 227,866 343,679 106,194,191
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(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HHEERREREm)
3.2 EERMKE@)
329 EEEE®)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.9 Loss allowance (Continued)

b Corporate
P Ex1 P& ER2 PEER3 &t
R AR R EEE R B
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross Gross Gross Gross
exposure exposure exposure exposure
20191 A1H At 1 January 2019 92,318,549 6,321,440 640,203 99,280,192
=75 Transfers:
BRER1ES ERER2 Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 2 (2,982,272) 2,982,272 = =
PRER1EB ERERS Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 3 (206,476) - 206,476 -
PR ER28E 1S EREER Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1 772,908 (772,908) - -
P ER2EER EIEERS Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3 - (51,827) 51,827 -
P& BRI B RS ER2 Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 2 - 25,681 (25,681) -
P& ER3ER BB Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 1 = = - -
BRIEMIN B BEEE B Changes of gross exposure other than
modifications 8,397,654 498,121 (66,069) 8,829,706
s Write-offs - - (91,623) (91,623)
HNGE F2 EL At B4 Foreign exchange and other movements (71,115) (2,214) (1,509) (74,838)
2019%F12A31H At 31 December 2019 98,229,248 9,000,565 713,624 107,943,437
2018F1H1H At 1 January 2018 83,419,077 9,098,002 910,195 93,427,274
B Transfers:
PEER 1 ERR EREE2 Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 2 (698,059) 698,059 - -
P& ER1 8875 EREERS Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 3 (85,133) - 85,133 -
P& ER2HE S B RE B Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1 928,512 (928,512) - -
P& R8I =X ERS Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3 - (15,009) 15,003 -
P& ER3EERL [ Br2 Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 2 - 691 (691) -
P& ER3EE RS ZE B 1 Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 1 = - - _
BB Bk B 5 Changes of gross exposure other than
modifications 8,823,819 (2,499,640) (254,871) 6,069,308
s Write-offs - - (102,957) (102,957)
AN Iz Eo Ao &) Foreign exchange and other movements (69,667) (32,157) (11,609) (113,433)
2018412 A31H At 31 December 2018 92,318,549 6,321,440 640,203 99,280,192

MERE BRRE RAERITH B KA A
SRR AR FEFHERH
MEBTE  SEERRIENFRALERERSE

% o

BEt AHMEEKES

Treasury portfolio, which consists of cash and balances with banks
and debt instruments at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, are classified in Stage 1 with no stage
transition during the year.
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3. HHEERREREm) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 FERR@ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.10 [EHEF %

TRIRA20194F 22018412 A31 B IZ TR E
BEZTFBAMZERHES °

3.2.10 Debt securities

The table below presents an analysis of debt securities by rating
agency designation at 31 December 2019 and 2018.

126

NAYE
NATEGE  GEAHED
BH%ZEH AHMEZE
TABRE WENEREE DS %
HERMEE Financial HIBR
Financial assets at LREE
BEEE assets at fair value Financial
ABEE fairvalue  through other assets at
Trading through  comprehensive amortised &t
2019%12A31H At 31 December 2019 assets profit or loss income cost Total
AAA AAA - - 2,811,206 167,541 2,978,747
AA-EAA+ AA- to AA+ 8,387,953 - 11,578,863 1,985,552 21,952,368
A-2A+ A-to A+ - 328,768 18,205,755 7,456,374 25,990,897
B R BERA- Rated but lower than A- - - 5,839,418 2,248,100 8,087,518
RARR Unrated - - 3,614,976 3,798,355 7,413,331
CH Total 8,387,953 328,768 42,050,218 15,655,922 66,422,361
WATE
WATERE  HEEHEEY
BHZ FAEMEE
AAER WEMeREE IAEEBARK AR
NeREE Financial 5IBRAY
Financial assets at SRERE
FIEEE assets at fair value Financial
REEE fairvalue  through other assets at
Trading through ~ comprehensive amortised At
2018412A31H At 31 December 2018 assets profit or loss income cost Total
AAA AAA - - 2,949,490 168,273 3,117,763
AA-EAA+ AA- to AA+ 7,621,184 - 10,962,405 1,139,026 19,722,615
A-2A+ A- to A+ - 327,483 19,729,482 4,189,870 24,246,835
B RIBIERA- Rated but lower than A- - - 4,823,834 685,147 5,508,981
B Unrated - - 3,075,986 2,955,351 6,031,337
At Total 7,621,184 327,483 41,541,197 9,137,667 58,627,531
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3. UBEREE@ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 =ERR@ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

211 EEERESLHEEZREES 3.2.11 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk
BZE exposure
(F) B (@) Geographical sectors
BEFERZEHATIHIRRE Z RERED Advances to customers by geographical area are classified
BZERAEHSLE - — KM s - EER according to the location of the borrowers after taking into
BRI R EMERANR 2 @I - @ account the transfer of risk. In general, risk transfer applies when
118 - an advance is guaranteed by a party located in an area which is

different from that of the borrower.

TRARFERBEEIREH AT The following table analyses gross advances to customers by
geographical area.

20195 20184
12A31H 12H31H
At At
31 December 31 December
2019 2018

X EREE Gross advances to customers
—&Bb - Hong Kong 113,233,394 105,025,978
— — China 7,940,270 7,442,961
—RF - Macau 14,802,077 14,459,024
— H A — Others 972,730 1,702,316
136,948,471 128,630,279
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3. HHEERREREm)
3.2 EERME@®)

2N HHEEEERGRZ EMEEZEBRES

BE @)
(Z) 17%

EPEHABHE — BITRRENEDHE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.11 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk

exposure (Continued)

(b) Industry sectors

Gross advances to customers by industry sector classified

according to the usage of loans

2019 2018
EBBEANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
TrEaent Industrial, commercial and financial
—MEEERE - Property development 4,700,618 5,411,554
—MERE — Property investment 15,972,169 15,930,681
—ERbE — Financial concerns 6,057,400 5,229,101
—RE& 4K - Stockbrokers 1,585,717 1,711,512
—HEETER - Wholesale and retail trade 6,455,795 6,584,127
—BlER - Manufacturing 1,978,378 1,702,636
— B NE R — Transport and transport equipment 3,496,770 3,691,151
—REES - Recreational activities 103,724 103,057
— BB — Information technology 52,976 70,890
— HAh - Others 4,464,895 3,537,199
44,868,442 43,971,908
fEA Individuals
—BE[EEEEEE] - — Loans for the purchase of flats in
[FAAZEEES & Home Ownership Scheme,
[BEEBHESEFEXK Private Sector Participation
Scheme and Tenants Purchase
Scheme 584,349 632,804
—BEHEMEEMEERR - Loans for the purchase of other
residential properties 29,864,112 26,609,223
—ERREX — Credit card advances 3,761,021 3,721,632
—Hfh - Others 13,196,910 12,927,451
47,406,392 43,891,110
EEREANER Loans for use in Hong Kong 92,274,834 87,863,018
2 ZmE (55(1) Trade finance (Note (1)) 8,815,573 9,265,660
FEBBAIMERNER(FEQ)) Loans for use outside Hong Kong
(Note (2)) 35,858,064 31,501,601
136,948,471 128,630,279
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3. HHEERREREm)
3.2 EERME@®)

3211 EEERECLHEEZREER
BE @)

(2) 1738

(1) LA RzBIRERDERTERERE
2z HBEsI Mo EARBED - HOM
BOMHRE UEERESIRESZER

THEREBZBSMEBRR(BIEART
ZBIMRITIBRARBR FZESmE) &
18294,310,0007% 7T, (2018 12 A31 H :
306,245,000/ 7T ) 7 SBR[ TE B LASME
FAOERIET °

@ HEEEUIMEANESREBRERTEERR
BEFBUIMERZERK -

3.3 WmiEEE

mERR Ty iE ™5 R R RERE(C TSI R
BE  ABEREERBRIMNGR ZEERR -

BRXHzTERREIBESS  AREERE
REEG LM ERRERREZEERESZERT
ZHET izt 2 S IAR R IR 2R M 45 5l MBZ 3R o B
PR BRI A A A I & am S T R 28 1) 3%
E - %ERBEEBETRETE  LAARE -
gRENRERTSRARBE( T SRREE] 2
EE-BESRTSERARNEERAEFTESRAE
TEARR - SEE Rz &R ETE R EZE (T
B B IR K Ba AL 1) 0 —EE S 2 A i TR e R
P BELBRERME FAREE - AHZR - 5
£ ERKEEZSRARNMEBARTEERER
FREBBRHETEXKFEA  FHATHARERS
RBARBEBRBRRMEFEAEEERE — ME
MRERREZES EREEMARZESHE
EZEEERIE -

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.11 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk
exposure (Continued)

(b) Industry sectors (Continued)

Note:

(1) Trade finance shown above represents loans covering finance of
imports to Hong Kong, exports and re-exports from Hong Kong
and merchandising trade classified with reference to the relevant
guidelines issued by the HKMA.

Trade finance loans not involving Hong Kong (including trade
finance extended by the overseas subsidiary banks of the Bank)
totalling HK$294,310,000 (31 December 2018: HK$306,245,000)
are classified under Loans for use outside Hong Kong.

2 Loans for use outside Hong Kong include loans extended to
customers located in Hong Kong with the finance used outside
Hong Kong.

3.3 Market risk

Market risk is the risk of losses in assets, liabilities and off-balance
sheet positions arising from movements in market rates and prices.

Market risk exposure for different types of transactions is managed
within various risk limits and guidelines approved by the Board, the
RMCC and the TIRC under the authority delegated from the Board.
Risk limits are set at the portfolio level as well as by products and
by different types of risks. The risk limits comprise a combination
of notional, stop-loss, sensitivity and value-at-risk (“VaR”) controls.
All trading positions are subject to daily mark-to-market valuation.
The Risk Management and Control Department (“RMCD”) within the
GRD, as an independent risk management and control unit, identifies,
measures, monitors and controls the risk exposures against approved
limits and initiates specific actions to ensure positions are managed
within an acceptable level. Any exceptions have to be reviewed and
sanctioned by the appropriate level of management of TIRC, RMCC or
the Board as stipulated in the relevant policies and procedures.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)

Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A. (“BCM”) and Dah Sing Bank (China)
Limited (“DSB China”), which are subsidiaries of the Bank, run their
treasury functions locally under their own set of limits and policies
and within the overall market risk controls set by the Bank. The RMCD
of the Bank oversees and controls the market risk arising from the
treasury operations of BCM and DSB China.

The Group applies different risk management policies and procedures
in respect of the market risk arising from its trading and banking
books.

3.3.1 Market risk arising from the trading book

The following descriptions relate to the Bank and BCM.

In the Group’s trading book, market risk is associated with trading
positions in foreign exchange, debt securities, equity securities and
derivatives.

(@) Market risk measurement technique

In the management of market risk, the Group measures market
risks using various techniques commonly used by the industry
and control market risk exposures within established risk limits.
The major measurement techniques used to measure and control
market risk are outlined below.
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3.3.1
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.1 Market risk arising from the trading book (Continued)

(a)

Market risk measurement technique (Continued)
(i) Value at risk

The Group applies a VaR methodology, which is a
statistically based estimate, to measure the potential loss
of its trading portfolio from adverse market movements. It
expresses as the maximum amount the Group might lose
given a certain level of confidence, which for the Group
is 99% for a one day holding period. There is therefore a
specified statistical probability that actual loss could be
greater than the VaR estimate. Hence, the use of VaR does
not prevent losses outside the VaR limits in the event of
extreme market movements.

The VaR model assumes a certain “holding period” (one
day in the case of the Group) until positions can be closed.
It is calculated based on the current mark-to-market value
of the positions, the historical correlation and volatilities
of the market risk factors over an observation period of
one calendar year using a method known as historical
simulation approach.

The VaR model is continuously validated by back-testing
the VaR results for trading positions. All back-testing
exceptions are investigated and back-testing results are
reported to senior management.

As VaR constitutes an integral part of the Group’s market
risk control regime, VaR limits are established and
reviewed by the Board and its delegated committees
at least annually for all trading positions and allocated
to business units. Actual exposures, including VaR,
are monitored against limits on a daily basis by RMCD.
Average daily VaR for the Group for all trading activities
during the year was HK$3,280,000 (2018: HK$2,887,000).
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3. HKERERE@ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.3 WHRR@ 3.3 Market risk (Continued)
331 FEEEKRHEELE &) 3.3.1 Market risk arising from the trading book (Continued)

() mBEBREGE @) (a)

(i) B

BRI R 5 T AT R HIR 2
BEBERZOE BAREEREE
HETHNENAREE  RRERE
DR - TERES R AR T HETT
TRENEE - RMEREBAAR - 77
AR AR TER LB N E IR R E R
RASETRE - thHN - TRatEFR
EEBERZRMAE 2B BRAFNEE
BHEEEEKTFRERE TSN
i IR R E B BB IRAHRE © it
Sh - ETHEBENRBIER—HEXK
TREUFEARERBERAEZAR
RBIKFRIFTRE A T 5 B R A
B o

BAOARZERAESERAREL

(2) mEEBREMRE

(b)

BZ2019F12A31H1E12(8A
12 months to 31 December 2019

Market risk measurement technique (Continued)
(i)  Stress tests

Stress tests provide an indication of the potential size of
losses that could arise in extreme conditions. The stress
tests carried out by RMCD include: risk factor stress
testing, where stress movements are applied to each risk
category; and scenario stress testing, which includes
applying possible stress events to specific positions or
portfolios. Besides, the expected shortfall of the trading
portfolio is measured to evaluate the expected size of
extreme trading loss beyond a specified confidence level
and over a longer holding period. In addition, reverse-
stress tests are performed as a useful tool to evaluate the
maximum size of market stress that the Group can endure
before hitting the prescribed tolerable levels.

The results of the stress tests are reviewed by the Board
and its delegated committees regularly.
VaR summary of trading portfolio

#Z%E2018F 12 A31H L1218 R
12 months to 31 December 2018

¥ RS BRI 15 R &I

Average High Low  Average High Low

HINE [ B Foreign exchange risk 2,666 3,462 1,106 2,360 3,170 1,510
)2 [ B Interest rate risk 1,525 2,650 522 1,429 3,769 744
2 EER Al risks 3,280 4,502 2,071 2,887 4,592 1,906
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book

In the Group’s banking book, market risk is predominantly associated
with positions in debt and equity securities.

(@) Market risk measurement technique

Within the risk management framework and policies established
by the Board and its delegated committees, various limits,
guidelines and management action triggers are established to
control the exposures of the Group’s banking book activities
to foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, and price risk. In
particular, position and sensitivity limits and price triggers are
in place to control the price risk of the investment securities.
In addition, sensitivity analysis and stress testing (including
reverse-stress testing) covering shocks and shifts in interest
rates on the Group’s on- and off-balance sheet positions and
credit spreads on the Group’s investment securities are regularly
performed to gauge the market risk inherent in the Group’s
banking book portfolios and manage it against the established

control measures.

VaR methodology is not used to measure and control the market
risk of the banking book.

(b) Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group has limited net foreign exchange exposure
(except for USD, Macau Pataca (“MOP”) and Renminbi
(“RMB”)) as foreign exchange positions and foreign
currency balances arising from customer transactions are
normally matched against other customer transactions or
transactions with the market. Foreign exchange exposure
of the non-trading portfolio in respect of MOP and RMB
arise mainly from the operation of overseas subsidiaries in
Macau and Mainland China. The net exposure positions
including the trading and non-trading portfolios, both by
individual currency and in aggregate, are managed by
the Treasury Division of the Group on a daily basis within
established foreign exchange limits.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book (Continued)

(b)

Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio (Continued)
(i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

Long-term foreign currency funding, to the extent that this
is used to fund Hong Kong dollar assets, or vice versa,
is normally matched using foreign exchange forward
contracts to reduce exposure to foreign exchange risk.

At 31 December 2019, if HK$ had weakened by 100 basis
points against RMB with all other variables held constant,
the profit after tax for the year and equity would have been
HK$23 million higher (2018: HK$15 million higher), mainly
as a result that the foreign exchange gain on translation of
RMB denominated financial assets outweighed the foreign
exchange losses on translation of RMB denominated
financial liabilities.

Conversely, if HK$ had strengthened by 100 basis points
against RMB with all other variables held constant, the
profit after tax for the year and equity would have been
HK$23 million lower (2018: HK$15 million lower).
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book (Continued)

(b)

Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio (Continued)
(i) Interest rate risk

The framework adopted by the Group to measure interest
rate risk exposures arising from its banking book positions
is consistent with the guidelines set out by the HKMA in
its revised Supervisory Policy Manual (“SPM”) on Interest
Rate Risk in the Banking Book (“IRRBB”). Since this is the
first time to present the disclosure under revised IRRBB,
comparative figures with prior year are not available. From
an earnings perspective, interest rate risk is the risk that
the net income arising from future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. From an economic value perspective,
interest rate risk is the risk that the economic value of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The Group takes on interest rate risk
from both perspectives in the banking book. As such, the
interest margins or net interest income and the economic
value of the capital may increase or decrease as a result of
such changes or in the event that unexpected movements
arise. The Board and the Asset and Liability Management
Committee (“ALCO”) set limits on the level of mismatch of
interest rate repricing that may be undertaken and monitor
the interest rate impacts through scenario analysis and
stress testing regularly.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Market risk arising from the banking book (Continued)

(b) Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio (Continued)
(ii) Interest rate risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2019, if HK$ and US$ market interest
rates had been 200 basis points parallel up shock with
other variables held constant, the impact on earnings over
the next 12 months and the impact on economic value
of equity would have been HK$185 million higher and
HK$504 million lower respectively.

The method and assumptions used in the above sensitivity
analysis on foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk are
broadly on the same basis for both 2018 and 2019, save for
the changes required under the HKMA's revised framework for
interest rate risk in the banking book.

In addition to foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk, the
Group’s investments in debt securities and equity securities
are also exposed to other price risks. Consequently, the value
of such investments could change significantly depending on
a variety of factors including liquidity risk, market sentiment
and other events that might affect individual or portfolios of
exposures.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.3 Currency risk

The table below summarises the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities as well as off-balance sheet net notional positions and credit
commitments translated into equivalent HK$ amounts, categorised by

currency.
BT E bk AR% Het &t
20195128318 At 31 December 2019 HKD Usb MOP RMB Others Total
EE Assets
R RIERITH AR Cash and balances with banks 4,902,592 4,507,189 522,948 3,697,835 4,011,567 17,642,131
ERTIZE12(HR M35 Placements with banks maturing between
B one and twelve months 2,053,593 809,871 - 2,200,522 430,986 5,494,972
RHEEERRNES Trading securities 8,387,953 - - - - 8387953
WATEE A AES Financial assets at fair value through
STABRHERHEE profit or loss - 328,768 - - - 328,768
fTEeRTA Derivative financial instruments 19,256 521,810 - 15 26,735 567,816
REEAREMER Advances and other accounts 105,410,937 18,802,530 8,888,641 9,214,586 2,718,509 145,035,203
WATESr=RAZEA Financial assets at fair value through
H2ENENEREE other comprehensive income 11,332,934 30,288,737 36,949 29,987 474598 42,163,205
MBBR SRR REE Financial assets at amortised cost 944,930 11,285,608 2,225,198 1,188,653 - 15,644,389
SREESH Total financial assets 133,052,195 66,544,513 11,673,736 16,331,598 7,662,395 235,264,437
aff Liabilities
RAER Deposits from banks 1,224,195 1,240,874 - - - 2,465,069
ITESBIA Derivative financial instruments 21,648 1,067,788 - 313 3,279 1,093,028
FEEERENAR Trading liabilities 5,516,558 - - - - 5,516,558
BFER Deposits from customers 115,954,553 36,824,217  10,092572 13,424,982 7,248,153 183,544,477
BEINESE Certificates of deposit issued 5,737,293 1,013,532 = = = 6,750,825
kEER Subordinated notes - 5,510,181 - - - 5,510,181
HthRA RER Other accounts and accruals 8,299,474 1,854,959 186,507 412,496 51,902 10,805,338
SRAESH Total financial liabilities 136,753,721 47,511,551 10,279,079 13,837,791 7,303,334 215,685,476
BEEBRAKATE Net on-balance sheet positions (3,701,526) 19,032,962 1,394,657 2,493,807 359,061 19,578,961
EESERMERERTE Off-balance sheet net notional
positions* 20,587,701 (18,766,453) - (1,327480)  (441,469) 52,300
EERE Credit commitments 69,092,585 7,903,019 1,959,952 2,100,341 189,287 81,245,184
* BEABRINIEZRFHETZANREARE * Off-balance sheet net notional positions represent the net notional

EINER BRI 2 INESRINTAE T RM BT ©

amounts of foreign currency derivative financial instruments which are
principally used to reduce the Group’s exposure to currency movements.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.3 Currency risk (Continued)

B e pidiils ARE Hth =H

2018124318 At 31 December 2018 HKD usb MOP RMB Others Total
BE Assets
BE RERTHES Cash and balances with banks 7,492,929 2,040,777 564,096 4,104,391 2,150,236 16,352,429
ERTIZE12(B AR Placements with banks maturing

MER between one and twelve months 5,770,010 1,033,418 344,512 2,484,508 609,532 10,241,980
FEEERENES Trading securities 7,621,184 - - - - 761,184
WATEE A HES Financial assets at fair value through

SAESNERBE profit or loss - 327,483 - - - 327,483
fTEeRIA Derivative financial instruments 18,270 698,811 - 650 9,312 727,043
REETRAMER Advances and other accounts 102,324,851 17,321,329 7,926,967 7,076,113 1,537,647 136,186,907
AT E BEZEHA Financial assets at fair value through

Hit2ANRRNESREE other comprehensive income 9,741,414 31,777,920 37,107 29,876 68,119 41,654,436
PABAR ATR SR B E Financial assets at amortised cost 900,470 5,710,969 1,940,984 580,297 - 9,132,720
SRBEAH Total financial assets 133,869,128 58,910,707 10,813,666 14,275,835 4,374,846 222,244,182
BfE Liabilities
iGGIE s Deposits from banks 264,455 3,413,997 - 114,721 4,383 3,797,556
fTAESRIA Derivative financial instruments 25,519 396,477 - 433 50,844 473,273
FEEERENAR Trading liabilties 5,758,954 - - - - 5758954
EEER Deposits from customers 113,676,571 30,998,534 9,630,329 12,523,234 7,081,344 173,910,012
BRINERE Certificates of deposit issued 5,517,708 1,017,368 - - - 6,535,076
BEER Subordinated notes - 5,449,082 - - - 5,449,082
HibfRE LTk Other accounts and accruals 6,387,524 1,581,375 147,202 80,603 40,395 8,237,099
LREEAS: Total financial liabilities 131,630,731 42,856,833 9,777,531 12,718,991 7,176,966 204,161,052
BEBERNEERE Net on-balance sheet positions 2,238,397 16,053,874 1,036,135 1,556,844 (2,802,120) 18,083,130
BERERIGRERTR Off-balance sheet net notional positions* 14,210,049 (16,507,108) (158,970) (146,760) 2,723,351 120,562
EERE Credit commitments 65,328,144 6,936,317 2,135,146 2,249,814 194,683 76,844,104
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3.

3.3.4 Interest rate risk

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

repricing or maturity dates.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The table below summarises the Group’s exposure to interest rate
risks. Included in the table are the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual

3EAKE
3fEA 2 1H0E
HHT Over 5% 56HLE T3
3 months 3months  Over1 year Over  Non-interest e

2019128318 At 31 December 2019 or less to 1 year to 5 years 5years Bearing Total
BE Assets
Re BRI Cash and balances with banks 16,243,422 - - - 1,398,709 17,642,131
ERTIE120HARZIH Placements with banks maturing

R between one and twelve months 4,488,646 1,006,326 - - = 5,494,972
BEEERRNES Trading securities 4,721,761 3,666,192 - = = 8,387,953
WATERSERE Financial assets at fair value through

STABRRSRAE profit or loss 328,768 - - - - 328,768
ITEERBIE Derivative financial instruments - - - - 567,816 567,816
FREESREMIER Advances and other accounts 121,407,772 7,441,193 9,379,096 1,437,664 5,369,478 145,035,203
IATEEBEZHHA Financial assets at fair value through

2 ENENERHEE other comprehensive income 9,164,421 4,755,593 18,246,199 9,884,005 112,987 42,163,205
DERRASI R SRR Financial assets at amortised cost 3,280,377 2,557,807 5,524,905 4,276,567 4,733 15,644,389
SREERH Total financial assets 159,635,167 19,427,111 33,150,200 15,598,236 7,453,723 235,264,437
af Liabilities
FAER Deposits from banks 681,021 - 826,811 - 957,237 2,465,069
fEemIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 1,093,028 1,093,028
REEERRNER Trading liabilities 4,611,160 895,491 9,907 - - 5516558
B Deposits from customers 143,567,182 29,179,214 3,578,320 - 7,219,761 183,544,477
BEINERE Certificates of deposit issued 2,222,760 4,059,898 468,167 - - 6,750,825
{EIEER Subordinated notes 1,755,635 - 3,754,546 - - 5510,181
AR kR Other accounts and accruals 347,199 124,386 239,772 22565 10,071,416 10,805,338
SREEAH Total financial liabilities 153,184,957 34,258,989 8,877,523 22565 19,341,442 215,685,476
FEHBERSH (REHE) Total interest sensitivity gap

(unadjusted)* 6,450,210  (14,831,878) 24,272,677 15,575,671
FIRTATEA YV EE Effect of interest rate derivative
contracts 17,997,105 3,096,492 (7,507,472)  (13,586,125)

FISRBERAT (EH%) Total interest sensitivity gap (adjusted)* 24,447,315  (11,735,386) 16,765,205 1,989,546

* AEFHEN SR EENREEABRANEEM
BEMNFAEET - KHEMSHZREZEDA
FUBE A X AR E T ERITE TR S MR

B

Unadjusted interest sensitivity gap is determined based on positions of

on-balance sheet assets and liabilities. Adjusted interest sensitivity gap

takes into account the effect of interest rate derivative contracts entered

into to mitigate interest rate risk.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.4 Interest rate risk (Continued)

3EAMNE
3fEA Z1E 15 E
FUT Over Z5F 5L F T8
3 months 3months  Over 1 year Over  Non-interest =)

2018F12 4318 At 31 December 2018 orless to 1 year to 5 years 5 years Bearing Total
BE Assets
Ré RERTHES Cash and balances with banks 14,749,040 - - - 1,603,389 16,352,429
ERTIZE12AREIEH Placements with banks maturing between

iz one and twelve months 4960470 5,281,510 - - - 10,241,980
REEBRENES Trading securities 1,884,793 5,715,679 20,712 - - 7,621,184
WATEE A HES Financial assets at fair value through

SABRHNEREE profit or loss 327,483 - - - - 327,483
{TEERTA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 727,043 727,043
RIBEHREMEEE Advances and other accounts 101,092,630 0,384,242 12,478,745 8,123,154 5,108,136 136,186,907
IAFE:HEAEZH AL Financial assets at fair value through

ARG EHEE other comprehensive income 4,679,097 8,258,136 19,513,255 9,090,709 113,239 41,654,436
LA AR S RIS B Financial assets at amortised cost 1,067,285 2,501,538 5,559,163 - 4,734 9,132,720
CREER Total financial assets 128,760,798 31,141,105 37,571,875 17,213,863 7,556,541 222,244,182
B Liabilities
iGGTE s Deposits from banks 2,072,809 665,536 822,234 - 236,977 3,797,556
fTAESRTIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 473,273 473,273
FEEEREHAR Trading liabilities 4,277,451 1,471,633 9,870 - - 5758954
RERR Deposits from customers 137,727,558 26,268,947 2,784,995 113,866 7,014,646 173,910,012
BEANENE Certificates of deposit issued 4,335,736 1,552,299 647,041 - - 653,076
{&IERR Subordinated notes 1,760,547 - 3688535 - - 5449082
HibfRE LR Other accounts and accruals 15,522 - - = 8,001,577 8,237,099
SRBES Total financial liabilities 150,189,623 29,958,415 7,952,675 113,866 15,946,473 204,161,052
MEBEEEAS(REHE)  Totalinterest sensitivity gap (unadjusted) (21,428,825 1,182,690 29,619,200 17,099,997
HETETRAH T2 Effect of interest rate derivative contracts 9,601,352 2,062,360 (2,258,058  (9,405,654)
FlS HRER A (TFE) Total interest sensitivity gap (adjusted)* (11,827,473) 3,245,050 27,361,142 7,694,343
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to fund increases in
assets or meet its payment obligations associated with its financial
liabilities when they fall due without incurring unacceptable loss.

3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process

The Group manages its liquidity on a prudent basis with the objective
to comply with the statutory standards and to ensure that there is
an adequate liquidity and funding capacity to meet normal business
operations and to withstand severe liquidity stresses. The Group
has adopted the Liquidity Maintenance Ratio (“LMR”) and the Core
Funding Ratio (“CFR”) as the regulatory standards specified by the
HKMA for reporting on the Group’s liquidity position. During the period,
the Group had maintained sufficiently high LMR and CFR well above
the statutory minimum of 25% and 75% respectively.

Moreover, the Group has maintained a sound liquidity risk
management framework in accordance with the HKMA’s requirements
set forth in the SPM LM-1 on “Regulatory Framework for Supervision
of Liquidity Risk” and the SPM module LM-2 on “Sound Systems and
Controls for Liquidity Risk Management”. The SPM LM-1 is to provide
the approach adopted by the HKMA for supervising and assessing the
liquidity risk of banks while the SPM LM-2 is developed to implement
the liquidity sound principles formulated by the Basel Committee on
Banking Supervision (“Basel Committee”) to strengthen the liquidity
risk management standards of banks.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process (Continued)

Liquidity risk management is governed by the policy and framework
approved by the Board, which delegates to the Group’s ALCO to
oversee liquidity risk management. The ALCO regularly reviews the
Group’s loan and deposit mix and changes, funding requirements
and projections, and monitors a set of liquidity risk metrics, including
the LMR, CFR and maturity mismatch on an ongoing basis. In
addition, material changes in the liquidity risk metrics together with
any corresponding proposed mitigation actions will be reviewed by
ALCO. Appropriate limits or triggers on these risk metrics are set and
sufficient liquid assets are held to ensure that the Group can maintain
a sufficient level of stable funding to support its asset growth. The
Treasury Division is responsible for the day-to-day management of
funding and liquidity position while the GRD is responsible for the
measurement and monitoring of liquidity risk exposures on a daily
and monthly basis, and also conducting liquidity analysis and stress
testing. The Financial Control Division handles regulatory reporting in
relation to liquidity risk, and coordinates the regular forecast of loans
and deposits, and LMR, CFR, budget and analysis relating to liquidity
and funding management.

The Group places considerable importance to establish a diversified
and stable funding. While customer deposits form the primary portion
of the Group’s funding, certificates of deposit and medium term notes
are issued at opportune time in order to lengthen the funding maturity
and optimise asset and liability maturities. Short-term interbank
deposits are taken on a limited basis with the aim of maintaining the
presence in the market and the Group is a net lender to the interbank
market.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process (Continued)

The monitoring and reporting take the forms of cash flow
measurements and projections for different time horizons, including
the next day, week and month, which are key periods for liquidity
management. The starting point for those projections is an analysis of
the contractual maturity of the financial assets and liabilities as well as
the expected maturity of these assets and liabilities based on historical
observations. The cash flow projections also take into account the
historical behaviour of off-balance sheet items, including undrawn
lending commitments and contingent liabilities such as standby letters
of credit and guarantees. The Group always maintains an adequate
liquidity cushion, which is composed of high quality marketable
securities with sufficient market depth to meet its liquidity needs at all
times, even under adverse market conditions. Eligible securities in the
cushion mainly have low risk and simple structure and can be readily
sold or used as collateral to obtain funds within a short period of time.
Debt securities held are marked to the market on daily basis to ensure
their market liquidity.
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3. HHEERREEm) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.4 REBELEM @ 3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

341 HEELEREZEREF &)

3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process (Continued)

BEAT In HK$ million
20195 20184
12A31H 12H31H
A As at As at
Internal EAR%EAR| 31 December 31 December
categorisation Basic Criteria 2019 2018
ERF RIFEZER B EIREENBUT - ZBERIRT - HERRAEZS LD 16,697 15,588
EEMBETHERZEARESEROBNE ERES
Tier 1 Marketable securities issued or guaranteed by government,
multilateral development banks, relevant international
organisations and public sector entities with a 0% risk weight
under the Basel Il Standardised Approach
FE2AMR RIBREZER B EIMREENBUT - ZEERRT  REEM NS 6,468 3,332
PEETHERZ BREER20%HEEEZS
Tier 2A Marketable securities issued or guaranteed by government,
multilateral development banks, public sector entities and non-
financial corporate entities with a 20% risk weight under the
Basel Il Standardised Approach
2B 2L EEREBERL A BRENRBDEEARFLERNI RS EE 31,715 27,758
MRS RIBBETHRR MM B EES
Tier 2B Other marketable securities issued or guaranteed by corporate or

financial institutions with at least an investment grade and those
securities that may be included in “liquefiable assets” under the
liquidity maintenance ratio
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process (Continued)

The Group performs stress testing regularly, which includes an
institution-specific crisis scenario, a general market crisis scenario and
a combination of these crisis scenarios in order to assess the potential
impact on its liquidity position under stressed market conditions. The
Group maintains a set of early warning indicators, including qualitative
and quantitative factors and involving both internal and market
indicators that help in identifying any emerging risk at early stage. The
Group maintains a contingency plan that sets out its strategies for
dealing with liquidity problems and the procedures for making up cash
flow deficits (e.g. conducting repo transactions or liquidation of assets
held for liquidity risk management purpose) in emergency situations.
An annual drill test is conducted and the contingency plan is reviewed
at least annually to ensure it remains sound and effective. Intragroup
transactions are conducted on arm’s length basis and are treated the
same way as other third party transactions for the purpose of cash
flow projection under normal scenario. Subsidiaries of the Group are
required to manage their liquidity positions to meet their needs under
both normal and stressed conditions. Most of the Group’s derivative
transactions are exchange rate contracts and interest rate contracts.
Under the terms of our collateral arrangements with derivative
counterparties, collateral movements are not linked with the credit
ratings of the Group.
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3. HHEERREEm) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.4 REBELSEK@m 3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

342 FHHTH

TEROMARBERBREMREERANBIHAAL
RPAEDA(ER) ZRBBRIBZEER

3.4.2 Maturity analysis

The table below analyses the Group’s assets and liabilities into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the end of the

afF o reporting period to the contractual maturity date or, where applicable,
the earliest callable date.
1fARRL
{838 A
gUT  SEANL
188 3months B1E 1540
EEE HHUT or less Over B5E SEL F
Repayable Upto butover ~ 3months  Over1year Over EBIAM &t
2019F12A31A At 31 December 2019 on demand 1 month 1 month tolyear  to5years 5years Indefinite Total
EE Assets
BERERTNER Cash and balances with banks 2683792 9,462,057  5496,282 - - - - 17,642,131
ERTIR12[EAN Placements with banks maturing
EEiligreb between one and twelve
months - - 4,488,646 1,006,326 - - - 5,494,972
BEEERENES Trading securities - 1,421,589 3,300,172 3,666,192 - - - 8,387,953
WATEFEARE Financial assets at fair value

TABRNEREE through profit or loss - 209,681 119,087 - - = - 326,768
TESRIA Derivative financial instruments - 113,890 163,459 161,405 91,732 37,330 = 567,816
FRERREMER Advances and other accounts 8,249,780 24,796,575 12,110,732 16,981,187 39,682,449 41,603,601 1,610,879 145,035,203
WATETEALES Financial assets at fair value

AR 2 through other comprehensive

SREAE income - 4575692 3064141 4755593 19,770,787 9,884,005 112,987 42,163,205
IR AT S R Financial assets at

EE amortised cost - 1,183,886 1,324,750 2,557,807 6,296,646 4,276,567 4733 15,644,389
BENTRE Investment in an associate - - - - - - 3888775 3,888,775
HAEHERRE Investments in jointly controlled

entities - - - - - - 96,363 96,363
g Goodwil - - - - - - 811,690 811,690
BREE Intangible assets - - - - - - 58,252 58,252
IEREMETEE Premises and other fixed assets - - - - - - 2814303 2,814,303
REmE Investment properties - - - - - - 1208641 1,208,641
HEHEEE Current income tax assets - - - - = - = S
BiRAE Deferred income tax assets - - - - 115,216 - - 115,216
RERI Total assets 10,933,572 41,763,370 30,067,269 29,128,510  65956,830 55,801,503 10,606,623 244,257,677
Bff Liabilities
JTRH Deposits from banks 136,602 1,501,656 - - 826,811 - - 2,465,069
ITEERTA Derivative financial instruments - 86,900 125,357 148,847 302,558 429,366 - 1,093,028
HEEERGMAR Trading liabilities - 1839326 2,771,834 895,491 9,907 - - 5516558
BPER Deposits from customers 82410910 62,799,830 23,362,532 11,393,040 38,570,836 7,329 - 183544477
BR{THFTE Certificates of deposit issued - 1,183,319 1,039,441 4,059,898 468,167 - - 6,750,825
{kBER Subordinated notes - - 1755635 - 3754546 - - 5510,181
HERE Lease liabilities - 15,022 29,855 124,386 230,772 22,565 - 431,600
EIRE R Other accounts and accruals,

TeEfEaR excluding lease liabilities 23419 5,483,732 858,632 1,364,373 687,307 1,221,448 734,827 10,373,738
HEREGE Current income tax liabilities - 9,567 - 461,181 - - - 470,748
ERREAR Deferred income tax liabilities - - - - 17,203 - - 17,293
aEAT Total liabilities 82,570,931 72,919,352 29,943,286 18,447,216 9,877,197 1,680,708 734,827 216,173,517
FREHEE Net liquidity gap (71,637,359)  (31,155,982) 123,983 10,681,294 56,079,633 54,120,795 9,871,796 28,084,160
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.2 Maturity analysis (Continued)

1AM E
1B3fEA
FUAT  SEANE
18R 3months EE 155 E
HEE T orless Over E56F SEN £
Repayable Upto butover ~ 3months  Over1 year Over  EFHRE At

2018F12A31A At 31 December 2018 on demand 1 month 1 month to 1 year to5 years 5years Indefinite Total
BE Assets
ReRERIMEHS Cash and balances with banks 2723966 13,628,463 - - - - - 16352429
ERMERERR Placements with banks maturing

HEHER between one and twelve months - - 5043393 5198587 - - - 10,241,980
BEEERRNES Trading securities - 1965 1839827 5715679 20713 - - 761184
WATEEAEES Financial assets at fair value through

SAERHEREE profit or loss - 208,732 118,751 - - - - 327,483
fTEERTE Derivative financial instruments - 87,175 48757 136,351 117,324 337,436 - 707,043
FBEHREMEE Advances and other accounts 7,711,067 23,504,341 12219193 16,566,684 35399803 39,711,485 1,014,334 136,186,907
KATEEALEY Financial assets at fair value through

TALB2R AN other comprehensive income

MeRAE = 2,432,105 1,492,047 8,297,397 20,228/939 9,090,709 113239 41,654,436
DA AR ANS R Financial assets at

SREE amortised cost - 379,556 687,729 2,501,537 5,559,164 - 4734 9,132,720
BENTRE Investment in an associate - - - - - - 3,620,597 3,620,597
LREHEERE Investments in jointly controlled entities - - - - - = 87,691 87,691
AE Goodwill - - - - - - 811,690 811,690
B/AE Intangible assets - - - - - - 58,252 58,252
NEREMETEE Premises and other fixed assets - - - - - - 2,923,147 2,923,147
RENE Investment properties - - - - - - 1,236,930 1,236,930
DEREAE Currentincome tax assets - - - 1563 - - - 1563
EXTREEE Deferred income tax assets - - - - 154,354 - - 154,354
BEAH Total assets 10,435,033 40285337 21509697 38417798 61480297 49,139,630 9870614 231,138,406
af Liabilities
FTER Deposits from banks 241,545 1,207,258 865,493 660,892 822,368 - - 3,797,556
TESRTEA Derivative financial instruments - 131,755 63,923 156,670 108,405 12,520 - 473,213
REEERRRAR Trading liabilities - 1,457,043 2,820,408 1,471,633 9,870 - - 5,758,954
REEH Deposits from customers 66,137,021 34826336 43,779,052 26,268,802 2,784,935 113,866 - 173910012
BEONERE Certficates of deposit issued - 1704221 1073732 3,110,082 647,041 - - 653506
fIEEH Subordinated notes - 1760548 - - 3688534 - - 5449082
fgafk Lease liabilities - - - - - - _ _
EitERA R - Other accounts and accruals, excluding

MefEEak lease liabities 43247 3814768 572036 1,245,562 693732 141127 456,277 8,237,099
PHRARR Current income tax liabilties - - - 503,997 - - - 503,997
EEHBAR Deferred income tax liabilties - - - - 17,508 - - 17,508
BfEA: Total liabilities 66,421,813 44901,929 49174844 33,507,638 8,772,393 1,537,663 456,277 204,772,557
eyt iz Net liquidity gap (65,986,780)  (4,616,592) (27,665,147 4910160  52,707.904 47,601,967 9414337 26,365,849
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.2 Maturity analysis (Continued)

In respect of certificates of deposit held for investment purpose
and included in total assets as at the end of the reporting period,
the relevant balance, analysed based on the remaining period to
contractual maturity is shown as follows:

18R

WE
{E3fEA 3faR
EPAN HE

1fif 3 months BE 180

PHRE GUT or less Over 58 BENE iG]
Repayable Upto  butover ~ 3months  Over1year QOver AE it
on demand 1 month imonth  tolyear to5years 5years  Indefinite Total
20195128318 At 31 December 2019
FHERER Certificates of deposit held inclued in:
PYNTHEEEY SR Financial assets at fair value through
EhrEbENEREE other comprehensive income - - 13,989 - 100,110 - - 11409
IEAR RTINS RAE Financial assets at amortised cost - 416,308 300,000 644,994 90,000 - - 1,451,302
2018F12A318 At 31 December 2018
BREAEH: Certificates of deposit held included in:
WATEEREBHHA Financial assets at fair value through
B2 ENENeREE other comprehensive income - 199,956 - 215853 13,949 - - 499758
ISR AT S REE Financial assets at amortised cost - 299,895 202,759 409,640 193,838 - - 1126132

B EEEEHRRFEOBRENZIENEIRE S
EEEE+THEE - HRETHEBR LTS
THETE IR RN ELER - $iRTTmE @ T248
RAIERL N ER - TEENFEERAIRERER
Flge 1 - B INEERE

BEHBENIHERUGENRAEREB
wg:a%mam EAMEEERBE S RE R
REXREEMAERBNERRE

AEE— BT BEHRE= e REAEHE2ED
BES  BAERNEREHZENIHREN
HBESHEFERIONEAENSE - AR RZEE
AERISRRIEEHESHRES  FBARE
fF%ZFE%?m%Eﬁamﬁﬁﬁ%bﬁﬂ
HgmReHRK -
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The matching and controlled mismatching of the maturities and interest
rates of assets and liabilities are fundamental to the management
of the Group. It is unusual for banks to be completely matched, as
businesses transacted are often of uncertain term and of different
types. An unmatched position potentially enhances profitability, but
also increases the risk of losses.

The maturities of assets and liabilities and the ability to replace, at
an acceptable cost, interest-bearing liabilities as they mature are
important factors in assessing the liquidity of the Group and its
exposure to changes in interest rates and exchange rates.

Liquidity requirements to support calls under guarantees and
standby letters of credit are considerably less than the amount of the
commitment because the Group does not generally expect the third
parties to fully draw funds under the agreement. The total outstanding
contractual amount of commitments to extend credit does not
necessarily represent future cash requirements, as many of these
commitments will expire or terminate without being funded.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

The table below presents the cash flows payable by the Group under
non-derivative financial liabilities, derivative financial liabilities that will
be settled on a net basis and derivative financial instruments that will
be settled on gross basis by remaining contractual maturities at the
end of the reporting period. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows, whereas the Group manages the
inherent liquidity risk based on expected undiscounted cash inflows.

The Group’s derivatives that normally will be settled on a net basis
include:

° Foreign exchange derivatives: OTC currency options, currency
futures, exchange-traded currency options;

o Interest rate derivatives: interest rate swaps, forward rate
agreements, OTC interest rate options, interest rate futures and
other interest rate contracts; and

o Equity derivatives: equity options.

The Group’s derivatives that will be settled on a gross basis include:

° Foreign exchange derivatives: currency forward, currency swaps;

o Interest rate derivatives: interest rate swaps and cross currency
interest rate swaps; and

° Credit derivatives: credit default swaps.
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3. HMERBREE@ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.4 REBELEM @ 3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

343 BEX B AZ KB LR £ 5 (&) 3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities
(Continued)

1HAAEE SEALL

KIEEEDSN Z1f 180 E
1B 3 months or Over Z5F
Upto less but over 3months  Over 1 year 5ELE &3t
2019%12A31H At 31 December 2019 1 month 1 month to 1 year to5years  Over5 years Total
FTETARER Non-derivative cash flow
af Liabilities
RITER Deposits from banks 1,642,858 7,132 4,081 826,958 - 2,481,029
BPER Deposits from customers 106,046,132 45555009 30,157,078 3,983,055 - 185,741,274
HEEERBEMNAR Trading liabilities 1,840,000 2,781,000 904,717 10,119 = 5,535,836
BRI HE Certificates of deposit issued 1,114,587 1,053,599 4,257,623 483,697 - 6,909,506
&EER Subordinated notes 43,557 1,809,075 126,074 4,088,018 - 6,066,724
HEBE Lease liabilities 15,993 31,703 131,226 251,852 24,649 455,423
Hiv B s Other liabilities 5,437,434 757,219 315,274 - 345,679 6,855,606
BELSR Total liabilities
(A#3I5R) (contractual maturity dates) 116,140,561 51,994,737 35,896,073 9,643,699 370,328 214,045,398
TETIERER Derivative cash flow
BEBEE Derivative financial
TEEMTA instruments settled on
net basis (14,014) (6,393) (41,969) (6,266) - (68,642)
g ekt Derivative financial
TEEMTA instruments settled on a
gross basis
Dol Total outflow 28,484,074 | | 24,631,710 | | 31,354,261 3,621,619 1,346,641 | | 89,438,305
MALBE Total inflow (28,463,955) | | (24,642,771) | | (31,352,847) | | (3,313,787) | | (1,177,818) | |(88,951,178)
20,119 (11,061) 1,414 307,832 168,823 487,127
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3.

3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

(Continued)
1{E A A LB SMEAME
3MEAFAT EF 1EME
@A T 3 monthsor Over 255
Upto less but over 3months  Over 1 year 5FE B
201812 A31H At 31 December 2018 1 month 1 month to 1 year to5years  Over5 years Total
FTETARER Non-derivative cash flow
afs Liabilities
RITER Deposits from banks 1,454,055 872,197 667,035 822,664 - 3,815,951
ZPER Deposits from customers 101,251,790 44,592,302 26,714,649 3,081,414 144,996 175,785,151
HEEERENAE Trading liabilities 1,458,500 2,828,500 1,480,402 10,238 - 5,777,640
BRI HE Certificates of deposit issued 1,731,200 1,106,699 3,181,665 670,407 - 6,689,971
RIEER Subordinated notes 1,807,667 57,067 141,242 3,944,398 - 5,950,374
HEEE Lease liabilities = = - - - _
Hiv B g Other liabilities 3,677,199 474,449 340,798 - 159,455 4,651,901
B8 Total liabilities
(RHZHR) (contractual maturity dates) 111,380,411 49,931,214 32,525,791 8,529,121 304,451 202,670,988
MTETARER Derivative cash flow
WIRREE Derivative financial instruments
TESRMIA settled on net basis 25,953 281,251 1,294,200 968,461 - 2,569,865
bt b Derivative financial instruments
fTEE®MTIA settled on a gross basis
pinlast ket Total outflow 38,074,115 12,200,786 22,793,990 2,575,916 1,009,851 76,654,658
AR Total inflow (38,011,675) | | (12,101,404) | | (22,923,348) (2,701,086) (1,052,610) | | (76,790,123
62,440 99,382 (129,358) (125,170) (42,759) (135,465)
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.4 Off-balance sheet items

Included in the table below are the following items:

o Loan commitments by reference to the dates of the contractual
amounts of the Group’s off-balance sheet financial instruments
that commit it to extend credit to customers and other facilities;

o Financial guarantees based on the conditions existing at the
reporting date as to what contractual payments are required;

° The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of operating lease commitments
where a Group company is the lessee; and

o HBERERREIEREARE- e  Capital commitments for the acquisition of buildings and
equipment.
1FE R 180k 5F L E
No later E5%F Over Ear
2019%12831H At 31 December 2019 than 1 year 1-5 years 5 years Total
ERRIE Loan commitments 76,388,203 2,111,719 686,125 79,186,047
BR - AHL R Guarantees, acceptances and
Hth & BARA other financial facilities
—ERREREAZE — Guarantees and standby
letters of credit 1,051,259 40,065 - 1,091,324
—RENEELCHE — Documentary and commercial
letters of credit 967,813 - - 967,813
AR S TH )R IE Operating lease commitments 2,640 198,563 234,407 435,610
B HE Capital commitments 147,096 - - 147,096
A&t Total 78,557,011 2,350,347 920,532 81,827,890
1FE AR 1F LA 5F A E
No later E5%F Over &&r
201812 H31H At 31 December 2018 than 1 year 1-5 years 5 years Total
BERURIE Loan commitments 72,550,076 1,692,509 522,363 74,764,948
BR  EHK Guarantees, acceptances and
E fth & @b AR 7% other financial facilities
—EREERERE - Guarantees and standby
letters of credit 968,569 143,591 - 1,112,160
—RENEEERE — Documentary and commercial
letters of credit 948,709 18,287 - 966,996
4R BT 4R HE Operating lease commitments 226,425 657,244 410,863 1,294,532
B AR EE Capital commitments 89,469 - - 89,469
=R Total 74,783,248 2,511,631 933,226 78,228,105
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
(a) Determination of fair value

Fair values are subject to a control framework that the Board is
held responsible for ensuring proper valuation governance and
control processes of the Group. It delegates the responsibility for
overseeing the valuation process for financial instruments to the
TIRC. Valuation is performed independently by RMCD and where
appropriate, by independent and professionally qualified valuers
and the valuation results are periodically verified to ensure the
integrity of the fair value measurement process.

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement
date under current market conditions regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using a valuation
technique.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market
if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or
regulatory agency. A quoted price in an active market provides
the most reliable evidence of fair value and shall be used
whenever available. If a financial asset or a financial liability has
a bid price and an ask price, the price within the bid-ask spread
that is most representative of fair value in the circumstances is
used by the Group.

Where observable market quotation of financial instruments
is not directly available, the Group estimates the fair value
of such financial instruments by using appropriate valuation
techniques that are widely recognised including present value
techniques and standard option pricing models. In applying
valuation techniques for these financial instruments, the Group
maximises the use of relevant observable inputs (for examples,
interest rates, foreign exchange rates, volatilities, credit spreads)
and minimises the use of unobservable inputs. For example,
the fair value of interest-rate swaps is calculated as the present
value of the estimated future cash flows, the fair value of foreign
exchange forward contracts is generally based on current
forward rates and the fair value of option contracts is derived
using appropriate pricing models, such as Black-Scholes model.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(a) Determination of fair value (Continued)

The Group uses external price quotes and its own credit spreads
in determining the current value of its financial liabilities and other
liabilities for which it has elected the fair value option. When the
Group’s credit spreads widen, the Group recognises a gain on
these liabilities because the value of the liabilities has decreased.
When the Group’s credit spreads narrow, the Group recognises
a loss on these liabilities because the value of the liabilities has
increased.

Price data and parameters used in the measurement process
are reviewed carefully and adjusted, if necessary, to take
consideration of the current market developments.

(b) Fair value hierarchy

The Group measures fair values using the following hierarchy
that reflects the significance of the observable and unobservable
inputs used in the fair value measurement:

Level Descriptions

1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities. This level includes equity
securities and derivatives that are listed on exchanges.

2 Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices). This level includes the majority of the OTC
derivative contracts.

3 Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs). This
level includes equity and debt securities with significant
unobservable components.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

tREEREBZ AR E®E
(Z) RFEZER @
BAFEFEZEERERE

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(b) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value:

BEMAFETE Recurring fair value measurements
1R 28R 3R a5

2019%12A31H At 31 December 2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AR Descriptions
ARAFEFZEEHE Financial assets at fair value

STABERNERMERE through profit or loss

BEBESH Debt securities - 8,716,721 - 8,716,721
TTEEmIT A Derivative financial instruments

FEEERZ Held for trading - 457,652 - 457,652

HH BEET Held for hedging - 110,164 = 110,164
UWRAFEZEEHE Financial assets at fair value

AR EEUW A through other comprehensive

SREE income

1EREE> Debt securities - 42,050,218 - 42,050,218

RS Equity securities 30,277 - 82,710 112,987
BNV ETE 2 EES5T Total assets measured at fair

value 30,277 51,334,755 82,710 51,447,742

AR EFZEEHE Financial liabilities at fair value

AR RERE through profit or loss

EIEEERS Held for trading - 5,516,558 - 5,516,558
TTESmIT A Derivative financial instruments

HIEEER%E Held for trading - 370,356 = 370,356

HH AEEH Held for hedging - 722,672 = 722,672
AT ETE2BESET Total liabilities measured

at fair value - 6,609,586 - 6,609,586

RERFBIRHNEEZ CRMEERIFLTE
GBS REFRE - KEEREERAF
BHR - EERKAEART -

H Z2019F12 A31H K&2018F12 A31H 1t
FE - HESHEERBBZ HME AE
HEATFEEHHNEIRR - BREE &

REfhkas S -

Financial assets classified as Level 3 assets represent
investments in unlisted equity securities and debentures. They

are stated at fair value which approximates the cost.

For the year ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018,
there were no other transfers of financial assets and liabilities
into or out of the Level 3 fair value hierarchy. The changes in

carrying value represent the revaluation gains/losses.
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3. HKERERE@ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

35 SREEREBZATE@ 3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(Z) R FEFHE @ (b) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
BAFEFEZEERARE (& Assets and liabilities measured at fair value: (Continued)
BEMATETE @ Recurring fair value measurements (Continued)

FAR FE2M E3MH A5

2018412 A31H At 31 December 2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AR Descriptions
ARAFEFZEEHE Financial assets at fair value

STABERNERMERE through profit or loss

BIEEH Debt securities - 7,948,667 = 7,948,667
TTEEmIT A Derivative financial instruments

REEEAS Held for trading - 289,399 - 289,399

A R EEH Held for hedging - 437,644 - 437,644
ARAFEZEEHE Financial assets at fair value

FTAH A 2 EERY through other comprehensive

TREE income

(B> Debt securities - 41,541,197 — 41,541,197

fES A Equity securities 30,201 - 83,038 113,239

BNV ETE 2 EES5T Total assets measured at fair

value 30,201 50,216,907 83,038 50,330,146
AR EFZEEHE Financial liabilities at fair value
STABEZRNEREE through profit or loss
REEEASR Held for trading - 5,758,954 - 5,758,954
TTEESmIT A Derivative financial instruments
REEEASR Held for trading 589 351,459 - 352,048
B e Held for hedging - 121,225 - 121,225

BAVEFEZAES

1 Total liabilities measured at fair
value 589 6,231,638 - 6,232,227

pall}
ik
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(c) Financial instruments not measured at fair value

The following methods and significant assumptions have been
applied in determining the fair values of financial instruments
presented below:

(i) Placements with banks

The fair value of floating rate placements and overnight
deposits is their carrying amount. The estimated fair value
of fixed interest bearing deposits is based on discounted
cash flows using prevailing money-market interest rates for
debts with similar credit risk and remaining maturity.

(i) Loans and advances to customers, and trade bills

The estimated fair value of loans and advances and trade
bills represents the discounted amount of estimated future
cash flows expected to be received. Expected cash flows
are discounted at current market rates to determine fair
value.

(iii)  Investment securities

Investment securities include interest-bearing assets
included in the amortised cost category. Fair value of
amortised cost assets is based on market prices or broker/
dealer price quotations. Where this information is not
available, fair value is estimated using quoted market
prices for securities with similar credit, maturity and yield
characteristics.

(iv) Deposits and balances from banks, deposits from
customers, certificates of deposit issued and other
borrowed funds

The estimated fair value of deposits with no stated
maturity, which includes non-interest bearing deposits, is
the amount repayable on demand. The estimated fair value
of fixed interest-bearing deposits and other borrowings
not quoted in an active market is based on discounted
cash flows using interest rates for new debts with similar

remaining maturity.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(c) Financial instruments not measured at fair value
(Continued)

(v) Debt securities in issue including subordinated
notes issued

For those notes where quoted market prices are not
available, the present value technique is used based on
current yield curve and/or credit spread appropriate for the
remaining term to maturity to estimate fair value.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments
carried at cost or amortised cost are not materially different from
their fair values as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 except as

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

follows:
IREE
Carrying F1R PR E3M NN
2019%F12A31H At 31 December 2019 value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair value
CREE Financial assets
LA AR ARFIBREY  Financial assets at
SREE amortised cost 15,644,389 - 15,666,589 4,733 15,671,322
tREE Financial liabilities
BEEITNTRE Certificates of deposit
issued 6,750,825 - 6,752,003 - 6,752,003
BIEEE Subordinated notes 5,510,181 - 5,590,049 - 5,590,049
IRE(E
Carrying FAR EE E3R NIE
2018412 A31H At 31 December 2018 value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair value
TREE Financial assets
LA SRR ARTIBREY  Financial assets at
SREE amortised cost 9,132,720 - 9,024,491 4,753 9,029,244
SREE Financial liabilities
BEETNERE Certificates of deposit
issued 6,535,076 - 6,540,429 - 6,540,429
BEEE Subordinated notes 5,449,082 - 5,523,539 - 5,523,539
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.6 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

° To comply with the capital requirements set by the banking
regulators in the markets where the entities within the Group
operate;

° To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue its business as a
going concern;

° To maximise returns to shareholders and optimise the benefits to
other stakeholders; and

o To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of
its business.

Capital adequacy of and the use of regulatory capital are monitored
regularly by the Group’s management, employing techniques based on
the guidelines developed by the Basel Committee, as implemented by
the HKMA, for supervisory purposes. The required information is filed
with the HKMA on a quarterly basis.

As Basel lll has become effective from January 2013 in Hong Kong,
the Bank is required to meet three capital ratios, namely, the Common
Equity Tier 1 capital, Tier 1 capital and Total capital respectively
against risk-weighted assets. The internationally agreed minimum
of these three ratios starting from 1 January 2015 are set at 4.5%,
6.0% and 8.0% respectively and are adopted by the HKMA. In order
to comply with HKMA’s requirements as stated in the SPM CA-G-5
on “Supervisory Review Process”, the Bank is required to set further
buffers, to reflect material risks not included in the minimum regulatory
capital calculation, arising from regulator’s requirements, internal
assessment of risks and the results of stress tests under the Pillar Il
capital requirement. In addition, the Bank is required to fulfil the capital
conservation buffer and countercyclical capital buffer requirements set
by the HKMA. Likewise, the Leverage Ratio that forms part of Basel llI
implementation becomes a Pillar 1 requirement from 1 January 2018
and required information is submitted by the Bank to the HKMA on
quarterly basis. In line with the international standards, the minimum
Leverage Ratio is set at 3% by the HKMA.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.6 Capital management (Continued)

Risk-weighted amount is the aggregate of the risk-weighted amounts
for credit risk, market risk and operational risk, and covers both on-
balance sheet and off-balance sheet exposures. On-balance sheet
exposures are classified according to the obligor or the nature of each
exposure and risk-weighted based on the credit assessment rating
assigned by an external credit assessment institution recognised by
the HKMA or other rules as set out in the Banking (Capital) Rules,
taking into account the capital effects of credit risk mitigation. Off-
balance sheet exposures are converted into credit-equivalent amounts
by applying relevant credit conversion factors to each exposure, before
being classified and risk-weighted as if they were on-balance sheet

exposures.

The principal forms of capital included in the balances on the
consolidated balance sheet are share capital, retained profits, other
equity instruments and other reserves. Capital also includes collective
provisions and regulatory reserve for general banking risks as allowed
under the Banking (Capital) Rules.

Capital adequacy of and the use of regulatory capital by the Group’s
Macau banking subsidiary, BCM, and banking subsidiary in China,
DSB China, are monitored regularly by the Group’s management,
employing techniques based on the guidelines provided by the
Autoridade Monetéria de Macau (“AMCM?”) and the China Banking
and Insurance Regulatory Commission (“CBIRC”) respectively for
SUpervisory purposes.

The required information is filed by BCM with the AMCM and by DSB
China with the CBIRC on a quarterly basis. The AMCM requires BCM
and the CBIRC requires DSB China to maintain a ratio of own funds or
capital base to total risk-weighted exposures (i.e. the capital adequacy
ratio) not lower than the required statutory minimum of 8%.

Certain non-banking subsidiaries of the Group are also subject to
statutory capital requirements from other regulatory authorities, such as
the Securities and Futures Commission.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.7 Fiduciary activities

The Group provides custody, trustee, wealth management and
advisory services to third parties, which involve the Group making
allocation and purchase and sale decisions in relation to a variety of
financial instruments. Those assets that are held in a fiduciary capacity
are not included in the Group’s financial statements. These services
could give rise to the risk that the Group could be accused of mal-

administration.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates
and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Changes
in estimates and assumptions may have a significant impact on the
results of the Group in the periods when changes are made. The
application and selection of different estimates and assumptions, and
their subsequent changes, could affect the Group’s profit and net asset
value in the future. The Group, based on its high-level assessment
of the sensitivity impacts on the reported assets and liabilities of the
Group arising from the changes in critical accounting estimates and
assumptions, believes that the estimates and assumptions adopted
are appropriate and reasonable, and the financial results and positions
presented in the Group’s financial statements are fair and reasonable
in all material respects.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(@) Measurement of the ECL allowance

The measurement of the ECL allowance for financial assets measured
at amortised cost and FVOCI is an area that requires the use of
complex models and significant assumptions about future economic
conditions and credit behaviour (e.g. the likelihood of customers
defaulting and the resulting losses). Explanation of the inputs,
assumptions and estimation techniques used in measuring ECL is
further detailed in note 3.2.2, which also sets out key sensitivities of
the ECL to changes in these elements.

A number of significant judgements are also required in applying the
accounting requirements for measuring ECL, such as:

o Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk;

o Choosing appropriate models and assumptions for the
measurement of ECL;

o Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-
looking scenarios for each type of product/market and the
associated ECL; and

° Establishing groups of similar financial assets for the purposes of
measuring ECL.

Detailed information about the judgements and estimates made by the
Group in the above areas is set out in note 3.2.2.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Fair value of financial instruments

A majority of the Group’s investments in debt securities carried at
fair value are valued based on observable market quotations. As a
consequence of the difficulties in financial markets caused by the 2008
global financial crisis, the Group had witnessed observable declines
in market liquidity and the range of market quotations for certain
securities have widened. The Group applies judgement in selecting
the most appropriate quotation for valuation purposes based on its
assessment of the range of observable quotations, recent observable
transactions, the reliability and quality of the pricing source, and the
value of securities of a similar nature.

(c) Goodwill and intangible asset valuation

For business combinations, subsequent to initial recognition of
goodwill and intangible assets, any major change in the assumptions
in relation to future benefits to be generated from the intangible
assets, including future cash flow of benefits to be generated from the
acquired entities, or discount rates which could be caused by major
changes in market conditions and outlook, could result in adjustments
to the carrying values of such assets. In the event that the expected
recoverable amounts of goodwill and intangible assets are significantly
lower than their carrying values, impairment of such assets would have
to be recognised.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Distinction between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment
property. In making its judgement, the Group considers whether the
property generates cash flows largely independently of the other assets
held by an entity. Owner-occupied properties generate cash flows that
are attributable not only to property but also to other assets used in
the production or supply process.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation and another portion that is held to supply
services or for administrative purposes. If these portions can be
sold separately (or leased out separately under a finance lease), the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions cannot
be sold separately, the property is accounted for as investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held to supply services or for
administrative purposes. Judgement is applied in determining whether
ancillary services are so significant that a property does not qualify as
investment property. The Group considers each property separately in
making its judgement.

() Assessment of claims and contingencies

Judgement is needed to determine if provision for compensation to
certain customers who had bought structured investments distributed
(but not originated or arranged) by the Group need to be recorded in
accordance with the requirements of HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets”. In making this judgement, the
Group evaluates the information relating to each or similar cases, and
the likelihood and estimated amount of outflow of resources which
may be incurred to settle the obligation after considering factors such
as recent settlement experiences and advice from legal counsel.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

() Impairment assessment of the investment in an
associate, Bank of Chongging (“BOCQ”)

The Group carries out periodic impairment assessments on its
investment in BOCQ in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of
assets”.

This assessment compares the carrying value of the investment
against the higher of management’s estimate of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal. Management’s estimate of the value in
use is based on a discounted cash flow projection which contains
certain assumptions derived from management and observable market
information. This estimate is subject to application of management
judgment and is sensitive to assumptions on the discount rate and
the cash flows arising from the holding of this investment and from its
ultimate disposal.

As at 31 December 2019, management’s estimate of the value in use is
lower than the carrying value of its investment in BOCQ. As a result, in
the year ended 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of the Group’s
investment in BOCQ has been written down by HK$287 million (2018:
HK$633 million).

REIRITAR AR 2019F F 3]

165



RIFEER R M ot

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ T JThI%17R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

166

4, ERASTTBER2EESIMER
H 4 )

(R) HEMzEE

EEHENE - BEERERAA A o LS

FAITEEREERE A TTERELRERZSE
ERBER - EREEE (R IDRIZER ZBRH)
RAEEZHER A EMRREE SR (TR
THeEERESA -

AMEHEMS - THER—RERAEM

o WEKRLE(ERTER)EEARER  NEE—
RE|IEHMEEER(HTRIL) °

s (WAEMRKEEFSEEANSKREER A%
E—REaERELR(RTRL) -

s TR AEEeETEHEGRERSMEBECZHE
SR b S AT B A EE P RE 2 B S AN TS
ZEEL -

HRAEE A AEFERF S HBELER T Rt
HEEBE MEHEPZEREERAZRAE
REMEERE -

R2018F12 A31H * R TS BT Z S
ERTER (TR  BEZRFBSRLEE
180,122,000/ CREAIR) W AR BIEEHEAE -

HEEEEANFTE(RTTE)XAEEES
PEPTER(RTITE)ZEERE - AlGEHTR
HEM - AAERLE —FEEFENEREMHIR
BEAEE - AAEABEAFENZBERN TE
ERT A R IRHETE 2 FF i - AP BFEREAR - A%
B3 A TR (AT R B AR L LR AR HE -

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Determination of the lease term

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise an
extension option, or not exercise a termination option. Extension
options (or periods after termination options) are only included in the
lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not
terminated).

For leases of properties, the following factors are normally the most
relevant:

° If there are significant penalties to terminate (or not extend), the
Group is typically reasonably certain to extend (or not terminate).

o If any leasehold improvements are expected to have a significant
remaining value, the Group is typically reasonably certain to
extend (or not terminate).

o Otherwise, the Group considers other factors including historical
lease durations and the costs and business disruption required
to replace the leased asset.

Most extension options in property leases have not been included in
the lease liability, because the Group could replace the assets without
significant cost or business disruption.

As at 31 December 2018, potential future cash outflows of
HK$180,122,000 (undiscounted) have not been included in the lease
liability because it is not reasonably certain that the leases will be
extended (or not terminated).

The lease term is reassessed if an option is actually exercised (or
not exercised) or the Group becomes obliged to exercise (or not
exercise) it. The assessment of reasonable certainty is only revised if
a significant event or a significant change in circumstances occurs,
which affects this assessment, and that is within the control of the
lessee. During the current financial year, the Group has not exercised
any extension or termination options.
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5. ABITHBRARKRHEEED

5. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE BANK

SR AT MR AR R 2R Statement of Financial Position of the Bank
12A31H
As at 31 December
2019 2018
BE ASSETS
Re RERITHAEER Cash and balances with banks 16,627,733 14,945,938
FEIRIT1 21218 A REIEIR 751 Placements with banks maturing between
one and twelve months 5,299,535 9,789,790
FIEEERENES Trading securities 8,387,953 7,621,184
AAFETEAEZHEA Financial assets at fair value through
EamefEE profit or loss 328,768 327,483
$7 iﬁ%ﬂlﬂ Derivative financial instruments 567,790 727,145
BIREFRHAMEE Advances and other accounts 122,467,927 115,151,999
AT ERTEAEEHIA Financial assets at fair value through
Hitn 2 EM A S A other comprehensive income 42,125,966 41,617,004
A AR AT IBR M S R B E Financial assets at amortised cost 10,634,198 4,678,254
BrE NI E Investment in an associate 1,213,057 1,213,057
HEEFEEREA Investments in jointly controlled entities 20,000 20,000
MBARERERER Investments in and loans to subsidiaries 3,787,490 3,807,817
1TEREMEEEE Premises and other fixed assets 2,345,056 2,425,962
REMZE Investment properties 1,148,283 1,177,114
ERETIBEE Deferred income tax assets 34,535 75,910
BES Total assets 214,988,291 203,578,657
=i LIABILITIES
BITER Deposits from banks 5,663,504 6,683,304
PTAESRIA Derivative financial instruments 1,094,073 473,606
HEEERENARE Trading liabilities 5,516,558 5,758,954
EPEX Deposits from customers 156,033,961 148,045,869
B BTN HE Certificates of deposit issued 6,850,752 6,535,076
& IEER Subordinated notes 5,510,181 5,449,082
HibHR B KIER Other accounts and accruals 10,208,711 7,845,849
BRI A B Current income tax liabilities 426,352 549,618
E@E55 Total liabilities 191,304,092 181,341,358
i EQUITY
LN Share capital 6,200,000 6,200,000
{1 Other reserves
(BERBRH) = (F) (including retained earnings) Note () 16,585,612 15,138,712
BRES Shareholders’ funds 22,785,612 21,338,712
BIMERMTR Additional equity instruments 898,587 898,587
ERET Total equity 23,684,199 22,237,299
BERAGES Total equity and liabilities 214,988,291 203,578,657
B HSH202043 524 B L RIS o Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24
March 2020.
EEHE FHHE Hon-Hing Wong Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
== EoE7 Director Managing Director
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5. ABRITUBMRRRERFEED @ St

i
() ARITHEBED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE BANK (Continued)

Note:

(@) Reserve movement of the Bank

BB RER REEF
TEERRE BRESGERE Sl A (&)
Premises Investment —MRH##E  Reservefor Retained
Revaluation ~ Revaluation General  Share-based Earnings Sl
Reserve Reserve Reserve Compensation (Note) Total
20191810 At 1 January 2019 233,100 44,144 693,304 12,005 14,156,159 15,138,712
iafER BB S %R Changes on initial application of
F165 228 HKFRS16 - - - - (2,031) (2,031)
BES 2201951 A1 B &R Restated balance at 1 January 2019 233,100 44,144 693,304 12,005 14,154,128 15,136,681
ATHESENMRIEERE HEN Fair value loss realised and transferred
DATETE B S8 to income statement upon disposal
AH M2 E R ER AR of debt instruments at fair value
BRREYEWRE through other comprehensive
income upon derecognition - 24 - - - 24
MATEHEBEETHTA Net change in fair value of debt
Hip2EWENEFIAEZ instruments at fair value through
N EEEFE other comprehensive income - 317,313 - - = 317,313
NAFEE A A EE A Net change in fair value of equity
Hih 2 AN EatE TR instruments at fair value through
AHEEHFH other comprehensive income - 986 - - - 986
REASEESE JETERE Deferred income tax on movements in
investment revaluation reserve - (52,300) - - - (52,300)
DATER 2 BRI Net change in allowance for expected
Hir2EAREMEF T credit losses of debt instruments
BHEEEBREZETE at fair value through other
comprehensive income - 4,486 - - - 4,486
MBI TR ZREFE Distribution payment of additional
equity instruments - - - - (41,682) (41,682)
DARAE S (AR fE B Provision for equity-settled
R 2 B share-based compensation - - - 1,396 = 1,396
FRREM Profit for the year - - - - 1,854,208 1,854,208
2018F REIR 2 2018 final dividend - - - - (452,600) (452,600)
2019F FHIIR & 2019 interim dividend - - - - (182,900) (182,900)
2019%12H31H At 31 December 2019 233,100 314,653 693,304 13,401 15,331,154 16,585,612
i Note:

RRITANG E BT A ERRT B R EERMA

The Bank is required to maintain minimum impairment provisions in excess of

AN B AEIRE R R - Mtz BR e R iR (et st BORPI RS
FIRTT RAFRIT (P ED) TH BT 6 BB RITEMED R A
FEHEERANZAMEERTE - ZEERERR K
BTRRZFHRSH EERBIEHAETESER
HEITHER - WEEN SRR

M2019F 12 8318 - AN IRTTEFEE1,127,403,00075 7T
(20184F : 1,195,194,000/8 7L ) 2 & RBIE B EEE i fE 5L
I EAR S —RHE - RERRARTZESREBEAT
FIETE ©

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

those required under HKFRS in the form of regulatory reserve. The regulatory
reserve, which also covers BCM and DSB China, is maintained to satisfy
the provisions of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance and local regulatory
requirements for prudential supervision purposes. The regulatory reserve
restricts the amount of reserves which can be distributed to shareholders.
Movements in the regulatory reserve are made directly through equity reserve
and in consultation with the HKMA.

As at 31 December 2019, the Bank has earmarked a regulatory reserve of
HK$1,127,403,000 (2018: HK$1,195,194,000) first against the consolidated
general reserve; and for any excess amount, the balance is earmarked against
the consolidated retained earnings of the Bank.
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5. ZABITHBARRRRFEEE @ 5. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

ERNC-)

(F) ARITFEZSH(E)

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE BANK (Continued)

Note: (Continued)
(@) Reserve movement of the Bank (Continued)

AR AR RE &

TEEERRE REEERE B HE (7%)
Premises Investment —REEE Reserve for Retained
Revaluation Revaluation General  Share-based Earnings &3t
Reserve Reserve Reserve  Compensation (Note) Total
20181 A1H At 1 January 2018 233,100 356,786 693,304 10,642 13,249,037 14,542,869
MiarER BB I RS %R Changes on initial application of
Fom e HKFRS 9 = 50,623 = = (379,945) (329,322)
MEF) 7201851 A1B£&H Restated balance at 1 January 2018 233,100 407,409 693,304 10,642 12,869,092 14,213,547
AT ARG IR &/ Fair value gain realised and transferred
AT ErE BEZETA to income statement upon disposal
Hit2ARENEE AR of debt instruments at fair value
2R REBE HE through other comprehensive
income upon derecognition - (1,682) - - - (1,682)

IR IERERRE - B3 DB
AFEFFEREZTFA
HitZEPEmERE
TAZRVEEDFE
(BBit8)

IRFEREBEZEEA
Hip2EYE0ER
TAZRVEEDFE

IRFEREBEZEA
HitZmEEmERE
TAZRVEEDFE

REEMRHERSETHR

IRFERE B AR B AL
REYESRERTEZEH
FEBREED TR

HEIMERM TR ZIRERE

DARRAE S (5 AR 1 fE B R
WM B

FERF

2017 REIRE

2018FHHiRE

20185124311

Reclassification of net change in fair

value of equity instruments at fair

value through other comprehensive

income upon derecognition, net of

tax - 14,531 - - (14,531) -
Net change in fair value of debt

instruments at fair value through

other comprehensive income - (456,336) - - - (456,336)
Net change in fair value of equity

instruments at fair value through

other comprehensive income - 1,698 - - - 1,698
Deferred income tax on movements in

investment revaluation reserve = 73,257 = - - 73,257
Net change in allowance for expected

credit losses of debt instruments

at fair value through other

comprehensive income - 5,267 - - - 5,267
Distribution payment of additional

equity instruments = = - - (39,033) (39,033)
Provision for equity-settled

share-based compensation - - - 1,363 - 1,363
Profit for the year - - - - 1,957,531 1,957,531
2017 final dividend - - - - (434,000) (434,000)
2018 interim dividend - - - - (182,900) (182,900)
At 31 December 2018 233,100 44,144 693,304 12,005 14,156,159 15,138,712
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6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING

Segment reporting by the Group is prepared in accordance with
HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”. Information reported to the chief
operating decision maker, including the Chief Executive and other
Executive Committee members, for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment, is determined on the basis of
personal banking, commercial banking, treasury and overseas banking
business. Operating performances are analysed by business activities
for local banking business, and on business entity basis for overseas
banking business.

Considering the customer groups, products and services of local
businesses, the economic environment and regulations, the Group
splits the operating segments of the Group into the following reportable
segments:

° Personal banking business includes the acceptance of deposits
from individual customers and the extension of residential
mortgage lending, personal loans, overdraft, vehicle financing
and credit card services, and the provision of insurance sales
and investment services.

° Commercial banking business includes the acceptance of
deposits from and the advance of loans and working capital
finance to commercial, industrial and institutional customers, and
the provision of trade financing.

° Treasury activities are mainly the provision of foreign exchange
services and centralised cash management for deposit taking
and lending, interest rate risk management, management of
investment in securities and the overall funding of the Group.

o Overseas banking businesses include personal banking,
commercial banking business activities provided by overseas
subsidiaries in Macau and China, and the Group’s interest in a
commercial bank in China.

o Others include results of operations not directly identified under
other reportable segments, corporate investments and debt
funding (including subordinated notes).
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6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

For the purpose of segment reporting, revenue derived from
customers, products and services directly identifiable with individual
segments are reported directly under respective segments, while
revenue and funding cost arising from inter-segment funding
operation and funding resources are allocated to segments by way
of transfer pricing mechanism with reference to market interest rates.
Transactions within segments are priced based on similar terms
offered to or transacted with external parties. Inter-segment income or
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

All direct costs incurred by different segments are grouped under
respective segments. Indirect costs and support functions’ costs are
allocated to various segments and products based on effort and time
spent as well as segments’ operating income depending on the nature
of costs incurred. Costs related to corporate activities that cannot be
reasonably allocated to segments, products and support functions are
grouped under Others as unallocated corporate expenses.
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6. BEIERE®W

BZE2019F12A31HILLEE

6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

BART RERT BHMRIT BIEH
Personal Commercial BIE#%  Overseas Hity Inter- st
Banking Banking Treasury Banking Others segment Total
FRIBMA/(X)  Netinterest income/
(expenses) 1,690,585 1,262,484 748,168 497,382 (142,844) - 4,055,775
FERBHA Non-interest income 949,299 194,505 1,539 138,119 34,749 - 1,318,211
BB/ (EH) Total operating income/
(expenses) 2,639,884 1,456,989 749,707 635,501 (108,095) - 5,373,986
EEXH Operating expenses (1,655,353)  (528,318)  (179,202)  (507,483) 8,964 - (2,861,392
MREEREEERZ  Operating profit/(oss)
BERT/(EE) before credit impairment
losses 984,531 928,671 570,505 128,018 (99,131) - 2,512,594
EEREEE Credit impairment losses (260,484) (72,934) (9,240) (12,250) (1,478) - (356,386)
B EERERERZ  Operating profit/(oss) after
2@at /(1) credit impairment losses 724,047 855,737 561,265 115,768  (100,609) - 2,156,208
HEREMEREM  Net (loss)/gain on disposal
EFEENREATE  andfair value adjustment
BEZF(HE) /W of investment properties
and other fixed assets (3,524) - - 58 (31,391) - (34,857)
HEUNATEFEE  Netloss on disposal of
HEFFAEM2A  financial assets at fair
WM eREEL value through other
FEE comprehensive income - - (24) - - = (24)
BENAIRE L Impairment loss on
AIEEE the investment in an
associate - - - (287,000) - - (287,000)
JE(RESE ARl 254 Share of results of an
associate - - - 701,857 - - 701,857
G HEREH|E®R 2 Share of results of jointly
E controlled entities - - - - 32,072 = 32,072
BB AER/ (B18) Profit/(loss) before taxation 720,523 855,737 561,241 530,683 (99,928) - 2,568,256
ML),/ e Taxation (expenses)/credit (118,812)  (141,019) (92,584) (18,262) 17,691 - (352,986)
BRI R/ (B8)  Profit/(loss) after taxation 601,711 714,718 468,657 512,421 (82,237) - 2215270
#HZ2019F12A31H  For the year ended
I3 31 December 2019
HEREHEER Depreciation and
amortisation 78,802 16,658 6,548 60,525 218,377 - 380,910
20195124318 At 31 December 2019
NEEE Segment assets 53,809,806 66,154,676 84,671,487 38,406,836 6,325,726  (5,110,854) 244,257,677
HEARE Segment liabilities 108,290,918 44,136,433 19,835,415 30,335,062 18,686,543  (5,110,854) 216,173,517
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6. BEIERE®W

HZE2018F12 31 HILFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018

EARTT HERIT HINRIT L]
Personal Commercial ~ Bf&%7#%  Overseas Hit Inter- 4=t
Banking Banking Treasury Banking Others segment Total
FRBHA Net interest income 1,742,431 1,238,085 625,952 543,458 2,896 - 4,152,822
JEMBWA/(ZH)  Non-interest income/
(expenses) 938,523 204,650 (70,558) 142,890 32,566 - 1,248,071
HEWA Total operating income 2,680,954 1,442,735 555,394 686,348 35,462 - 5,400,893
ZEX M Operating expenses (1,580,816)  (484,847)  (159,777)  (491,678) 6,630 - (2,710,488
MK EER(E(ER),/ Operating profit before credit
Bl AT 2 2B 7 impairment (losses)/written
back 1,100,138 957,888 395,617 194,670 42,092 - 2,690,405
EERE(ER) /2%  Creditimpairment (losses)/
written back (240,734) 17,242 (5,188) (5,703) 942 - (233441)
MBEERE(ERE),/ Operating profit after credit
ElfE €8HT impairment (losses)/written
back 859,404 975,130 390,429 188,967 43,034 - 2,456,964
HEREMEREM  Net (loss)/gain on disposal
EFEEREATE  andfair value adjustment
ARZE(B8B)/ of investment properties
Wegs and other fixed assets (1,425) () - (796) 57,782 - 55,556
HENRFEFEEE  Net gain on disposal of
BEALMEEA financial assets at fair
WK EREEL value through other
A comprehensive income - - 1,682 - - = 1,682
BENTIRE 2 Impairment loss on the
AIEEE investment in an associate - - - (633,000) - - (633,000)
JE(EMA AR 2 %4 Share of results of an
associate - - - 659,708 - - 659,708
EG A B, Share of results of jointly
S controlled entities - - - - 27,234 - 27,234
BRATRF Profit before taxation 857,979 975125 392111 214879 128,050 - 2,568,144
B Taxation expenses (141,475)  (161,094) (64,753) (27,192) (32,971) - (427,485)
BRAR & EA Profit after taxation 716,504 814,031 327,358 187,687 95,079 - 2,140,659
#HZ2018F12A31H  For the year ended
HFE 31 December 2018
nEREHEER Depreciation and
amortisation 72,574 15,909 5,665 40,691 52,397 - 187,236
201812 A31H At 31 December 2018
NEEE Segment assets 51,024,761 62,888,081 79,191,071 36,286,080 6,297,791  (4,549,378) 231,138,406
HEARE Segment liabilities 102,006,201 41,070,943 17,714,209 28,405,278 20,125,304  (4,549,378) 204,772,557
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6. BEIERE®W

RESNEP ZWETIRBUREE  RFI RSP
BZRITMBARMRHRI EIEZERERY -
REXER  FERE  BERE  EFKREF-

TREHZREBECZERN  BEDREAEE
ASNEPE PIREARTS - HERMER S R HE
A TE MR 2 PTTE D T AR

6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Revenues from external customers were contributed from banking
subsidiaries in Hong Kong, Macau and People’s Republic of China,
with major products and services including deposit taking, extension
of credit, asset-based finance, securities investment services offered
to customers.

The following tables provide information by geographical area, which
was determined with reference to the domicile of the legal entities
within the Group with business dealing and relationship with, and

services to external customers.

Bi3 7 1EE
H 5
BERHEM Inter-
Hong Kong P segment @t
and Others Macau elimination Total
HZE2019%12H31H For the year ended
HEE 31 December 2019
2B Operating income 4,967,164 406,822 - 5,373,986
BRTLAD & A Profit before taxation 2,386,758 181,498 - 2,568,256
R2019F12H31H At 31 December 2019
BEAE Total assets 224,535,601 23,214,385 (3,492,309) 244,257,677
BfEAE Total liabilities 199,398,367 20,267,459 (3,492,309) 216,173,517
EREENEE Intangible assets and goodwill 318,667 551,275 - 869,942
S AB B RAE Contingent liabilities and commitments 83,341,293 3,188,115 (101,360) 86,428,048
B IEMR
H i
B R EAM Inter-
Hong Kong il segment M=t
and Others Macau elimination Total
EHZ2018F12A31H For the year ended
HEE 31 December 2018
ZERA Operating income 4,943,205 457,688 - 5,400,893
MR AT A Profit before taxation 2,311,536 256,608 - 2,568,144
72018512 H31H At 31 December 2018
EEAG Total assets 212,117,593 22,295,149 (3,274,336) 231,138,406
BEEE Total liabilities 188,731,012 19,315,881 (3,274,336) 204,772,557
B EENEE Intangible assets and goodwill 318,667 551,275 - 869,942
SR BB AR Contingent liabilities and commitments 82,738,028 3,372,813 (101,493) 86,009,348
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7. NET INTEREST INCOME

2019 2018
FE WA Interest income
& RAERITHAERR Cash and balances with banks 475,193 544,288
BHIEE Investments in securities 1,762,703 1,447,457
BEHEERREMERE Advances and other accounts 5,234,742 4,720,380
7,472,638 6,712,125
B H Interest expense
RITER BEER Deposits from banks/Deposits from
customers 2,835,307 2,031,314
BT ERE Certificates of deposit issued 157,184 146,507
BIEER Subordinated notes 284,480 284,421
HEaFE(HE27(2)) Lease liabilities (Note 27(b)) 13,499 =
Hith Others 126,393 97,061
3,416,863 2,559,303
MNEWABE Included within interest income
—RHEEEABNILR - Trading securities and financial
A EZE B EZEHETA assets at fair value through
Baf e EE profit or loss 140,573 109,819
— AT EFEBHEZEHA - Financial assets at fair value through
Hh2ElmEmEE other comprehensive income 1,427,901 1,126,472
— AR AT IR e B A E — Financial assets at amortised cost 5,904,164 5,475,834
7,472,638 6,712,125
FMEZHEE Included within interest expense
—RUAAFEFEBEEBFA - Financial liabilities not at fair value
BRremas through profit or loss 3,306,729 2,471,989

REZE2019F K2018F12 A31 B ILFE » WiERE

REREEEZFEWRA -

For the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, there was no interest

income recognised on impaired assets.

REIRITAR AR 2019F F 3]
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8. FEBRBERAZWA

8. NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

2019 2018
AR5 & RABRBA Fee and commission income
FAAFEFEEEZ ST A Fee and commission income from
BEanemEERAGEZ financial assets and liabilities not at
AR5 & RAEKA fair value through profit or loss
—EERAZRBERAS — Credit related fees and commissions 186,003 185,191
—BomE - Trade finance 87,301 91,867
—ERAKR — Credit card 338,315 377,738
Hi R E RASKRA Other fee and commission income
—BHE LR — Securities brokerage 106,243 128,780
—RIREHE S H A — Insurance distribution and others 336,708 324,957
—ZERE NI EBIEIRES - Retail investment and wealth
management services 255,512 240,614
—RITIRBEBRFEE — Bank services and handling fees 68,677 73,681
— B RS & — Other fees 54,655 55,005
1,433,414 1,477,833
REERAEIH Fee and commission expense
RARFETEBEZE A Fee and commission expense from
BEanemEERAGEZ financial assets and liabilities not at
IR5 & R ME = H fair value through profit or loss
—FEERAE - Handling fees and commission 267,580 296,033
—BENHEMER - Other fees paid 18,870 20,571
286,450 316,604

ARBERE=TRHEEE - Xt EETEEK
BEERY - RENXEAFNRBEZEELT
BEHELEHHEHRRA -

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

The Group provides custody, trustee, corporate administration, and

investment management services to third parties. Those assets that

are held in a fiduciary capacity are not included in these financial

statements.
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9 HEEWA 9. NET TRADING INCOME
2019 2018
SNEB BTz (E1E) Net gain/(loss) arising from dealing in
foreign currencies 78,783 (8,281)
FHEBERSGHNES 2 F e Net gain on trading securities 13,709 15,212
REEEREMITETR 2 F e Net gain from derivatives entered into
for trading purpose 1,334 211
RAATEHEHHEEeRmIAZ Net gain/(loss) arising from financial
FEs(B51E) instruments subject to fair value
hedge 7,181 (833)
LAAFERT 2 B EE#B)F ABmA Net gain on financial instruments at fair
SR T A2 F s value through profit or loss 1,766 8,388
102,773 14,697
10. Efpmug A 10. OTHER OPERATING INCOME
2019 2018
RERDIFE ZAAFETZER Dividend income from investments
HE BT AR th 2 E K= in equity instruments at fair value
T EEE ZIRERA through other comprehensive
income, held at the end of the year
—LHRE - Listed investments 2,284 2,646
—JEEMRE — Unlisted investments 7,800 8,684
WEMEZ AL IRALLEE Gross rental income from investment
properties 27,231 30,651
Hipf A Other rental income 13,988 13,347
Hith Others 17,171 16,817
68,474 72,145

KEFIRITAR AR 2019FF 4
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11. &EXH 11. OPERATING EXPENSES
2019 2018
1E B il K ta ) sz o (P aE12) Employee compensation and benefit
expenses (Note 12) 1,898,620 1,800,451
TEREMEEEES L - Premises and other fixed assets
TEENE expenses, excluding depreciation
—TEMESZE(MF27(2.)) — Rental of premises (Note 27(b)) 7,918 190,229
—HAt - Others 197,136 171,804
e Depreciation
—fTE R EMEEEE (27 (F)) - Premises and other fixed assets
(Note 27(a) 199,672 187,236
—BlEREZYEE27(2)) - Right-of-use properties (Note 27(b)) 181,238 -
BEE RS S Advertising and promotion costs 89,987 86,779
ENfl « LA REE Printing, stationery and postage 50,585 49,919
= EREM BN & Auditors’ remuneration 9,315 9,259
Hth Others 226,921 214,811
2,861,392 2,710,488

12. EEFMREFNZH

12. EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION AND BENEFIT

EXPENSES

2019 2018
SR EMASER Salaries and other staff costs 1,792,374 1,707,536

LARGAR /i SR Provision for share-based compensation
R (M[07E43) charged (Note 43) 1,406 1,418

RIke T — A EEEE Pension costs — defined contribution

plans 104,840 91,497
1,898,620 1,800,451

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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13. EERERE

13. CREDIT IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

2019 2018
ST Y4 (FBR 5 2 2E4%) New allowances net of allowance
releases 467,407 318,875
U Bl @ 1E B 8 2 5/08 Recoveries of amounts previously
written off (111,021) (85,434)
356,386 233,441
PDEWT : Attributable to:
—BFEEX — Advances to customers 342,581 224,831
—Hith & B E - Other financial assets 11,430 2,798
— EFURIE R ISR — Loan commitments and
financial guarantees 2,375 5,812
356,386 233,441
14. BB 14. TAXATION

H SIS B 012 BB A [ AT FE AR v 1 DA B =
16.5% (20184 : 16.5% ) IR #2EME BN KD
2 NEHMbET IR B R R 2N 5 B 48 & S 753
B2 BRTREGHE -

BEERERRAABEEREREZR - KAEHRZE
BIRB EF BN NEE A THIREFTER 2B
KRIERBIER ©

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2018:

16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation on

overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable

profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in

which the Group operates.

Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences under

the liability method at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the

year when the liability is settled or the asset is realised.

2019 2018

RNEEHIE - Current income tax:

—ERBFEH - Hong Kong profits tax 337,202 387,641

—BSNRIA - Overseas taxation 30,789 38,329

—RIBEFEHBRE B - Over-provision in prior years (65) (90)
IRAERIE (F3E34) Deferred income tax (Note 34):

— ARG R = R A E A N E - Origination and reversal of

temporary differences (14,940) 1,605

A Taxation 352,986 427,485

. 179
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14. FHIE@®)

AEBEBRB AR 2 HIBEEBIRER S & QRN
FHREAE ZIERBEROT

14. TAXATION (Continued)

The tax on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average tax
rate applicable to profits of the consolidated companies as follows:

2019 2018

B 151 At A

BEBMSHE16.6%tH 2 KA

BOBRRIRR -
HMER 2 TRBE

BERE A

TREFHIRE S

VAT 1% EEHt 2 3 2 Bt = 2 )
NAREHIER 2 25

Profit before taxation 2,568,256 2,568,144

Tax calculated at Hong Kong profits tax

rate of 16.5% 423,762 423,744
Tax effects of:

Different taxation rates in

other countries (1,122) (2,321)
Income not subject to taxation (56,922) (46,981)
Expenses not deductible 108,431 166,479

Results of associates and jointly
controlled entities reported net of

tax (121,098) (113,346)
BT F E R R 2 B Over-provision in prior years (65) (90)
I8 Taxation 352,986 427,485
15. EEME 15. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
2019 2018
EEHE Directors’ fee 2,850 2,489
e E4 - BE - EYFla Salaries, bonuses, housing, benefits
R H A2 RL in kind and other allowances 119,877 121,353
LARG A7 A ZRb S M A S 1< Share-based compensation payment - 4,513
RINEANEE 2 EEHK Employer’s contribution to retirement
benefit schemes 2,430 2,055
125,157 130,410

AEEFENINELR  WERAEEEBRE
RMEARS  BHEREH - HRARRITR/ER —
FRABITZESHESEMEEERBEERF
75 (20184F : 4&) ©

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Bank was a party and in which
a director of the Bank had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year (2018: Nil).
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15. EEME @)

REZE2019F12H31HILFE - WERIEMES
MEEEABITHEMB AR BEHE B2 LMk
S TERE MBS (20184 : &) -

AER - WESARIEEOZ RESEHNTES
R Ep EREERE A S =5 2 ki
EAR (B (20184 : ££) o

15. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

No other emoluments were paid to or receivable by any director in

respect of directors’ other services in connection with management of

the affairs of the Bank or its subsidiaries undertakings during the year

ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

No termination payments or benefits were made to the directors and

no consideration was provided to or receivable by third parties for

making available directors’ services during the year (2018: Nil).

16. BB 16. DIVIDENDS
2019 2018
EIRFERE : BIREEAR2.958 7T Interim dividend paid of HK$2.95
(20184 : 2.95767T) (2018: HK$2.95) per ordinary share 182,900 182,900
FORARHANR B - BIRE@mAR7.6/57T Proposed final dividend of HK$7.6
(20184 : 7.3/ 7L) (2018: HK$7.3) per ordinary share 471,200 452,600
654,100 635,500

17. RERERITHERR

17. CASH AND BALANCES WITH BANKS

2019 2018

& RAERITHAEER
AN R BT AR

kR - RESE

— P ER1

Cash and balances with banks
Money at call and short notice

Less: impairment allowance
— Stage 1

2,741,442 2,649,507
14,901,271 13,703,601

17,642,713 16,353,108

(582) (679)

17,642,131 16,352,429

- 181
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18. BHEEERAZNESRUQFEFE 18. TRADING SECURITIES AND FINANCIAL ASSETS AT

BHSHTABSNERMEE FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2019 2018
REEEABNES Trading securities:
BEEES Debt securities:
—&ELEM — Listed in Hong Kong 20,681 33,575
—3EETM — Unlisted 8,367,272 7,587,609

8,387,953 7,621,184

LAAFERT 2 B &SR A Financial assets at fair value through
BEafemEE profit or loss
BIEES Debt securities:
—JLEm - Unlisted 328,768 327,483
328,768 327,483
&t Total 8,716,721 7,948,667
BREEBESHEFNE Included within debt securities are:
—BHEZR(ZERREER) — Treasury bills which are cash
equivalents 1,606,484 -
— HiBEER — Other treasury bills 6,781,469 7,620,661
—BUNES — Government bonds - 523
— H A ERSFE IR AT - Other debt securities issued by:
— 1 — Corporate entities 328,768 327,483
8,716,721 7,948,667
20194 K2018F12 A31H » LRIt ER As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, there were no certificates of
ERATRE - deposit held included in the above balances.
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19. fTEE€mIT A 19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
2019512 A1 AREH 2 STET AR N REAR The notional principal amounts of outstanding derivatives contracts
SREQANFERAT : and their fair values as of 31 December 2019 were as follows:
&8/
2H0E o¥E
Contract/ Fair values
notional BE =F
amount Assets Liabilities
1) FHEEERGZITETA 1) Derivatives held for trading
i) JMNEPTET A a) Foreign exchange derivatives
RHRHEEH Forward and futures contracts 85,980,290 427,242 (346,656)
B8\ T L N B Currency options purchased and
written 8,583,805 11,034 (10,733)
Z) FIETETA b) Interest rate derivatives
B Interest rate futures = = =
7St H Interest rate swaps 4,476,095 17,185 (10,537)
FE A\ R R Interest rate options purchased and
written 674,220 - (240)
A) B pTET A ¢) Equity derivatives
FE A ROh i a1t Equity options purchased and written 265,264 2,191 (2,190)
FIEEERGEZITETA Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held for
BE/(AfR)AF trading 99,979,674 457,652 (370,356)
2) BEEHRRZRITETA 2) Derivatives held for hedging
) EEU R FEEHFZ a) Derivatives designated as
PTETR fair value hedges
ES Interest rate swaps 38,285,505 110,164 (722,672)
BEERRBZITETA Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held for
BE/(BfE)AH hedging 38,285,505 110,164 (722,672)
ERRZITESBTIA Total recognised derivative financial assets/
LE/(BE)As (liabilities) 138,265,179 567,816 (1,093,028)

- 183
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19. fTEE€mIAEwm

R2018F 12 A1 H AR HZITET ASHNRBEAR

19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The notional principal amounts of outstanding derivatives contracts

SREQANFERAT : and their fair values as of 31 December 2018 were as follows:
&8/
£54E ~¥E
Contract/ Fair values
notional BE a&
amount Assets Liabilities
1) HEEEREZITETE 1) Derivatives held for trading
i) SMNEDTAET R a) Foreign exchange derivatives
BEEREBEESH Forward and futures contracts 67,192,282 262,900 (328,733)
B Ko o ER Currency options purchased and
written 9,883,176 8,677 (8,505)
Z) FIETETA b) Interest rate derivatives
FEHE Interest rate futures 39,154 - (589)
7| R4 HA Interest rate swaps 2,392,768 11,611 (7,915)
BB A N0 7 R R i Interest rate options purchased and
written 678,038 16 (105)
A) B pTET A ¢) Equity derivatives
BB RO R s o Equity options purchased and written 422,016 6,195 (6,201)
KIEEERGEZITETA Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held for
B/ (afE)As trading 80,607,434 289,399 (352,048)
2) BEEHRRBRITETA 2) Derivatives held for hedging
) BN FEEHFZ a) Derivatives designated as
PTETR fair value hedges
7|22 5 Interest rate swaps 28,818,549 437,644 (121,225)
BEERRB ZITETA Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held for
BE/(Af)A: hedging 28,818,549 437,644 (121,225)
BHEAZITES I AEE Total recognised derivative financial assets/
(BfE)& (liabilities) 109,425,983 727,043 (473,273)

184
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19. &€ IAEmw 19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

BERS RS @t
Trading Hedging Total
Z2ELHE Notional amount 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
EEAH Exchange rate contracts
RHRAEAN Forward and futures
contracts 85,980,290 67,192,282 - - 85,980,290 67,192,282
INEERESL Foreign exchange option
contracts
— B ASNE S - Currency options
purchased 4,332,783 5,031,199 - - 4,332,783 5,031,199
—h S E - Currency options written 4,251,022 4,851,977 - - 4,251,022 4,851,977
94,564,095 77,075,458 - - 94,564,095 77,075,458
FIEEH Interest rate contracts
FHRAEEN Forward and futures
contracts - 39,154 - - - 39,154
il Interest rate swaps 4,476,095 2,392,768  38,285505  28,818549 42,761,600 31,211,317
FIEEESLD Interest rate option contracts
—BA R - Options purchased 337,110 339,019 - - 337,110 339,019
—h - Options written 337,110 339,019 - - 337,110 339,019
5,150,315 3,109,960 38,285,505 28,818,549 43,435,820 31,928,509
HnaH Other contracts
EntHEa N Equity option contracts
— BB\ - Options purchased 132,632 211,008 - - 132,632 211,008
— e - Options written 132,632 211,008 - - 132,632 211,008
265,264 422,016 - - 265,264 422,016

KEFIRITAR AR 2019FF 4
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19. fTEE€mIAEwm

FRRFAREERI L SR FEEE R 2
B2Z12A31REEABRINABNEERBRINE
2ER - 250

19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The credit risk weighted amounts of the above off-balance sheet
exposures as at 31 December, before taking into account the effect
of bilateral netting arrangements that the Group entered into, are as
follows:

2019 2018

[EREGHL Exchange rate contracts
REANEESD Forward and futures contracts 569,901 418,597
HES A JNGEE ER 4 Currency options purchased 151,869 174,542

FMEEH Interest rate contracts

&4 Interest rate swaps 62,922 155,262
2 BAfE Interest rate options 1,686 1,712
Hihar Other contracts 8,854 16,778
795,232 766,891

WETEZANBEERENBEHRNRS
£ U PMRRERBREE -

SERBINESBN2ERTESERBH ZGRTT
FEDBRADMAR 2 BEE - fTEMRS 2 BER
BIXSHEF RBERAHNDBFEME

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

The contract amounts of these instruments indicate the volume of
transactions outstanding as at the end of the reporting period, they do
not represent the amounts at risk.

The credit risk weighted amounts are the amounts that have been
calculated with reference to the Banking (Capital) Rules issued by the
HKMA. The amounts calculated are dependent upon the status of the
counterparty and the maturity characteristics of each type of contract.
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20. BEENRRHMEKE

20. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS

2019 2018
BEEENREE Gross advances to customers 136,948,471 128,630,279
0Bk : REZERE Less: impairment allowances
—FEERA — Stage 1 (474,635) (423,650)
— PR - Stage 2 (152,754)  (127,284)
—PEER3 - Stage 3 (381,197) (362,989)
(1,008,586) (913,923)
135,939,885 127,716,356
S Trade bills 3,393,863 4,677,262
B BB ZERE Less: impairment allowances
—BEER - Stage 1 (1,982) (2,100)
—PEER2 - Stage 2 (7) (23)
(1,989) (2,123)
3,391,874 4,675,139
EREEE(ME27(2)) Right-of-use assets (Note 27(b)) 413,967 =
H ot & 2= (Mf7E29) Other assets (Note 29) 5,308,038 3,812,197
0B ¢ BB ZEE Less: impairment allowances
— BEER - Stage 1 (8,496) (6,651)
—[EER2 - Stage 2 (598) (491)
—PEERS - Stage 3 (9,467) (9,643)
(18,561) (16,785)
5,289,477 3,795,412
Advances and other accounts 145,035,203 136,186,907

BEERNEAMRE

KEFIRITAR AR 2019FF 4
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20. ZEEEFREMERE @)

() BEEEFERRBRzREHEEK
BRINE :

EFERRBNEEREREMERAAREMR
ERFMzEBaNMERETERS ZRBREF
o ANREABRAREERRERERE - U@\
EBEZLBEE -

20. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (Continued)

(@) Loans and advances to customers include finance lease
receivables as follows:

Loans and advances to customers include net investments in
equipment leased to customers under finance leases and hire
purchase contracts having the characteristics of finance leases. The
contracts have an option for acquiring by the leasee the leased asset
at nominal value at the end of the lease period.

2019 2018
HEEMERE 2 EURESE ¢ Gross investment in finance lease
receivables:
1F AR Not later than 1 year 2,393,950 2,559,892
16 DA E5E55F Later than 1 year and not later than
5 years 3,128,171 3,540,184
5F A F Later than 5 years 318,939 420,303
5,841,060 6,520,379
BETE 2 REREZ g E WA Unearned future finance income on
finance leases (406,155) (486,330)
BERERE R Net investment in finance leases 5,434,905 6,034,049
BEREREFE2HMAOT ¢ The net investment in finance leases is
analysed as follows:
1F AR Not later than 1 year 2,201,948 2,337,207
1F LA EZE55F Later than 1 year and not later than
5 years 2,949,341 3,327,971
5&FLA E Later than 5 years 283,616 368,871
5,434,905 6,034,049

A20194F 2018412 A31H » L@ EHER
BEBAWREEERTEIGRER -

R2019F12A31H ' AEBZEFREEER
FEAANE 2z mE R E MR IER A EEET B
68,242,000/8 7T (2018%F : 27,122,000/ 7T) °

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

There is no unguaranteed residual value included in the gross
investment in finance leases above as at 31 December 2019 and 2018.

The allowance for uncollectible finance lease receivables included
in the impairment allowances as at 31 December 2019 of the Group
amounted to HK$68,242,000 (2018: HK$27,122,000).
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21. UAFEFEEESEFARMEZE

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

WENEmERE OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
2019 2018
BEES Debt securities:
—&B LW — Listed in Hong Kong 16,470,818 17,295,716
— BRI ET - Listed outside Hong Kong 16,609,379 16,638,018
—JE LT - Unlisted 8,970,021 7,607,463
42,050,218 41,541,197
R IEES Equity securities:
— &AM — Listed in Hong Kong 30,277 30,201
—JE LT - Unlisted 82,710 83,038
112,987 113,239
= Total 42,163,205 41,654,436
BIREEESEESFRNE Included within debt securities are:
— AR RE - Certificates of deposit held 114,099 429,758
—BHEZR(ZERREER) — Treasury bills which are
cash equivalents 4,496,472 2,098,522
— B R EER - Other treasury bills 5,599,844 6,698,961
— B ES — Government bonds 118,594 191,387
—HMEBHES — Other debt securities 31,721,209 32,122,569

MATER B EREBIA
Hip 2 AU RATE
BB THIER ST T

EES
— R RBF AR RIRTT

— DR
— RITRAM SRS

—%

MRS -
— %

Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income are
analysed by categories of issuers as
follows:

Debt securities:
— Central governments and central
banks
— Public sector entities
— Banks and other financial
institutions
— Corporate entities

Equity securities:
— Corporate entities

42,050,218 41,541,197

10,214,910 8,988,870
143,655 481,574

6,224,854 7,495,726
25,466,799 24,575,027

42,050,218 41,541,197

112,987 113,239

42,163,205 41,654,436

KEFIRITAR AR 2019FF 4
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NTS

21. UAFEFEBESFHFT AEMEHE
WENEmE E @)

ETFUARFEFEREEEH AL MEE WS
Bz T EREN2018FRHAREIREEEH
EMEHLE - RRIEBRE  REZATER
23,350,000 7t & H i & 2 51 E518 514,531,000
BT e WENAFEFEEEEH AL BEE
URZS Y HEZS 1 T AR 201 9 AR IERERR ©

22. LIBBRAIIRNEMEE

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued)

Certain investments in equity instruments measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income had been sold during 2018 due
to risk management consideration. The fair value of the investments at
the date of derecognition was HK$23,350,000 and its cumulative loss
on disposal was HK$14,531,000. No equity instruments measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income has been derecognised
during 2019.

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST

2019 2018
BB Debt securities:
—&ELEm - Listed in Hong Kong 4,531,678 2,019,488
— BB ET — Listed outside Hong Kong 6,534,167 3,605,219
—3Ltm - Unlisted 4,590,077 3,512,960

0k : REERE

~ B

IEERBEENE
—BENERE
—EEEE
— B ES
~HipERES

LA ERAC AT BR O & BB B
WEBITHRBIER DT -

— RREAF R RERTT

—REHRE
—RITREMSREE

—%
—Hft
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15,655,922 9,137,667

Less: impairment allowance
- Stage 1 (11,533) (4,947)

Total 15,644,389 9,132,720

Included within debt securities are:

— Certificates of deposit held 1,451,302 1,126,132
— Treasury bills 2,225,843 1,941,080
— Government bonds 301,957 523,450
— Other debt securities 11,676,820 5,547,005

15,655,922 9,137,667

Financial assets at amortised cost are
analysed by categories of issuers as

follows:
— Central governments and central

banks 2,527,800 2,464,530
— Public sector entities 75,294 -
— Banks and other financial

institutions 5,954,650 3,998,975
— Corporate entities 7,095,725 2,671,709
— Others 2,453 2,453

15,655,922 9,137,667
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MRS R MY ot
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23. BENTRE 23. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE
2019 2018
FE(h B EFE Share of net assets 5,279,152 4,723,974
GES Goodwill 344,623 344,623
5,623,775 5,068,597
kR RELERE Less: impairment allowances (1,735,000)  (1,448,000)
3,888,775 3,620,597
2019 2018
1A1H At 1 January 3,620,597 4,134,651
155 e A BB ISR S 2RI R 955 Initial application of HKFRS 9 on share
R FE(EHE & A A of an associate = (259,045)
FEMRRR T 1R 545 Share of results, net of tax 701,857 659,708
FEIRBRTIRIGE S Share of investment revaluation reserve,
net of tax 78,099 84,181
BURRE Dividend received (80,344) (66,546)
BB R R Impairment loss charged (287,000) (633,000)
FEN ZRERHEAMAE Exchange differences and other
adjustments (144,434) (299,352)
12A31H At 31 December 3,888,775 3,620,597
M2019F K% 2018F12 A1 At & RAl 2 FEE The following is the key information relating to the associate as at 31
BHAT - December 2019 and 2018:
FE R i i B FrihE=E ot
£=4 1 Place of incorporation FEEK Percentage of
Name and operation Principal activities interest in ownership
2019 2018
EERRT((EERIT] AREE A RHANE #RT
Bank of Chongging (“BOCQ”) People’s Republic of China Banking 14.66% 14.66%
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23. KEQNTRE®

() EERIT2RENKER
BERITZEATS2EAHA12A318 - HE
20194 }%20184E12 A31 B IS IS - AEER

#H=201912 5310 %2018 12 431 H 1L 121H
AZBBHREADERERRITZRE -

23.
(a)

The statutory accounting reference date of BOCQ is 31 December. For
the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group included the
results of BOCQ on the basis of financial statements made up to the
12 months to 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018.

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

Selected financial information of BOCQ

20194 20184
12A31H 12H31H
At 31 At 31
December December
2019 2018
BEERTZBREERABEER Selected balance sheet information of
BOCQ
Re REFRIBITHLE R Cash and balances with central banks 35,824,824 37,822,721
FEUH A ER1T N & Bt Due from other banks and financial
institutions 68,530,009 65,945,642
BEER KRB Loans and advances to customers 267,144,967 234,476,730
Hih & & E Other financial assets 178,355,749 164,687,198
Hib&E Other assets 10,706,630 9,885,293
BEAGT Total assets 560,562,179 512,817,584
FESEMERTT R & mikiE Due to other banks and financial
institutions 78,452,719 65,006,087
Y SYEEN Customer deposits 314,316,390 291,946,068
HEmemaE Other financial liabilities 117,860,442 110,430,319
HEiaE Other liabilities 6,748,298 6,024,263
afEas Total liabilities 517,377,849 473,406,737
s AE Total equity 43,184,330 39,410,847
ek - BFITZEER Less: Preferred shares issued (5,490,417)  (5,590,036)
kR R HIERR Less: Non-controlling interests (1,861,234)  (1,776,950)
LR R (LR S 5T Total equity attributable to ordinary
shareholders 35,832,679 32,043,861
EERITZRER AT Reconciliation of BOCQ's total
RRITARE W BIREANZ shareholders’ equity to the carrying
BREESERR amount in the Bank’s consolidated
financial statements
RIRITIEG IR R R A ET The Bank’s share of total shareholders’
equity 5,254,774 4,699,153
o R 2 R R A T EAR Add: Goodwill and fair value adjustment
at acquisition 369,001 369,444
kR : RME Less: Impairment (1,735,000)  (1,448,000)
BREE Carrying amount 3,888,775 3,620,597

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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23. KEQNTRE®

(F) EERITZREMBER @

23. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

(@) Selected financial information of BOCQ (Continued)

BZE12B31HLEE
For the year ended
31 December

2019 2018

BERITZBEREERER Selected income statement information
of BOCQ

FF B Net interest income 10,030,546 8,136,215
FRIFE RASWA Net fee and commission income 1,427,103 1,587,948
BEREEER Loan impairment charges (4,100,652)  (4,066,859)
FrELEHER Depreciation and amortisation (310,361) (245,387)
IS H Tax expense (1,419,428)  (1,207,629)
F R Profit for the year 4,903,942 4,522,832
Hiv 2 E W Other comprehensive income 548,202 570,899
2HKEREE Total comprehensive income 5,452,144 5,093,731
BURERERTRE Dividends received from BOCQ 80,344 66,546

(2) REZBEMNERRR2019F B 2R
=1

M20195F12H31H - AEBEEERITIKEZ
AFEEEREREEANLIGE - At - AEEIFE
HEBRIRIT 2IRE 2 REEETRE RIS AR
(AU El 558 o

REARLHAGFEEREE(TERER]) ME
EZERRITAINEBSBNZINE ZREE - £
REENRBEEEGHEZEERRITANFRK
RS - MEEREERTHHMEHNZER
REEFERIBEMRROAIELFEE  ER
RBSREFRRFE - BEAREREEHEZ
BERE T2 Z AN R TI5EE 2 EERITRA
AT EE ©

(b) Impairment testing on the investment and impairment
recognised in 2019

At 31 December 2019, the fair value of the Group’s investment in
BOCQ had been below the carrying amount for approximately 6
years. On this basis, the Group continues to perform an impairment
test on the carrying amount of the investment in BOCQ to assess the
recoverable amount.

The impairment test is performed by comparing the recoverable
amount of BOCQ, determined by a value in use (“VIU”) calculation,
with the carrying amount of the investment. The VIU calculation uses
discounted cash flow projections based on management’s estimates of
BOCQ’s earnings and dividends to be paid in future, and the estimated
probable exit value in future after considering the growth of BOCQ and
its net asset value for the medium and longer term. The discount rate
applied to the VIU calculation was estimated with reference to BOCQ’s
cost of equity, which is publicly available in the market.
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23. KEQNTRE®

(2) BEZRERRRA2019F R ZH
B (@)

ETERABEAEASHZREZATRE £
B AREEZRMAEHEBRAREEMSEMIE
ERRNEFRFEEREEZIZ2BEE - BHED
AEHARM P BB EIRTT 2 RAIE N R H TR
EERRITAREABAEZPHREHMERE
EHEEBRRTZARRERETFEERER
ERHE -

RIEEH Z=2018F 12 A31 H 2 AR #ETT 2 51 -
KRRz ERABERZEMBEEBREZG
BERREMEEZIRESFEDAERREE -
2 7 52.1,448,000,000% 7T 2 25T R EET 1R ° A
EEF2019F 12 31 B Z kR 17 & FRE A
o RRLHECREARR DK ETER
ERNRE Z2018F 12 A31 H 2 25HRERT 12
1,448,000,000/8 T8 < FREIE © REFARMESRE
#3287,000,000%8 7T ° E it - M2019F F E R
HTIE R (E 4 #5287,000,00078 TT LA KX R E 2 (B
{E23,889,000,000/5 7T °

STEARITZEAT BRI EOFZIRE 2R
BAF - ERETRBREERTZESRKRER
IN o (B ZIEEEIFER ISR VIRIRER A Z
1,213,000,000/8 7T * %1% & 2 MBS T 5228 AR
T2 EARFERELE »

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

23. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

(b) Impairment testing on the investment and impairment
recognised in 2019 (Continued)

In performing the VIU calculation to arrive at the recoverable amount
of the investment, the Group considers all relevant factors including
market views and qualitative factors to ensure that the inputs to the
VIU calculation are appropriate. Adjustments need to be made to
reflect the latest situation affecting BOCQ and also market outlook for
the medium and longer term that are relevant in projecting BOCQ’s
future performance. Significant management judgement is required in
estimating the future cash flows of BOCQ.

Based on the assessment conducted for the position up to 31
December 2018, the recoverable amount, as determined by the
VIU calculation and after considering all relevant factors and
valuation assumptions was remained below the carrying amount,
and a cumulative impairment charge at HK$1,448 million had been
recognised. The latest impairment test performed by the Group for
the position as at 31 December 2019 concludes that the recoverable
amount, based on the VIU calculation, is assessed as lower than the
carrying amount, after deducting the cumulative impairment allowance
made up to 31 December 2018 of HK$1,448 million, by HK$287
million. As a result, an additional impairment charge of HK$287
million was recognised in the year of 2019 to reduce the value of the
investment to HK$3,889 million.

The calculation of the Bank’s capital adequacy does not include the
retained earnings from the Investment, except for BOCQ cash dividend
received by the Bank. Provided that the Investment continues to
be held at or above the original cost of the investment of HK$1,213
million, impairment made on the Investment does not affect the Bank’s
capital adequacy.
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24, HEEZEHERKRE 24. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES
2019 2018
FE LR - RPN Unlisted shares, at cost 20,000 20,000
FEMGU B R Share of post-acquisition reserves 76,363 67,691
96,363 87,691
7 20194F 20184 12 531 B /9 H [R5 5| & B2 40 The following are the jointly controlled entities as at 31 December 2019
T ¢ and 2018:
hLEREZESL

o 4t 26 TEERRQE I Percentage of
£ Place of Principal activities and effective interest
Name incorporation place of operation in ownership
PRI AR R A A BB REER - &%
Bank Consortium Holding Limited Hong Kong Investment holding, Hong Kong 13.333%
REETARARA B8 MBS R - B
Bank Consortium Trust Company Limited Hong Kong Mandatory provident fund business, 13.333%

Hong Kong
RS RIARAA BB BIBESEL  BE
BCT Financial Limited Hong Kong Mandatory provident fund business, 13.333%
Hong Kong
ESRBHEIRAR AR 2 Eam A ARIRITIFE © MR The interest in Bank Consortium Holding Limited is directly held by the
B E5E AR A A RIREE € BB R A A D iREFIEAR Bank. Bank Consortium Trust Company Limited and BCT Financial
BRATIZEEWBAF - Limited are the wholly owned subsidiaries of Bank Consortium Holding
Limited.
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25. BERENEE

25. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

EFER
CE BOER EBREE
BREE EREE Customer
BE Contract  Core deposit  relationship 5L &%
Goodwill intangibles intangibles intangibles  Trade name Total
A Cost
2019F1 1B &% At 1 January 2019 and
2019F12A31H 31 December 2019 811,690 26,499 80,583 70,777 58,252 1,047,801
2RRE B Accumulated impairment/
amortisation
2019F1 418 K% At 1 January 2019 and
2019F12A31H 31 December 2019 - 26,499 80,583 70,777 - 177,859
REE Carrying value
2019%12A31H At 31 December 2019 811,690 - - - 58,252 869,942
RPHR
GLS ‘LR B AR
BV AE ERERE Customer
S Contract  Core deposit relationship Gl BF
Goodwill intangibles intangibles intangibles  Trade name Total
A Cost
2018F1 A1 K At 1 January 2018 and
2018F12H31H 31 December 2018 811,690 26,499 80,583 70,777 58,252 1,047,801
2IERE /A Accumulated impairment/
amortisation
2018118 & At 1 January 2018 and
20184 12H31H 31 December 2018 = 26,499 80,583 70,777 - 177,859
FEE Carrying value
201812 A31H At 31 December 2018 811,690 = = = 58,252 869,942

BERERPRZEBEVEERRALN  RUEALE
FPRGETEERARERREZENFEE125F
ZPAIREHEE o B ARERMRY S FFA
AERER A RAKANGR RIERER IR

Intangible assets of finite life include contract intangibles, core deposit
intangibles and customer relationship intangibles, and are amortised
over their useful life ranging from 5 to 12 years using a diminishing
balance method. Trade name is carried as an asset of indefinite life
and is tested annually for impairment losses. It is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment loss.

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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25. BERENEE@®

25. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

BESIEEIREANSEEREEE —BNELD Gooduwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (‘CGU”)
HERPzHeELBN([ReELEEN]) - B identified according to business segments in line with the internal
BoOEBMEZSAT o management reporting structure. A summary of goodwill allocation is
presented below.
2019412H31 H % 2018F12H31H
At 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018
[EES S B ARIT BIMRAT
Commercial Personal Overseas EEr
Banking Banking Banking Total
e Hong Kong 196,478 122,189 - 318,667
pha! Macau - - 493,023 493,023
196,478 122,189 493,023 811,690

EEESFEREIR - HHREEZERE
EMEEZHSELBMADIRSEE - Xt EE
FE=sEERABMG - 5FF & ZTEAIR
SR EEEBASFHERERBUEEFERE
2% HERIFESF AR ENIR - Z5F 5 ElB=EER
AEBEREUARRSELEN o BB MZES
IERI S B RSB (R B R 2 RS T AR 51 o BT e FA
Z BRER R Th g BN AN [ 2 B AN AN N 3 B
10.1%(20184F : 11.3%) °

S B EETZRENE D ER2RAAEBLER
523% BBl B AR & AR EAGT &8 2 TERIMA -
BUABEEFHERER2% MR ESFIABENKER © B
FEA 2 BEIR R 510.1% (20184 : 11.3% ) JIEE
AR B 2 EARKAINETFHE -

AERFYEBERHELBRZBEREIE(2018
F:E) e

Impairment testing in respect of goodwill is performed annually by
comparing the recoverable amount of CGU determined based on value
in use calculation. The calculations use cash flow projections prepared
by the Senior Management based on a 5-year business plan, taking
into account projected annual growth rate, and in perpetuity with 2%
constant growth rate after the fifth year. The 5-year business plan
was developed by the Senior Management based on their evaluation
of the businesses of the relevant CGU and the conditions in which
such businesses will operate over the projected period. The discount
rate used is based on the Group’s weighted average cost of capital at
10.1% (2018: 11.3%).

For trade name, impairment testing is performed annually using pre-
tax royalty rate of 3% with reference to similar business transactions,
projected revenue in the medium-term plan, and in perpetuity with 2%
constant growth rate after the fifth year. The discount rate of 10.1%
(2018: 11.3%) used is based on the Group’s weighted average cost of

capital.

No impairment losses on goodwill and trade name were identified in
the year (2018: Nil).
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26. HMIEBAF]

2019512 A31 8 » ARITZ EEHIE D A0

T

ARER
Name of company

26. SUBSIDIARIES

FTEXEYK

Principal activity

S it B
Place of incorporation

The following is a list of the Bank’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2019:

BRTEBRRAE
Particulars of
issued ordinary
share capital

AFERTT (B BR QA

Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited
RIS IRTTIRGD BIR A

Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.
REFTRBERAR A A

Dah Sing Insurance Brokers Limited
ARHEFEERAT]

Dah Sing Nominees Limited

Dah Sing Properties Limited
AHTEHBRAE
Dah Sing Securities Limited

DSB BCM (1) Limited

DSB BCM (2) Limited
AITEMAERERAA]

Dah Sing Computer Systems Limited
CWL Prosper Limited
ZEPBER AR

OK Finance Limited

18R BN (EE)BRAR

Pacific Finance (Hong Kong) Limited

Vanishing Border Investment
Services Limited

Wise Measure Limited

Reliable Associates Limited

Talent Union Holding Limited

#R1T

Banking

$R1T

Banking

Rigigs
Insurance broking
IR A RS
Nominee services
REER
Investment holding
EHEE
Securities dealing
KRB
Investment holding
REERR
Investment holding
e

Inactive

MERE
Property investment
W&

Money lending
B

Inactive

MERE

Property investment

MERE
Property investment
MEE
Property investment
MERE

Property investment

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

R AR
People’s Republic of China
R

Macau

B

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
RERLEE
British Virgin Islands
BB

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong

RBRELHS
British Virgin Islands
RBRELHES
British Virgin Islands
REBRLS
British Virgin Islands

RMB1,200,000,000

MOP225,000,000

HK$200,000

HK$100,000

HK$9,998

HK$10,000,000

HK$1

HK$1

HK$20

US$1

HK$1,000

HK$450,000,000

HK$20

US$1

US$1

US$2
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26. MIEBDE @)

BORPIRE SR TR (D B R A R (R 22% i m A
DSB BCM (1) Limited 2 DSB BCM (2) Limited#
BN A ERREARBITE2EEERES °

BORPIERBRITIRODAR AR - AFRT(PEH)
BRRR R L 5IBREEEAINEMK N AF
SN B RRIHETBLE

R#FiR17 (R E) AR A FH20084F7 A EH H A
AL - EARE A EE A R MBI 2058 £
BIERABI(EREE EF3CRMZEER
&) o

26. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The above companies are all wholly-owned and directly held by the
Bank except for Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A., with 22% interests
indirectly held through DSB BCM (1) Limited and DSB BCM (2) Limited,
which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Bank.

Except for Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A., Dah Sing Bank (China)
Limited and companies incorporated outside Hong Kong specified
above, all other companies operate in Hong Kong.

Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited was incorporated in Mainland China in
July 2008. It is registered as “Limited liability company” (solely funded
by Taiwan, Hong Kong or Macau corporate body) under the laws of
the People’s Republic of China.
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e



RIFEER R M ot

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ T JThI%17R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

27. ME - BUHRERE
(F) TERHMEEEE

27. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(@) Premises and other fixed assets

A
BERAE
Furniture,
{TE equipment and =l
Premises motor vehicles Total
HZ2018F12B31HILFE Year ended 31 December 2018
FAERmEFE Opening net book amount 2,523,879 424,373 2,948,252
it Additions - 173,833 173,833
HE Disposals - (2,066) (2,066)
FrEH (M) Depreciation charge (Note 11) (58,775) (128,461) (187,236)
EH=8 Exchange difference (5,910) (3,726) (9,636)
FREREFE Closing net book amount 2,459,194 463,953 2,923,147
2018412 A31H At 31 December 2018
BXAR Cost 2,900,499 1,155,723 4,056,222
REME Accumulated depreciation (441,305) (691,770) (1,133,075)
BREHE Net book amount 2,459,194 463,953 2,923,147
HZE2019F12831 HIEEE Year ended 31 December 2019
FAEREFE Opening net book amount 2,459,194 463,953 2,923,147
i Additions - 101,593 101,593
HE Disposals - (7,495) (7,495)
FEZ L (M) Depreciation charge (Note 11) (63,237) (136,435) (199,672)
EHE=R Exchange difference (1,981) (1,289) (3,270)
FRIREFE Closing net book amount 2,393,976 420,327 2,814,303
2019%12A31H At 31 December 2019
B AR Cost 2,898,260 1,129,842 4,028,102
ZEE Accumulated depreciation (504,284) (709,515) (1,213,799)
BREHE Net book amount 2,393,976 420,327 2,814,303
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27. Y% -  BERFE@® 27. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
() TERHMEEEE @) (@) Premises and other fixed assets (Continued)
TEZE@DFERRE The net book value of premises comprises:
2019 2018
skl Leaseholds
EERBRA 2R R Held in Hong Kong on medium-term
(FE10=504F 2 [H) lease (between 10-50 years) 2,028,388 2,079,602
FEBELAIMNE A 2 B4 Held outside Hong Kong on medium-
(fE10=504F 2 [H) term lease (between 10-50 years) 365,588 379,592

2,393,976 2,459,194

() HE (b) Leases
UL A S BV AR A 2 HEIREER - This note provides information for leases where the Group is a lessee.
() EERGBEMEERZLHE (i)  Amounts recognised in the statement of financial
position
MR RABAEEZ S EIIRAT The statement of financial position shows the following amounts

relating to leases:

2019% 2019F
12A31H 1H1H
As at As at
fffzf 31 December 1 January
Note 2019 2019
EREEE Right-of-use assets
JES Properties 20 413,967 523,787
HEAE Lease liabilities
(BEEEMIRE RER) (included in other accounts and accruals) 431,600 538,261
019F M BRFERNNMEFERAEEER Additions to the right-of-use assets during the 2019 financial
72,647,000/ 7T ° year were HK$72,647,000.

7 201
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27. Y% |MERE@

(2) HE®w
(i) ERRUZERZLHE
WesiRNE R E 2 8FIRMT

27.

(b)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
(i) Amounts recognised in the income statement

The income statement shows the following amounts relating to
leases:

i3
Note 2019
FREEEZINESH Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets
/ES Properties 11 181,238
FEZH(BREEFESH — HEEE) Interest expense (included in interest
expense — lease liabilities) 7 13,499
BREHAEENEEEEE 2 Expense relating to short-term leases and
(BREETEREMEATEES L - NEERE) low-value assets (included in premises and
other fixed assets expenses, excluding
depreciation) 11 7,918

2010FNEMBAEZRERELRER
191,394,000/ 7T ©

(i) FEEZHEZTERELTA K

AEEHEREYE BEAR-—HBR/IFE
95 7 & E BAMR 18 A 82 Ff 75 40 T 71 (iv) Bk 2t =2
FERIEEHE -

HERRERNBIEZREEZTEZITR
R RMET - BREBEABEHEZEEZE
RiEzs - HE A RL TR INERZZL -
B2 BEMTRENEERE ERERERFRY -

(iv) FERRAIZERE

ERMKIDEERBRBREAKERITZET
MEHER - RAKEEERNZERERZ
BEMS  ERZFHRIATEHRRELEER
A e RZBIFAZIER IR IDEEER T
R EmIER HAATTEE ©

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

The total cash outflow for leases in 2019 was HK$191,394,000.

(i) The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for

The Group leases various properties. Rental contracts are
typically made for fixed periods of 1 year to 9 years, but may
have extension options as described in (iv) below.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain
a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security
interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased
assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

(iv) Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a number of
property leases across the Group. These are used to maximise
operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in the
Group’s operations. The majority of extension and termination
options held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the
respective lessor.
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28. BEYFE 28. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
2019 2018
1H1H At 1 January 1,236,930 1,179,442
BHEAFAEER), W Fair value (losses)/gains on revaluation (28,289) 57,488
12H31H At 31 December 1,208,641 1,236,930
MERFFE 2 EEERRERHR Unrealised gains or losses recognised
B R 2 AR B3R e ok B 1R in income statement relating to those
assets held at the end of the year
-~ THE(ER), s — Fair value (losses)/gains (28,289) 57,488
WA 7 REFESE The net book value of investment properties comprises:
2019 2018
skl Leaseholds
ERBFA 2R EHELD Held in Hong Kong on medium-term
(FE10Z=50F 2 ) lease (between 10-50 years) 1,073,388 1,099,588
EEBLAINGA 2 B A Held outside Hong Kong on medium-
(F£10Z=504F 2 A1) term lease (between 10-50 years) 135,253 137,342
1,208,641 1,236,930
STEREMEZAFE Fair value measurement of investment properties

A& ER20194F 201812 31 H AR E W)
BEETTEM - KRB EXREFIER
R FEAES(HEREXER)BR QR R
REERDEBRAZREDERE — K FEEE
CBRF)BRABRUINEM ZREYMERIZE &KL
BERBAREBEE(LTTEARI2E ZBEY

MSEEAM*EZGEER  HEFEMBRE
EBIF13F( R FEFE)F 2 AFEEE B
EEARTISLHEENS 2 &= MRENYIER

The Group’s investment properties were last revalued at 31 December
2019 and 2018 by adopting the direct comparison approach or
the income capitalisation approach and with reference to recent
transactions for similar premises as far as practicable by independent,
professionally qualified valuer Savills (Valuation and Professional
Services) Limited for investment properties in Hong Kong and Mainland
China, and by Savills (Macau) Limited for investment properties in
Macau.

The basis of the valuation of property was market value which is
consistent with the definition of fair value under HKFRS 13 “Fair Value
Measurement” and takes into account the highest and best use of the
property from the perspective of market participants.

REIRITAR AR 2019F F 3]

203



RIFEER R M ot
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEME

(LA™ T JThI%17R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

NTS

204

28. REWEm)
STEREVMEZAFE@®

WEMEURBB T ER 2 BIEERBERE
EATE  EWOBEWATAD AV BHE
EHIFE1FCAFEAE)P A FESHNEIR
Al o

T EREMENEER HR—HFEKEAR
KRR - Hb B R E R A = NEF R AR/ RAE
BFTREE RIS E BALE - FTEE ZBEN T
75 9R1,85075 7L (20184F : 1,880/8 L) EFF A
IR127,600/5 7T (20184F : 136,000/87T) ° $4E &
UERHTREERREME L AFEF=EE
FEE D LERE D - RZINA o

28. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
Fair value measurement of investment properties (Continued)

Investment properties are measured at fair value using valuation
techniques with significant unobservable inputs which are classified
as Level 3 under the fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, “Fair
value measurement”.

One of the key inputs used in valuing the investment properties was
the unit sale rate taking into account of time, location, and individual
factors such as size and levels of buildings, which ranged from
HK$1,850 (2018: HK$1,880) to HK$127,600 (2018: HK$136,000) per
square foot. A decrease in unit sale rate would result in decrease in
fair value measurement of the investment properties by the same
percentage and vice versa.

20. Hh&EE 29. OTHER ASSETS

2019 2018
GO EYSSENEELE Accounts receivable and prepayments 3,988,929 2,611,222
FERTULA Accrued income 1,099,930 1,033,249
HAh Others 219,179 167,726

30. HHMFEEABNAR

5,308,038 3,812,197

30. TRADING LIABILITIES

2019 2018

mEBEREMBEEES

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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31. BEER

31. DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS

2019 2018
V& BT R R R R AF K Demand deposits and current accounts 40,877,718 37,594,944
REFEN Savings deposits 33,076,969 28,626,731
FH - BAREHER Time, call and notice deposits 109,589,790 107,688,337

183,544,477 173,910,012

REEFO&SPSWIFEADEREDT TR
AJE 2 48 & 2 17 7410,136,00078 7T (2018 4F -
4,708,000/87T) ©

BREH BAREHRERIN  AAEEMEPER
ERFRER

32. EEITHERE

Included in customer accounts were deposits of HK$10,136,000 (2018:

HK$4,708,000) held as collateral for irrevocable commitments under

import letters of credit.

Other than time, call and notice deposits, all other customer deposits

carry variable interest rates.

32. CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT ISSUED

2019 2018

REDRF R R T AT ET R At fair value under fair value hedge
(for hedging interest rate risk) 4,911,274 4,422,293
R AT AR At amortised cost 1,839,551 2,112,783
6,750,825 6,535,076

R2019F K2018F N + ANEE KRB R HA R
EEFMBEBRTERERAATEFEEHE
FTABE -

AEEE S EE BT RE O
S A _FATFI 2 BRI {E 5 6,000,0007% 7T (2018
£ : 513,000,000/ 7T) °

During 2019 and 2018, the Group did not designate on initial

recognition any certificates of deposit issued at fair value through profit

or loss.

The amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at

maturity to the holders of these certificates of deposit is HK$6 million

higher (2018: HK$13 million higher) than the above carrying amount.

KEFIRITAR AR 2019FF 4
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33. #EEK 33. SUBORDINATED NOTES
2019 2018
LEHR A @ T A TESIER At fair value under fair value hedge
(for hedging interest rate risk):
225,000,000 7T 20204F £ Hi#Y US$225,000,000 Subordinated Fixed
EREEEHGE(R)) Rate Notes due 2020 (Note (a)) 1,755,635 1,782,046
225,000,000 7T 742024 4F | B ) US$225,000,000 Subordinated Fixed
ELEEERGE(Z)) Rate Notes due 2024 (Note (b)) - 1,760,547
250,000,000 7T 7420264 | B &) US$250,000,000 Subordinated Fixed
ERBEERGE(R)) Rate Notes due 2026 (Note (c)) 1,946,445 1,906,489
225,000,000 7T 5420294 ZI B ] US$225,000,000 Subordinated Fixed
EEBEERKGEE(T)) Rate Notes due 2029 (Note (d)) 1,808,101 -

20194 & 2018F I » ANE B KRB R VIR FERRF
EETMBEBEEANATFEFEBEESHAA
1835 -

AT

() 1L J572R4R77HA 201042 A 11 H 277 ,2.225,000,000
ETEFMER G ([FHRA]) Lt RE
AMMEANESRERRK([EK]) - FEA
6.625% ' F¥FTE—IK o AIRITINE B —EIR
RITRI M AR A LG BB EE F SR A
AETTIRITRIEAT B AEREZENF SR o 1t
LEKEIEH A2020F2 A118 » NRTHEER
FHIR 2 HEE -

(2) T57R3R4THA 201441 B 29 H 217 2 225,000,000
ETEBRHAERSGMBRRABN([EBRSA])
EHRAEBERBENTHRES - REARDN
10 HiE B A EER (&R ) (BETEBCRIT
F(BER)HRADZIER) - itEEBHEIH B 72024
F1[298 « ABRITERBEZEER H2019F1 7
29 2 EEE -

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

5,510,181 5,449,082

During 2019 and 2018, the Group did not designate on initial

recognition any subordinated notes at fair value through profit or loss.

Note:

(b)

This represents US$225,000,000 Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes
qualifying as supplementary capital of the Bank issued on 11 February
2010 (the “Notes”), which are listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange
Trading Limited (“SGX”). Interest at 6.625% p.a. is payable semi-annually.
An interest rate swap contract to swap the fixed rate payment liability of
the Notes to floating interest rate based on LIBOR has been entered into
with an international bank. The Notes have a maturity date falling on 11
February 2020 and have been subsequently fully repaid by the Bank on
the maturity date.

This represents US$225,000,000 Basel Il compliant 10-year
Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes qualifying as Tier 2 capital of the Bank
(subject to the provisions of the Banking (Capital) Rules of Hong Kong)
issued on 29 January 2014 (the “Notes”), which were listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK?”). The Notes had a maturity date
falling on 29 January 2024 and had been fully repaid by the Bank on the
optional redemption date of 29 January 2019.
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33.

T

(R

BESE @

(%)

It Jh AN 88 17 X 2016 £ 11 A 30 B ¥ 17 2
250,000,000 T EBABRFH LT RFFEEE
BIBTENMPRE R - FERNI0FHELEE
E([E ) (ARETFEARITEER)RADZ
630 © Ut S & 7120264F11 A30H 28] - 3=
EMEE R A2021511A30H - A TAEHE
BUHREER  F£554.25%  FXEMNE—R -
Hig - wEBAREEREEERER - TEROF
BEEF]AERSFHXBABERES SR N255%
T o BERIGEHSERTESLME - NIRITAIAR
EEERBIAE GEBD ) ER - ]NRITIHEE—
BIRR ERAT T 3 A K42 HA & KO i (B 75 ) B R A1 242
HAAETTIRI TR ZEHT S AR A Z B A S5

I TR ER4T 201941 15 H 3677 2. 225,000,000
ETEBBRZH EWRFEEZERTGE N
RERZHERKI0FHE BB EEBB([EEK])
(7BEFEBCRITE(ER) BRI ZIER)  F
B HR2020%F1 A15 A EIH - BEMEERA
20241 H15H - BETHEHEERUEREER -
FRAY% B¥FENE—R - Hig - WEBKK
EREZBHEEEAED  FROFNESE] AER
SEHIXBIBEES B R M255% T - 5REEH
SEREEIE - ANRITAINEREEERMRE
(FEE R ) ET ° ANRITINE B —BPRERITEI L F
i B S A BB H EE I SR AUETRT
Rl 247 2 R B A FENF 25K

AEBENSREEHIPEHZANEND S
£R8 DA _F P %Il 2 BR {8 1£.59,000,0007% 7T (2018
F : 532,000,000/ 7T) °

33. SUBORDINATED NOTES (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

©

(C)]

This represents US$250,000,000 Basel Ill compliant 10-year Subordinated
Fixed Rate Notes qualifying as Tier 2 capital of the Bank (subject to the
provisions of the Banking (Capital) Rules of Hong Kong) issued on 30
November 2016 (the “Notes”), which are listed on the SEHK. The Notes
will mature on 30 November 2026 with an optional redemption date falling
on 30 November 2021. Interest at 4.25% p.a. is payable semi-annually
from the issue date to the optional redemption date. Thereafter, if the
Notes are not redeemed, the interest rate will be reset and the Notes will
bear interest at the then prevailing 5-year U.S. Treasury Rate plus 255
basis points. The Bank may, subject to receiving the prior approval of
the HKMA, redeem the Notes in whole but not in part, at par. An interest
rate swap contract to swap the fixed rate payment liability of the Notes
to floating interest rate based on LIBOR has been entered into with an
international bank.

This represents US$225,000,000 Basel Ill compliant 10-year Subordinated
Fixed Rate Notes qualifying as Tier 2 capital of the Bank (subject to the
provisions of the Banking (Capital) Rules of Hong Kong) issued on 15
January 2019 (the “Notes”), which are listed on the SEHK. The Notes will
mature on 15 January 2029 with an optional redemption date falling on 15
January 2024. Interest at 5% p.a. is payable semi-annually from the issue
date to the optional redemption date. Thereafter, if the Notes are not
redeemed, the interest rate will be reset and the Notes will bear interest at
the then prevailing 5-year U.S. Treasury Rate plus 255 basis points. The
Bank may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the HKMA, redeem
the Notes in whole but not in part, at par. An interest rate swap contract
to swap the fixed rate payment liability of the Notes to floating interest
rate based on LIBOR has been entered into with an international bank.

The amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at

maturity to the holders of these subordinated notes is HK$59 million

lower (2018: HK$32 million higher) than the above carrying amount.

REIRITAR AR 2019F F 3]
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RIS IR
EEHBEERBBENHEREABRENITE

34.

B[R] — T IS A A I 5 P T o HEH 2 & A
T~

34. DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current income tax assets against
current income tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
relate to the same fiscal authority. The offset amounts are as follows:

2019 2018
IRIEFHIE & = Deferred income tax assets 115,216 154,354
RIEMIERE Deferred income tax liabilities (17,293) (17,508)

EEVBREERABERBERZRZHRER R
Bz T BB AT AT

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities analysed based on the
underlying category of temporary differences and the expected date of
recovery and settlement are as follows:

2019 2018
BRETHEEE Deferred income tax assets:
— AJfE12fE B g Y Bl 2 IR IA & B — Deferred income tax assets
to be recovered after more than
12 months 257,860 251,290
RERIEBE ¢ Deferred income tax liabilities:
— EE12(@ AR EEZRIERIBARE — Deferred income tax liabilities
to be settled after more than
12 months (159,937) (114,444)
97,923 136,846

IEETIRAR B BT -

The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows:

2019 2018

1H1H At 1 January 136,846 (5,086)
s FE A BB SR E =R F 95 <« & Changes on initial application of

HKFRS 9 - 74,501
RS BR AR TERIE () (FisE14) Tax credited/(charged) to the income

statement (Note 14) 14,940 (1,605)
P BRAFIE (), /B (i =£38) Tax (charged)/credited to equity

(Note 38) (52,294) 73,272
N ER Exchange difference (1,569) (4,236)
12H31H At 31 December 97,923 136,846

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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34, EIEFIE &)

EEHBREERBBERAFEZEE  TRER
MRBUREERE T BT

34. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the

year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within

the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

IREHRIBEE - Deferred income tax assets:
AE
EEREE EEXH
Impairment REHA
allowances Deferred
and expenses and ==h
provisions others Total
20181 H1H At 1 January 2018 198,387 57,367 255,754
RUEERARE R/ () Credit/(charged) to the income statement 2,920 (3,148) (228)
EH=R Exchange difference (2,661) (1,575) (4,236)
201812 H431H %2019F1 A1H At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 198,646 52,644 251,290
RIERERA (S ),/ [l (Charged)/credited to the income statement (997) 9,136 8,139
EHER Exchange difference (862) (707) (1,569)
20194128318 At 31 December 2019 196,787 61,073 257,860
EESEAE Deferred income tax liabilities:
NERBHE REWEER
Accelerated Investment REEE
B tax properties Investment St
Provisions depreciation revaluation revaluation Total
20181 A1H At 1 January 2018 12,776 89,250 4,568 79,745 186,339
PUERRASH/(E8)  Charged/(credited) to the income
statement 1,860 1,236 166 (1,885) 1,377
N A e Credited to equity - - - (78,272) (78,272)
2018%F12A31A ) At 31 December 2018 and
201951 A1R 1 January 2019 14,636 90,486 4,734 4,588 114,444
PERfRA i/ (E8)  Charged/(credited) to
the income statement 207 (6,611) (397) - (6,801)
PERIR A Charged to equity - - - 52,294 52,294
2019512318 At 31 December 2019 14,843 83,875 4,337 56,882 159,937

. 209
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34. IEFEBIIE ) 34. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)
Ty F AR A (), B 2 IR ERE The deferred income tax (charged)/credited to equity during the year is
as follows:
2019 2018
RIRER R 2 A AR Fair value reserves in shareholders’
equity:
— UAFEE B HEE S ALt 2 EREER - financial assets at fair value through
& B E E (fI7E38) other comprehensive income
(Note 38) (52,294) 73,272
35. BB QR 2R 35. BALANCES WITH GROUP COMPANIES
REMBAR R AR E RIEEEE A RIR RS Included in the consolidated statement of financial position captions
FRFTHEITR G FNEE 2 ERFFHIIAT ¢ are balances with the ultimate and immediate holding companies
arising from transactions conducted on normal commercial terms:
2019 2018
BERREMARE Advances and other accounts 573 563
%}57@& Deposits from customers 953,000 914,935
HAhER B K TERE Other accounts and accruals 2,033 553
FREMBARRERARE BEERRMB AR 24 Included in the consolidated statement of financial position captions
BREFTIEATE are balances with fellow subsidiaries detailed as follows:
2019 2018
ZHEERLEMERE Advances and other accounts 8,746 7,747
EEFM Deposits from customers 476,180 585,316
HibfRE kiER Other accounts and accruals 13,109 10,691

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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36. RAKRBRERE
(F) BAXERE

R12A31BERB AIDRIREER 2 BEE KiE

ABIEEEZ ERASEMT ¢

36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
(@) Capital commitments

Capital expenditure in respect of projects and acquisition of fixed assets
as at 31 December but not yet incurred is as follows:

2019 2018

EROBERRERERZAX

(2) FEEE

REBEEARRIEERGETENZ2RMIA

RREEMEEERBRIMESRNT

Expenditure contracted but not

provided for 147,096 89,469

(b) Credit commitments

The contract and credit risk weighted amounts of the Group’s off-
balance sheet financial instruments that commit it to extend credit to
customers are as follows:

ERLHE
Contract amount
2019 2018
BEEEERES Direct credit substitutes 563,882 604,991
AR 5188 2 Sk ATHE Transaction-related contingencies 527,442 507,169
HIE MR 2 SRR B Trade-related contingencies 967,813 966,996
AR BUE M N AETR B A 2 e Commitments that are unconditionally
cancellable without prior notice 74,428,118 71,049,928
HAhAE - ARANHRA Other commitments with an original
maturity of:
— DR E —under 1 year 3,999,906 3,093,217
—1FERNAE -1 year and over 758,023 621,803
81,245,184 76,844,104
EERB NS
Credit risk weighted amount
2019 2018
R BE AR Contingent liabilities and commitments 1,794,624 1,548,583

KEFIRITAR AR 2019FF 4
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36. IRBBREE@® 36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
(Continued)
(R) BHFEEHRZEE (c) Assets pledged
TTARAEEEINEERSEHESNEE K Exchange Fund debts pledged with the HKMA to facilitate the Group’s
MR EDMBREEESERZIINEEDE trading and market-making activities in Exchange Fund debts are as
BHEH follows:
2019 2018
EREEESERNEE Assets pledged with HKMA:
BIEEERANES Trading securities 2,635,000 3,718,420
AT ERT 2 BHES A Financial assets at fair value through
Hivz2 AW SR EE other comprehensive income 1,279,155 1,416,143

3,914,155 5,134,563

HEAE : Associated liabilities:

BIEEERRNER Trading liabilities 5,516,558 5,758,954
Tt e EE R T IERE S s 2 3E The carrying amounts of the non-government bonds pledged with
BHEAREABEEZERE : unrelated financial institutions under repurchase agreements and the

associated liabilities are as follows:

2019 2018
ElfE =z N EREE Assets pledged under repurchase
agreements:
FHEEEBGENES Trading securities 65,451 500,000
AT ERT= BEEE A Financial assets at fair value through
EmemEliEne & E other comprehensive income 620,552 1,676,716
LA SRR AT BR ) S B B B Financial assets at amortised cost - 469,964
686,003 2,646,680
HEaE : Associated liabilities:
RITIFIK Deposits from banks 371,153 1,995,696
HibBE B KIELR Other accounts and accruals 300,000 500,000
671,153 2,495,696
Bz F2Es REARE EREERELA The carrying amounts of the securities under repurchase agreements
FEES ° and the associated liabilities are approximately their fair values.
REERHZBARN - AEBETEEER - HEEF The Group cannot use, sell or pledge the above securities for the
LAERES - MEIER ZESFNETANEER duration of the repurchase agreements and is exposed to the credit
% o risk of the issuers of the transferred securities.

212 DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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36. JABBRAE®@

(T) EEHEEARE

IAKEZ ARREEA - BTIABUEMELE
REMRARREW 2 SAERE (AR T

36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

(Continued)

(d) Operating lease commitments

Where a Group company is the lessor, the future minimum lease
payments receivable under non-cancellable building operating leases

are as follows:

2019 2018

1 AR Within 1 year 24,891 26,228
1FEZ26F Between 1 and 2 years 5,186 18,309
2FEIF Between 2 and 3 years 2,253 2,582
32,330 47,119

AN - REBEAEEA - E12019F12A31H
BRI ETHARABAE - ZZSHEMES
Z HE BT ST A435,610,000/8 7T ©

720185124318 » NEBERIRIBEERA S5 A
RAIE17R D B AKEREZE TR ZEREA -
BRZETAREZ EEREMNRRAEL N 2 &
RS 48%E 51,294,532,000/8 7T °

REEEFREESEN 2R EAT B
BwELEAE165 c BEZA N - AEBFAER
2019F1 A1B 2 FHIRRBENRREEZEHE
ZHEAEE2.1(F)1) - B2019F1A1H
B SRR E R FARBRE M 5E2.21 2 BUR B
BARR R A BIEE] AR B RiER T8 TR A
HEAR  FUAEEZRREERNRZFEBR
Bfi7E3.4 2 EE o

In addition, the Group has, as a lessee, entered into a number of
leases as at 31 December 2019 that have not yet commenced. The
aggregate lease payments payable under these leases amount to
HK$435,610,000.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group was the lessee in respect of a
number of properties which were classified as operating leases under
HKAS 17. The future minimum lease payments payable under those
operating leases which were non-cancellable were HK$1,294,532,000.

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach. Under this approach, the Group adjusted
the opening balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise lease liabilities
relating to these leases (Note 2.1(a)(1)). From 1 January 2019 onwards,
future lease payments are recognised as lease liabilities included in
other accounts and accruals in the statement of financial position
in accordance with the policies set out in Note 2.21, and the details
regarding the Group’s future lease payments are disclosed in Note
3.4.2.

REIRITAR AR 2019F F 3]
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38. fRfE 38. RESERVES
TEER REEf NRARE REEA
i B TR 2 R (&)
BogE Premises  Investment EiGE —REE  Reservefor Retained
Consolidation ~ Revaluation ~ Revaluation Exchange General  Share-based Earnings o
Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve  Compensation (Note) Total
201951418 At1 January 2019 8,827 233,100 66,446 (209,714) 700,254 13,108 18,455,241 19,267,262

MEEAEAGHASEA  Changes on initial application of
F16%28%) HKFRS16 - - - - - - 9,817 (9,817)

&BF 22019 £1A1A%#:  Restated balance at 1 January 2019 8,827 233,100 66,446 (209,714) 700,254 13,108 18,445,424 19,257,445

NTEFENMAILRREHER  Fairvalue loss realised and transferred

IATEHEEEZHHA  toincome statement upon disposal

B2 EYENEBIAR  of debt instruments at fair value

ERREBENRE through other comprehensive

income upon derecognition - = 24 - = = - 24

INATEFEEEZE AR Net change in fair value of debt

2EREHEFIAZZATE  instruments at far value through

838 other comprehensive income - - 395,412 - - - - 395,412
IAT(EF S BEZHE AL Net change in fair value of equity

SENGEHNBEETAZATE  instruments at fair value through

2858 other comprehensive income - - 951 - = = o 951
RAS(EREEYZETHE  Deferred income tax on movements in
(FiizF4) investment revaluation reserve (Note
) = = (52,294) - - - - (52,294)

IWATEFEAEEE:H AL Net change in allowance for expected
FENENEBIAZES  creditlosses of debt instruments

EEFRERDER at fair value through other
comprehensive income - - 4,487 - - - - 4,487
EOMERUETEZIREFE  Distribution payment of additional
equity instruments - - - - - - (41,682) (41,682)
BERMEEER AR Exchange differences arising
MEHZR on translation of the financial
statements of foreign entities - - - (159,946) - - - (159,946)
DRHES MOARGEAZER  Provision for equity-settled share-

WM B based compensation - - - - - 1,406 - 1,406
FREN Profitfor the year - - - - - - 2,215,270 2,215,270
WI8FRERE 2018 fnal dividend - - - - - - E200)  (452,600)
I9ERERE 2019 interim dividend - - - - - - (82000  (182900)
2019%12A31A At 31 December 2019 8,827 233,100 415,026 (369,660) 700,254 14,514 19,983,512 20,985,573

- 215
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38. fEiEw@

38. RESERVES (Continued)

BZ12A31HILLEE
Year ended 31 December

2019 2018
BIENMRE &R 2 R ARER S Proposed final dividend/final dividend
ERAREARR B (FI5E16) paid included in retained earnings
(Note 16) 471,200 452,600
T Note:

RRFTANEE BB A ERIRB BN EREEAE
IASNZ BARIRUE RS - Mts e B B A (R AT SORPIRS
FEIRTTRAFRIT(FE)) IR 6 BRRITEMSED FUA
EEEESANZAMEERTE - ZEERERR K
BTRRZFRESSE EERBIEHEAEFTETER
EITHER - WERREEFEANRR -

2019412 A31H © AiR{TE 57 1,127,403,00078 ¢
(20184F : 1,195,194,000/8 7T ) 2 £ REVE R BB [ 5t
AR A —MREE - SEBRBRARTZEEAREBEFF

$ETE °

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

The Bank is required to maintain minimum impairment provisions in excess of
those required under HKFRS in the form of regulatory reserve. The regulatory
reserve, which also covers BCM and DSB China, is maintained to satisfy
the provisions of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance and local regulatory
requirements for prudential supervision purposes. The regulatory reserve
restricts the amount of reserves which can be distributed to shareholders.
Movements in the regulatory reserve are made directly through equity reserve
and in consultation with the HKMA.

As at 31 December 2019, the Bank has earmarked a regulatory reserve of
HK$1,127,403,000 (2018: HK$1,195,194,000) first against the consolidated
general reserve; and for any excess amount, the balance is earmarked against
the consolidated retained earnings of the Bank.
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38. fEiE@

38. RESERVES (Continued)

NRAE RERT
EBkGEE  RESEER =t (&)
GakR Premises  Investment B E —#%5f%E  Reservefor Retained
Consolidation Revaluation Revaluation Exchange General  Share-based Earnings fit
Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve  Compensation (Note) Total
2018%F1A1H At 1 January 2018 8,827 233,100 318,224 96,658 700,254 11,688 17,649,790 19,018,541
MEEERBHAREEE  Change oninitial application of HKFRS 9

£95 288 - - 50,626 - - - (380,254) (329,628)
IEREENHASE  Impact of initial application of HKFRS 9

FIFHNEEBENAZYE  onshare of an associate - - 25,445 - - - (284,490) (250,045)
@EY| 22018 F1A1BAS  Restated balance at 1 January 2018 8,827 233,100 394,295 96,658 700,254 11,688 16,985,046 18,429,868
NFEMENE I LRREHER  Fair value gain realised and transferred

IATEFEEESHA  toincome statement upon disposal

2 ERaaEELA of debt instruments at fair value

KHERREBENAE through other comprehensive

income upon derecognition - - (1,682) - - - - (1,682)
PRIEREDES - EXHM Reclassification of net change in fair

INEEREEEY DN value of equity instruments

At 2ARENERETEZ  atfair value through other

NTEERFE(RRR) comprehensive income upon

derecognition, net of tax - - 14,531 - - - (14,531) -
DATEFEEESEFA  Netchangein fair value of debt

E2ENENERTAZ  instruments at fair value through

L) other comprehensive income - - (413,774) - - - - (13,774)
IATEHEEEZHIA  Netchangein fair value of equity

Et2ERENERMTEZ  instruments at fair value through

ATEERFE other comprehensive income - - 1,608 - - - - 1,608
REEHEREZYZEEHE  Deferred income tax on movements in

(Fzkad) investment revaluation reserve

(Note 34 - . 73072 - - - . 73072
IATEHEEEEHH AL Netchange in allowance for expected
SENEMEBIAEZES  oreditlosses of debt instruments
GEBERESHE at fair value through other
comprehensive income = = (1,804) = = = = (1,804)
EIMERIETEZRESUE  Distribution payment of additional
equity instruments - - - - - - (39,033) (39,033)
BEBMEEERE Exchange differences arising
MEHZR on translation of the financial
statements of foreign entities - - - (306,372) - - = (306,372)
IARES ARG EAZRE  Provision for equity-settled share-

T Bl based compensation - - - - - 1,420 - 1,420
EREEF Profit for the year - - - - - - 2,140,659 2,140,659
WITEREME 2017 final dividend - - - - - S B4000) (434000
18F R8RS 2018 interim dividend - - - - - - (182,900) (182,900)
2018127318 At 31 December 2018 8,827 233,100 66,446 (209,714) 700,254 13,108 18,455,241 19,267,262

- 217
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39. HIMERMTH

M2017F12 A8H « NRITEHITRHAEERRE
1145 35 78 & 115,000,000 ¢ 2 £ H1 (R 3F 2714
BIEFER 2 BIN—RERES([FEI—BRERE
%)) - HBRAFTEmMEHRE -

HWEEESERBAANRT  REEELERK
HRBRHEZER  RAMERIN—BRERE
HFRUE - BRIKRRITRHEREE - QIR R
BREHRZ AR ERMHEER B ERAER
LR e

T HEERN2022412 A8H B2 EEH
I REIRF B R £4.625% © FHEFIF—k o
Hig - WEIN—RERNESFAWER - R3S X
BIAGSFER — X BRERSTHERBERS
BEN248.52F - BIBFEIN—RELEH 2%
RGP 2 38 E - ARITEREBUSIREE ST
1 REBUEZIRESZ g R5T

HRSEESERERLAE - RRITANERM
BEARREZREXNAUNREABERRME
(FERD ) FEIN—RERES °
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39. ADDITIONAL EQUITY INSTRUMENTS

On 8 December 2017, the Bank issued Basel Ill-compliant undated
non-cumulative subordinated Additional Tier 1 capital securities (the
“AT1 Capital Securities”) with a notional principal of US$115,000,000.
They were fully subscribed by DSFH.

The principal of the AT1 Capital Securities will be written off up to the
amount as directed by the HKMA if the HKMA notifies the Bank that in
the opinion of the HKMA or a relevant government body that a write-
off is necessary, without which the Bank would become non-viable.

Distribution at 4.625% p.a. is payable semi-annually from the issue
date to the optional redemption date falling on 8 December 2022.
Thereafter, if the AT1 Capital Securities are not redeemed, the
distribution rate will be reset every 5 years and it will bear distribution
at the then prevailing 5-year U.S. Treasury Rate plus 248.5 basis
points. The Bank has the right to cancel distribution payment, subject
to the requirement as set out in the terms and conditions of the
AT1 Capital Securities, and the distribution cancelled shall not be
cumulative.

The Bank may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the HKMA,
redeem the AT1 Capital Securities in whole but not in part, at par either
on the optional redemption date or any distribution payment date
thereafter.
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40. FERERBEERME

() Milre TREREEEEZWHERER
AI2EERFIRRCETHRERA
(Fr ) R RE

40. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

(@) Reconciliation of operating profit before gains and
losses on certain investments and fixed assets to net
cash from/(used in) operating activities

2019 2018

MeRE TIRE REEEE 2 W K EERZ
el

FERSMA

P B izt

EEREER

e

TBUBR (U 1 2 B TR 55 B

VARS8 3215 AR AR 1 A EERE SR BN 2 Bk 5

2 WA
2B
LGS,

I
fi

BENAGBEEH L ERN

I

SEEENAGB RS

—RE RAERTNES MR HRER
3 A 2 BA B S B 3K

— RE2|HI B ERR3(E A 2RI TR

—R{EEEMENRES
—TEERMIA
—UAHEFEAEZSA A EBENEREE

—H5ER

—EPEX

—HiREARE

—UAEFEBEEFHH ARMER
WasH e R EE

— B AT S BB E

—RITER

—FHHEEERZNARE

—EPER

—BIIERE

—HibERERE kiR

B 54 5

RELEDRA(FIR) RS

XNEBTHEREZIME

ERBBMED
EABIMNIR

&

LRBRA (R REFE

Fal

I

Operating profit before gains and losses
on certain investments and fixed assets 2,156,208 2,456,964

Net interest income (4,055,775) (4,152,822)
Dividend income (10,084) (11,330)
Credit impairment losses 356,386 233,441
Depreciation 380,910 187,236
Advances written off net of recoveries (246,840) (269,311)
Provision for equity-settled share-based

compensation 1,406 1,420
Interest received 7,314,139 6,586,066
Interest paid (2,824,308) (1,849,122)
Dividend received 33,484 32,030

Operating profit before changes in
operating assets and liabilities 3,105,526 3,214,572

Changes in operating assets and
liabilities:
— cash and balances with banks and
money at call and short notice
with an original maturity beyond
three months 2,492,932 (1,107,292)
— placements with banks with an
original maturity beyond three

months 5,966,512 604,651
— trading securities 839,715 93,494
— derivative financial instruments 778,982 (38,587)
— financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss (1,285) 25,864
- trade bills 1,283,399 (611,861)
- advances to customers (8,318,281) (9,365,621)
- other accounts receivable (1,429,160) 420,943
- financial assets at fair value through

other comprehensive income 2,207,445 (8,428,839)
- financial assets at amortised cost (6,497,439) 1,739,555
— deposits from banks (1,332,487) 1,520,165
- trading liabilities (242,396) (2,909,554)
— deposits from customers 9,634,465 11,183,516
— certificates of deposit issued 213,043 (25,854)
— other accounts payable and accruals 2,167,779 1,132,088

Exchange adjustments 51,178 128,370

Cash generated from/(absorbed by)
operating activities 10,919,928 (2,424,390)

Interest paid on certificates of deposit

issued (134,799) (161,091)
Hong Kong profits tax paid (460,124) (252,512)
Overseas tax paid (29,488) (82,447)
Net cash from/(used in) operating

activities 10,295,517 (2,870,440)
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40. mEBEERELERMT @

(2) EREREBLEERR RERZEAES
HERERBEAGEIEARATE
Mz T ol%er  REEERLCEERR
REATERERERERSBELE

40.
CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash

and cash equivalents comprise the following balances
with maturity of three months or less from the date
of acquisition, deposits that are readily convertible to

Koo known amount of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.
2019 2018
e NAERITHERR Cash and balances with banks 2,325,920 2,243,840
JREIHA B E3ME A 3 bA T 2 A /2 HTF K Money at call and short notice with an
original maturity within three months 13,759,907 10,059,450
[REVHA B ESE A A T 2 ERITHI TR Placements with banks with an original
maturity within three months 2,234,110 1,015,792
BRERARTESEAEEFHTA Treasury bills included in financial
Hth2ER=NESREEN 2 BERER assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income 4,496,472 2,098,522
BIERBEEBERRNESFN ZBEEE Treasury bills included in trading
securities 1,606,484 -
24,422,893 15,417,604

RESE ERIF PR RERTTHY 45 84415,522,000/8 7T
(20184F : 405,667,000/ 70) B[ IR & R ERIE
SHE IBRETIRERBEEI RS RERITHE
ERIBRIE T ©

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Included in cash and balances with banks, HK$415,522,000 (2018:
HK$405,667,000) were balances with central banks for prudential
purposes and have been excluded from cash and cash equivalents.
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(A) RERMEFH 2BEIHRER

TRAMAEERERETSD  AEED  BF
ReMFRe2EH - RE mﬂﬁ/ﬁiﬂZEﬁ |
Hiﬁi/majﬂixiﬁéﬂmﬂ% E$%.£ IE@
MEARRNIBEAMETERERCAE -

40. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from financing
activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising
from financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows were,
or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated

statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

REMEEE
ZEEEE
Total
HEAE ®EEK EMFIE  liabilities from
Lease  Subordinated Interest financing
liabilities notes payable activities
720181 A1H As at 1 January 2018 - 5,487,366 91,416 5,578,782
RERS R 2 Changes from financing cash flows:
S‘ZHE?‘?T?% R Interest paid on subordinated notes and
REBES2HE debt securities issued = = (293,730) (293,730)
RERS T EEEE Total changes from financing cash flows - - (293,730) (293,730)
Hin&a) - Other changes:
BREITRERBRERES Interest accrued on subordinated notes and
ZIEETRIE debt securities issued - - 293,929 293,929
EiER Exchange difference - 11,900 = 11,900
ATEED Fair value change - (50,184) - (50,184)
Rt E 885 Total other changes . (38,284) 293,929 255,645
#2018F12A331H As at 31 December 2018 - 5,449,082 91,615 5,540,697
MEERE SIS REEDF165  Impact on initial application of HKFRS16
a7 538,261 - - 538,261
BREBHEREERE1657 Restated opening balance under HKFRS16
201951 B1 B REF  FH4 as at 1 January 2019 538,261 5,449,082 91,615 6,078,958
RERET B Changes from financing cash flows:
TREETRERS Interest paid on subordinated notes and
REBESHE debt securities issued - - (291,958) (291,958)
BITREERK Issue of subordinated notes - 1,753,426 - 1,753,426
EBREEES Repayment of subordinated notes - (1,765,339) - (1,765,339)
BEHEAR Repayment of lease liabilities (191,394) - - (191,394)
HERS R BBAHE Total changes from financing cash flows (191,394) (11,913) (291,958) (495,265)
Hin &) : Other changes:
BT EEBRERE Interest accrued on subordinated notes and
Z eI S debt securities issued - - 292,999 292,999
HEREaE Additions to lease liabilities 72,647 - - 72,647
EHER Exchange difference (1,413) (33,739) - (35,152)
REARMEX Interest expense on lease liabilities 13,499 - - 13,499
DEEZS Fair value change - 106,751 - 106,751
Hit B HAE Total other changes 84,733 73,012 292,999 450,744
2019512831 H As at 31 December 2019 431,600 5,510,181 92,656 6,034,437
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41, ERTFEEREHBEKE

BIEEE N AEG (£622GE ) F176 (BBEES
FzmER) BEEERTESEHE2019F %2018
F12A31BIEFEZHEFT W27 -

41. LOANS TO DIRECTORS AND ENTITIES CONNECTED

WITH DIRECTORS

Particulars of loans to directors disclosed pursuant to section 17
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622G) (Disclosure
of Information about Benefits of Directors) for the year ended 31
December 2019 and 2018 are shown as below.

2019 2018
M12A31B 2B G AREEETE Aggregate amount of relevant
transactions outstanding at 31
December
—BER R - Loans and advances 22,103 23,149
FANEBR G 2 x=iBiER Maximum aggregate amount of relevant
transactions during the year
—ERRBR - Loans and advances 23,822 24,620

R2019%F 220185 Ll 2 R B BRI 5 B ANERTT

% -

42. BEBREALTZRS

NIRRT 2 BEEEBR AR ARMRITEEER QA
(TRFRITEE]) RERERARAFTERER
EREEMNEE LM ARF] e

R2019F &20184F + ANRITIZ —MREH S5 B
ERARREMRARMBARREZ B ERE
R BIERITREFEAREMG HERDHA

Sh—REBER - REEMRITRE -

BN AERITIR A AR A B R ER R B R
AR ENRITERRY  HERSEMETRE
HIBARR]
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The above relevant transactions in 2019 and 2018 were all transacted
by the Bank.

42. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Bank’s immediate holding company Dah Sing Banking Group
Limited (“DSBG”) and the ultimate holding company is DSFH. Both
holding companies are incorporated and listed in Hong Kong.

During 2019 and 2018, the Bank entered into various continuing
connected transactions with its holding companies, and other fellow
subsidiaries on normal commercial terms. These transactions include
interbank placements and deposit taking, marketing and distribution of
life and general insurance products and the provision of other banking

services.

In addition, the Bank also provides computer and administrative
services to its ultimate holding company and its fellow subsidiaries,
leases and sub-leases properties to fellow subsidiaries.
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BEMBEALZEARZIT :

(F) BERARAKREANBARANRZRE
R

42. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Details of the significant related party transactions are as follows:

(@) Transactions and balances with holding companies and
fellow subsidiaries

(i) WARZH (i)  Income and expenses
BEERBAERAR
Immediate and EEN - PG|
ultimate holding companies Fellow subsidiaries
2019 2018 2019 2018

EAFLE Interest paid (19,194) (11,403) (5,371) (5,532)
BIH S Interest received - - 51 114
BlAE Commission received - - 29,294 25,8283
B ARTEE U /E] Service fee received/recovery of

At EE I other operating expenses 6,874 6,702 7,169 5,865
Bl S RAARAE Rental and related building

TER management fee received - - 4,739 4,487
EfEMEES L Other operating expenses paid = - (8,172) (8,736)
EffHE Rental paid - - (5,135) (9,428)
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42. ERAEALZRES @) 42,
() XEEEBAE (b)
() BHEFERTEEFASEZEAX
BRAZG

FA - ARITREKDER - 8 - EAFR
REBERBTEEEIRAS - AR RAS
WEMRAESINRE - WIRENIESER
BREPRHREEME THRER -

T2EBABZRGMES 2 WA R
TEXN MERRERZERNT

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Key management personnel

(i)  Material transactions and balances with directors
and key management personnel

During the year, the Bank has banking transactions with the key
management personnel, their close family members and the
entities controlled by them including deposit taking, loans, credit
card facilities and investment services. These transactions were
provided in the ordinary course of business and at the same
terms with other employees.

Income and expenses arising from the transactions with key
management personnel are immaterial and the loans and
deposits balances with them are shown below:

2019 2018

B NET Loans and advances 377 23,096
fFak Deposits 570,189 946,224
REA 2 B EGE Undrawn commitments 4,128 4,123
ER Guarantee = =

(i) TEEEASHZ
REBITEREEASRPITES - HRD
BRERZFIRHEES -

(A) BBRERNARAFZEHNER RS RE (©)
23

(i) Remuneration of key management personnel

Key management personnel of the Bank are executive directors
and their remunerations are included under Note 15.

Transactions and balances with associate and jointly
controlled entity

FR > RNBARE EBL NG EEST During the year, the Bank received from BOCQ, an associate, dividend
80,344,0005%5 7T (20184F : 66,546,0007% 7T ) f% & income of HK$80,344,000 (2018: HK$66,546,000). During the year,
WA o R - ANERITEVE — L EIE G| E AL REL (= the Bank received deposits from Bank Consortium Trust Company
TER AR ZEZR  MER2019F12 831 BiF2k Limited, a jointly controlled entity and the balance of deposit as at 31
%k A 5173 42400037 7T (20184F : 5,601,000 December 2019 was HK$173,424,000 (2018: HK$5,601,000).

) o

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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gl SERARZESESARTHET - 2iF
REBRABITHES - RREREERE

REBBBAFRITEE B R AF S BBl
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() RHFBITERETE

A RITEB RN 201445 A27 B BITHAH
RITE B IR A F R BB E RN R AR
([ RFRITEEFETEI]) - WL RRFARER
FTERTTRE 2004556 A 12 B £ 2 iR i kEst 2l
([RFBITEBERTE]) - RFRITEEEE]
RIET8 TSR R 818 — P A R
ERFIRITEBES B 2 R B T ABEAITE
RAERBKIERTE R B ERKIERDRITEZ 2

REEMS - DEATRBAORIER -
BABIREETE - KFRTEERTEM

BA T%$§$&anh% EFBRRATAR
RITEE R RERRETER - REGRR
%zmﬁgﬁuﬁﬁiﬁ'ﬁﬁﬁ%$ﬁﬁgm
BHRG - ARFRITEEITEERLES S ME
BIF201245F AR P T BURRARHE 720126 R &
BT T 2 RRE - RARITEBITEETHR
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43. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS

Each of the Bank’s immediate holding company (Dah Sing Banking
Group Limited (“DSBG”)) and ultimate holding company (Dah Sing
Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”)) has its own share option
schemes. The Board of Directors of DSBG and DSFH can grant to any
employees, including directors of the Bank and of the Group, options
to subscribe for shares of DSBG or DSFH under the DSBG Share
Option Schemes (the “DSBG Schemes”) and the DSFH Share Option
Scheme (the “DSFH Scheme”) approved by shareholders.

Share-based compensation through the DSBG Schemes and the
DSFH Scheme is available to directors and senior executives of the
Group.

(@ DSBG Schemes

The shareholders of DSBG approved the adoption of a new share
option scheme (the “New DSBG Scheme”) and, at the same time, the
termination of the Share Option Scheme adopted by DSBG on 12 June
2004 (the “Old DSBG Scheme”) at the annual general meeting of DSBG
held on 27 May 2014. No further options can be offered under the Old
DSBG Scheme after its termination but the provisions of the Old DSBG
Scheme remain in full force and effect to the extent necessary to give
effect to allow grantees to exercise share options granted prior to the
termination of the Old DSBG Scheme but not yet exercised at the time
of termination.

Under the Old DSBG Scheme, DSBG issued to certain directors
and employees of its subsidiaries share options on terms that allow
DSBG the choice of making cash payments, determined based on the
intrinsic value of each share option, instead of allotting newly issued
shares to the directors or employees at the date of exercise. DSBG
has the intention to adopt cash settlement practice in respect of the
share options granted prior to year 2012. For share option issued in
2012 and afterwards, DSBG has the intention to settle its obligations
by issuing new shares.
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43. DR AERRMEE @
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43. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)
(@ DSBG Schemes (Continued)

The share options were granted in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the Old DSBG Scheme. The exercise price per option
share was concluded by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
on behalf of the Board of DSBG on the basis no less exacting than the
requirement set out in Rule 17.03(9) of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the SEHK and was determined as no less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of DSBG’s shares traded on the SEHK on
the date of grant; and (ii) the average closing price of DSBG’s shares
traded on the SEHK for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant. For options granted before the commencement of
the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) on 3 March 2014, the nominal
value of DSBG'’s shares of HK$1 each in the capital of DSBG had been
taken into account in determining the exercise price per option share.
The exercise period is between the first and sixth anniversaries from
the date of grant.

(o) DSFH Scheme

On 27 May 2015, the shareholders of DSFH approved the adoption of
a share option scheme (the “DSFH Scheme”).

No share options had been granted under the DSFH Scheme since the
date of its adoption to 31 December 2019.

Share options granted under the Old DSBG Scheme:

FRTEEGERT)

BFH =5l SR 1768 Exercise price per

Date of grant Type Vesting period Exercise period share (HK$)
201443 HA26H VARSEHE 2 1+F 201453 H26EH % 201553 H26E &
20193 H26H 202053 H26H

26/03/2014 Equity-settled 26/03/2014-26/03/2019 26/03/2015-26/03/2020 11.68

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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43. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)
(b) DSFH Scheme (Continued)

Share options granted under the New DSBG Scheme since the date of
its adoption to 31 December 2019:

EBRITEEGER)
®FH bWl REHE 1758 Exercise price per
Date of grant Type Vesting period Exercise period share (HK$)
201854 H26H VAR 2 A~ 20184 826EH % 20194 A26H =

20234 H26H 20244 A26H
26/04/2018 Equity-settled 26/04/2018-26/04/2023 26/04/2019-26/04/2024 18.24

IRURER IR A FERR 2 AR (D R 3R < ST T

Share-based compensation charged to income statement is as
follows:

2019 2018

VARSCHE S < 2 SR A A

LIRS 2R

B AR IR TR B AT 8 AR T 2 AR
R ERETRZAFETI A=A SE
SEEBEGE o

20194 » M BT ABRKE SO 2 AR AR IR IR K
FRTTR B B AT REEET IR -

Equity-settled options 1,406 1,418

Equity-settled options

With respect to the equity-settled options granted under the New
DSBG Scheme described above, the fair value is determined by using
the Trinomial Option Pricing Model at the date when the options are
granted.

No equity-settled options were granted under the New DSBG scheme
and DSFH scheme in the year of 2019.
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43. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)
(b) DSFH Scheme (Continued)
Equity-settled options (Continued)

Movements in the number of share options granted and their related
weighted average exercise prices are as follows:

RERITEEGE AFErcTE
DSBG Scheme DSFH Scheme
2019 2018 2019 2018
Sl it} Sl S}
BEAN BEAH BE BE
RITEE RITEE RAER Nk

ARET  METY  RivER  OWETS  RRET  NETE ZRER  0ETS
BROBE  TEE RHHE e ROHE  EE  RHEAE T8
Number ~ (#m) Number  (#7) Number  (#x) Number  (&7)
of DSBG Weighted of DSBG Weighted  of DSFH Weighted of DSFH Weighted

shares  average shares  average shares  average shares  average
inshare  exercise  inshare  exercise  inshare exercise  inshare  exercise
options price options price  options price options price
granted (HK$)  granted (HK$)  granted (HK$)  granted (HK$)

—A—H At 1 January

il Granted

B8 Expired

BT/ ER Exercised/redeemed
BEGH,/ 8 Cancelled/forfeited
124318 At 31 December
1233187147 Exercisable at 31 December

RFTIRITEER2019F 12 A31 B R1T{E 2 R
21T (E 718.247% 7T (20184F : 11 F11.68/%
TLE18.2487T) - RENE T FERE LT EA
£4.32% (20184 : 5.16%F) - N ASBEEK
BRITHABREA 2 RH & s RE - 702019
F12 A1 R A ARITE 2 K& @Rk (2018
F:8H)-

1,562,312 17.98 1,910,921 8.20 - - 31,292 31.88
1,500,000 18.24 - - = -

(62,312) 11.68 (1,848,609) 8.09 - - = =

- - = = - - (31,292 31.88
1,500,000 18.24 1,562,312 17.98 - - - -
300,000 18.24 = = - - = =

DSBG’s share options outstanding as of 31 December 2019 have
an exercise price of HK$18.24 (2018: HK$11.68 to HK$18.24), and a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 4.32 years (2018: 5.16
years). In respect of directors and senior executives of the Group, there
is no DSFH’s share option outstanding as of 31 December 2019 (2018:
Nil).
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44. TREERBBNHE

BB AR ERBIERTOEN AT S HEREE
REBEZEERSRE  URABNFHEEEHH
REXRBEREENBERAE  ATKERE
ERAFEMEEHH -

() FREEIHREEY S HEMEIRRE
NEEzTHEERER

AEEBRERBTREEARAB([FETR
BEDARZBPREPETREEERS -

REBRZF KR ENEERREL 2 SR
EHREEEEPREE 2 BRI K ERTK
THAA%E © 1R2019F12 A31H @ s F B BEKIE
B SR sE299 2 [ FEYGKRIE RIERIIE B |8RIA
A - &FR2018F 128318 » xFE AR KIER
BERI bR B RFEIR IBREAR - HiH 2 SR

44. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES

Financial assets and liabilities are presented net when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle them on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

(@) Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
agreement and offset on the statement of financial
position

The Group maintains an account with the Hong Kong Securities
Clearing Company Limited (“HKSCC”) through which it conducts
securities trading transactions for its customers.

In presenting the amounts due from and to HKSCC, the Group has
offset the gross amount of the accounts receivable from and the
gross amount of the accounts payable to HKSCC. As at 31 December
2019, the net amount was a receivable and was included in,“Accounts
receivable and prepayments” in Note 29 and as at 31 December 2018,
the net amount was a payable and was included in “Other accounts

RTX and accruals”. The amounts offset are shown below.
2019 2018
B ERREE 2 BB Gross amount of accounts receivable
from HKSCC 105,902 25,461
ERNEBRRER 2 AR Gross amount of accounts payable
to HKSCC (16,742) (48,869)
e/ () BSH R EE T8 Net amount due from/(to) HKSCC 89,160 (23,408)

(2) RFREERHERBEMBRRARA
HECTMEERRE

BREFERELH

AEEEBARERIHFIIVARFEEER
B URIEEERR - FREEEBHERE  —8B
HBRENFEN  ESRRBIHUTFZRTKK S
BaRIt - MAAEBRFIARHSIRFEEE

WIFRLEENEMN  IARHF IR G NEE
BER—RIGEMBINKTPEHIFEERAE -

(b) Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
agreement but not offset on the statement of financial
position

Master netting arrangements

To mitigate credit risks, the Group enters into master netting
arrangements with counterparties whenever possible. Netting
agreements provide that, if an event of default occurs, all outstanding
transactions with the counterparty will be terminated and all amounts
outstanding will be settled on a net basis. Except for the event of
default, all outstanding transactions with the counterparty are settled
on a gross basis and generally do not result in offsetting the assets
and liabilities in the statement of financial position.

REIRITAR AR 2019F F 3]
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44, cRIEEHBBENHEE@

(2) RFREERHERBEMBRRARA

HEzTHEEREE@®

AR E B AL 2 ()

TRINTREH - BEBUN 2 BRFHREE

PERBRIBHEMAIRNSE T AFFS -

o

=z

44, OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES (Continued)

(b) Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
agreement but not offset on the statement of financial
position (Continued)

Master netting arrangements (Continued)

The following tables present details of financial instruments subject
to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and similar

agreements.
e BEEFBRRRA
e Yz RREE
HYYaED RaE Related amounts not set
SREREE SRR off in the statement of R RAME
Gross  BlRzeR financial position BB
amountsof  EEFE  SMIE 2R
CHEASE  recognised Netamounts (E#EEE e
EELE financial  of financial izl k2 ]
Gross liabilities set assets Financial Amounts not
amountsof  offinthe presentedin instruments EWELEH subject to
recognised  statement the statement  (including Cash enforceable
financial  offinancial  of financial  non-cash collateral B netting S
2019512A31R At 31 December 2019 assets position position  collateral) received  Netamount agreements Total
SREE Financial assets
(TESBTIA Derivative financial instruments 470,924 - 470,924 (360,311) (89,227) 21,386 96,892 567,816
—_— ERERBRRER
RREA U AReE
HY YRR RetER Related amounts not set
SREESE RER off in the statement FERTMKE
Gross  BlRzeR of financial position BEET
amountsof ~ BEFE  SRMIE ZBE
CHEASE  recognised Netamounts (E#EHE FHEhE
HESE  financial  offinancial ERR) 288
Gross assetssetoff liabilities Financial c2ER Amounts not
amounts of inthe presentedin  instruments ReER subject to
recognised  statement the statement  (including Cash enforceable
financial ~ of financial  of financial non-cash collateral B netting a3t
2019%12A31A At 31 December 2019 liabilities position position  collateral)  placed out  Netamount agreements Total
TRAR Financial liabilities
HIER Deposits from banks 371,153 - 371,153 (371,159) - - 2093916 2465069
ITESRTIA Derivative financial instruments 1,050,009 - 1,050,009 (360,311) (665,051) 24,647 43019 1,093,028
BERERENAR Trading liabilities 5,516,558 - 5516558  (3,914,155) - 1602403 - 5516558
Hinfk B kR Other accounts and accruals 300,000 - 300,000 (300,000) - - 10505338 10,805,338
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44, cRIEEHBBENHEE@

(2) RFREERHERBEMBRRARA
HEzTHEEREE@®

44,

(b)

LIABILITIES (Continued)

OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL

Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
agreement but not offset on the statement of financial
position (Continued)

AR FEAEE T m) Master netting arrangements (Continued)
BT VEEHHRARA
o HHZEESE
HiSBRT et Related amounts not set
cmafeE  fRgn  off inthestatementof T RARKE
Goss  JIFZER pZe A EUEG]
amountsof  AEFE  £FIE A £
B#7ASR  recognised Netamounts (BiE3FEES FHE R
BESH financial  of financial BER) kx|
Gross liabilities set assets Financial Amounts not
amountsof  offinthe presentedin instruments B4R &I subject to
recognised  statement the statement  (including Cash enforceable
financial  of financial  offinancial ~ non-cash  collateral AR netting ait
2018F12A31H At 31 December 2018 assets position position collateral) received  Netamount — agreements Total
tRAE Financial assets
fEERIA Derivative financial instruments 643,356 - 643,356 (262,857) (380,499) = 83,687 727,043
REM HEZ AR
v Ak et Related amounts not set
cmEEEE  fRxa  off inthestatement T RARKE
Gross Jlmzgg _ Offinandal posiion BT
amountsof  BEFE  &MIE At
BEASE  recognised Netamounts (BFE3EESE e
REEE financial  of financial BRT) bk
Gross  assets set off liabilities Financial BEARE Amounts not
amounts of inthe presentedin  instruments il subject to
recognised  statement the statement  (including Cash enforceable
financial  of financial  offinancial  non-cash  collateral et netting Rt
2018%12A31H At 31 December 2018 liabilities position position collateral)  placed out  Netamount agreements Total
SRER Financial liabilities
HIER Deposits from banks 1,995,696 - 199569  (1,995,69) - - 1,801,860 3,797,556
fTEERIA Derivative financial instruments 402,251 - 402,251 (262,857) (135,081) 4,313 71,022 473,273
HEEBRRRNAR Trading liabilities 5,758,954 - 5758954  (5,134,563) - 624,391 - 5758954
HibfRE kAR Other accounts and accruals 500,000 - 500,000 (500,000) - - 7,737,009 8,237,099
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45. {EHB 2 TAREE

B 202041 A AR BRI R IERR - WEIT
EFEZHEERAESCEBE S H 2 MK
mE - R BEREENTHEEN -

AEFBEEYERFTRUERRES cERHAEE

ZEBREPREZHZE - RER - AEBZE
BREEIRBIER o

AEBESRETERR(BREERR - TERA
B mEBESRRE)ETEDAR - AFEEN

TZEBRRE AR EE 2 RN - ERFE R
ERBES 2 BELE - HETRBZENER
BIRBRERR B2 EIE & I SRR R &
BELENAE -

EENMARNEERRENE ERAR Z&EHMEN
ARBERBTIASBEARMEARRBE AR

Bhz#E AERFZERBEREEREE
THAREEAEETE  ISERGHERES

EIF R EIRIE I ©

MRS R AR REE 2 BN ERRES - B
ECR LA B R AEE I LTS RAL
B BEE e
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45. NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

The outbreak and spread of the coronavirus disease across Mainland
China and beyond since January 2020 has caused disruption to
business and economic activities, and uncertainty to the global
economy.

The Group has been closely monitoring the impact of the development
of the coronavirus on the Group’s businesses and services to
customers. As of this stage, the Group’s business and operations
remain broadly normal.

The Group regularly performs stress tests on its key risks covering
credit risk, market risk, liquidity risk, etc. to assess the potential impact
of stressed business conditions on the Group’s financial position,
capital adequacy and liquidity. The stressed business scenarios
applied in the assessment include the assumption of a meaningful
slowdown in the economic growth of Mainland China and an economic
contraction in Hong Kong.

The results of the latest stress tests incorporating considerations
relating to the coronavirus disease showed that the Group has
sufficient capital and liquidity to absorb the impact of the stress.
The Group will continue to take appropriate actions to mitigate any
potential impacts, and will keep its contingency and risk management
measures under review, as the situation evolves.

With the situation and the spread of the coronavirus still evolving, the
impact to our core markets and also to the Group’s financial results
cannot be reasonably estimated at the current stage.
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TIREEARRE 2 BRHE R IEIRER 2 B0 M
IER - B FEREAMEIRER 2 —FFD -

1. BEXRZEHEE

The following information relates to the Group and is disclosed as part
of the accompanying information to the financial statements and does
not form part of the audited financial statements.

1. CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO

20194 20184
12A31H 12H31H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
BARF L Capital adequacy ratio
—EBRE—R - Common Equity Tier 1 13.4% 13.1%
—— & - Tier 1 13.9% 13.7%
— BB — Total 17.9% 18.1%

201912 A31H KX 2018F 12 A1 B ZE AL B
LR Ty AR RITEV AR S MR (BIERFIREERITRA
FTERTT (R B ) IRECGRITE (BN RADMEER
WEN BEREAAE - ZBEARELENAEEE
R T % R B AR E R o

AT RBEBEMRITERBETBRITEED
BTEATREEHFEENR - RPIEHFRITAE
SARFIRITEEENRERKRFRT(PE)
ABTHAETBRRITREENRE

AREECGRITEER)ARRD)  FEREEEETR
AN B Ab AR R BE 2 BN E R B FIE R A ERIT 4
H http://www.dahsing.com @ I A] 48 A T & 1 &
# : http://www.dahsing.com/html/tc/about_us/
regulatory_disclosures.html 3 A ©

The capital adequacy ratio as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December
2018 represents the consolidated position of the Bank (covering BCM
and DSB China) computed on Basel |l basis in accordance with the
Banking (Capital) Rules. This capital adequacy ratio takes into account
market risk and operational risk.

The Bank as a locally incorporated bank in Hong Kong is subject to
the minimum capital adequacy ratio requirement under the Hong Kong
Banking Ordinance. BCM is subject to Macau banking regulations and
DSB China is subject to China banking regulations.

For the purposes of compliance with the Banking (Disclosure) Rules,
additional information relating to the Group’s regulatory capital
and other related disclosures is published in the Bank’s website at
http://www.dahsing.com and is accessible at the following direct link:
http://www.dahsing.com/html/en/about_us/regulatory_disclosures.html.

REIRITAR AR 2019F F 3]
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2. 1EIRkE= 2. LEVERAGE RATIO
20194 20184
12A31H 12H31H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
AR = Leverage ratio 8.9% 8.8%

(R (B AR) R ADFE24A0) 1547 F HHaR X

2 -

B TIARRIT 2R ARNZ LR RIRE

AR EZ BREREERH

REECIRITE(ER) RA)  FHEAEER
BREEZENEREHIRARTEE
http://www.dahsing.com i A] £¢ LA T H # &

# : http://www.dahsing.com/html/tc/about_us/

regulatory_disclosures.html#E A °

The disclosure on leverage ratio is required under section 24A(6)
of the Banking (Disclosure) Rules. The above ratios represent the
consolidated position of the Bank and are computed on the same
consolidated basis as the capital adequacy ratio.

For the purposes of compliance with the Banking (Disclosure)
Rules, additional information relating to the Group’s leverage ratio is
published in the Bank’s website at http://www.dahsing.com and is
accessible at the following direct link: http://www.dahsing.com/html/
en/about_us/regulatory_disclosures.html.

3. hEMHEEHISHE=E 3. LIQUIDITY MAINTENANCE RATIO
2019 2018
BN B EEHERFLL 3 Liquidity maintenance ratio 46.4% 45.6%

MBI B ERER L R ARRTT (BIRRFIRERT
R R#R1T (P E) )R ERFE BEE A #F194R
ERBEEEFHLENEETSY - REBMUEE
R R DIRBCIRITRORB M) RADHE

RIRITRBEBEMRITARBEBRITEREDE
TREMESKERR - RFIEHRRITAETH
BRFIRITEEERERRHRIT(HE)AE
AP BRITREEHRE

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

The LMR is calculated as the simple average of each calendar month’s
average consolidated liquidity maintenance ratio of the Bank (covering
BCM and DSB China) for the financial year. The LMR is computed in
accordance with the Banking (Liquidity) Rules.

The Bank as a locally incorporated bank in Hong Kong is subject to the
liquidity requirement under the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance. BCM
is subject to Macau banking regulations and DSB China is subject to
China banking regulations.
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4. HMNERBR

T3 A57R2019512 A31 B 2 =AM E M AR &
ZINEFEE (B R 2 HNE SR R R B T S YNE SF 5
10%) * MEAEEZ LLEEE -

R2019F12 A31H Kk2018F12 A31H » &"&EE
WA AR E NS 58205 58 - BRiER R 0B
BATEINERES L 2 SRE NEE 2 BEMS

4. CURRENCY CONCENTRATIONS

The following sets out the net foreign exchange position in USD and
other individual currency that constitutes more than 10% of the total
net position in all foreign currencies as at 31 December 2019 and the
corresponding comparative balances.

The Group did not have any structural foreign exchange position as
at 31 December 2019 and 2018. The net position is calculated in the
basis of the delta-weighted position of all foreign currency option

Ho contracts.
HAthohes INESFT
R Other Total
EY AR Macau foreign foreign
2019%F12A31H At 31 December 2019 US dollars Renminbi Pataca currencies currencies
HERBEST Equivalent in HK$ millions
BEEE Spot assets 68,058 17,066 11,730 9,331 106,185
BEAE Spot liabilities (48,362) (15,453) (11,963) (8,965) (84,743)
REEA Forward purchases 38,334 20,312 - 3,906 62,552
RHE Forward sales (57,101) (21,638) - (4,347) (83,086)
B Net options position (40) - - 40 -
&/(R)838 Net long/(short) position 889 287 (233) (35) 908
H AN SNEGFT
il Other Total
% AR Macau foreign foreign
201812 A31H At 31 December 2018 US dollars Renminbi Pataca currencies currencies
AEREEET Equivalent in HK$ millions
HEEE Spot assets 60,969 14,883 10,894 5,691 92,437
HEEE Spot liabilities (43,893) (14,226) (11,539) (8,423) (78,081)
EHEA Forward purchases 29,060 13,612 1 7,359 50,032
R Forward sales (45,568) (13,760) (160) (4,639) (64,127)
HiRE 5 Net options position (34) _ _ 34 _
&/ (R)mFE Net long/(short) position 534 509 (804) 22 261

. 235
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5. EREKEGFEZEIINDT 5. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND

EXPOSURES

(R) B#TRS B2 EFERBBEULERA (@)
BOERUZERRRENEI LS

Gross advances to customers by industry sector
classified according to the usage of loans and analysed

) by percentage covered by collateral
2019%12A31H 2018%12H31H
At 31 December 2019 At 31 December 2018
EXAE EeE
ZEARRE ZHEARRE
AR ZADE
% of gross % of gross
AEEL advances REEES advances
Outstanding covered Outstanding covered
balance by collateral balance by collateral
EBERERNER Loans for use in Hong Kong
T Industrial, commercial and financial
—MEERE - Property development 4,700,618 64.6 5,411,554 69.4
—MERE - Property investment 15,972,169 97.0 15,930,681 98.7
— SR - Financial concerns 6,057,400 3.0 5,229,101 3.2
—-RELL - Stockbrokers 1,585,717 28.6 1,711,512 28.2
—HEETEYE - Wholesale and retail trade 6,455,795 90.1 6,584,127 89.2
—BiE% - Manufacturing 1,978,378 59.5 1,702,636 75.0
— B BRI R - Transport and transport equipment 3,496,770 7.9 3,691,151 73.1
—F4EH) - Recreational activities 103,724 99.8 103,057 99.8
— &R - Information technology 52,976 70.5 70,890 82.3
—Eft - Others 4,464,895 79.6 3,537,199 82.9
44,868,442 72.1 43,971,908 752
@A Individuals
-BE[EEEEEE] — Loans for the purchase of flats
[FAAZ2EEEHE R in Home Ownership Scheme,
[H&EBHEEIBFER Private Sector Participation
Scheme and Tenants Purchase
Scheme 584,349 100.0 632,804 100.0
-BEEMEENEER - Loans for the purchase of other
residential properties 29,864,112 100.0 26,609,223 100.0
—ERRER - Credit card advances 3,761,021 - 3,721,632 =
—HA - Others 13,196,910 52.8 12,927,451 51.3
47,406,392 78.9 43,891,110 772
EEBFERNER Loans for use in Hong Kong 92,274,834 75.6 87,863,018 76.2
ZS5mE (1) Trade finance (Note (1)) 8,815,573 62.9 9,265,660 62.8
EEBIMERNER () Loans for use outside Hong Kong (Note
@) 35,858,064 660 31,501,601 67.8
136,948,471 723 128,630,279 732

236
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BERERBEZEIDN @

(F) BRI B2EFERMBELERR

1)

@

EoERUSEHERRENE LD
) (@)

RPN BEMERSETESEREHZA
BiEsSImoEAREED MONEBOMNRE
UEEmEHBEEZEN

TEREBZ BHMERR(BIEARRITZEINE
TERATRTZE5EE )4#1E294,310,0007%
J.(20184F12 531 H : 306,245,000/ 7C) 7 27
[TEBRBLIMERMERIET ©

EEBMMERMNERBERTRESTPEES
BASMERZ B3R -

(a)

Note:

ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES (Continued)

Gross advances to customers by industry sector
classified according to the usage of loans and analysed
by percentage covered by collateral (Continued)

Trade finance shown above represents loans covering finance of
imports to Hong Kong, exports and re-exports from Hong Kong and
merchandising trade classified with reference to the relevant guidelines
issued by the HKMA.

Trade finance loans not involving Hong Kong (including trade finance
extended by the overseas subsidiary banks of the Bank) totalling
HK$294,310,000 (31 December 2018: HK$306,245,000) are classified
under Loans for use outside Hong Kong.

Loans for use outside Hong Kong include loans extended to customers
located in Hong Kong with the finance used outside Hong Kong.

KEFIRITAR AR 2019FF 4
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5. BERBREZBNDHT@®

() RTESDE2EFERBBE(LLERA
EPERUSERARRENE DD
) ()

B nirh &BK TS EREE10% A LATT
¥ HEGREERE BHERE  BRS- Rk
BB KRB 2EFUREEFIT

5. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES (Continued)

(@) Gross advances to customers by industry sector
classified according to the usage of loans and analysed
by percentage covered by collateral (Continued)

For each industry sector reported above with loan balance constituting
10% or more of the total balance of advances to customers, the
attributable amount of impaired loans, overdue loans, Stage 3, and
Stage 1 and Stage 2 impairment allowances are as follows:

MR
BEREE PR R P ER2
HEER BiB3fE A PEER3 HEEE
(P& £23) Gross WE%HE Stageland
KEBLEH Impaired advances Stage 3 Stage 2
Outstanding loans  overdue for impairment impairment
2019%12H31H At 31 December 2019 balance (Stage 3) over 3 months allowances allowances
EBEBERANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
TEem Industrial, commercial and financial
—MERE - Property investment 15,972,169 45,985 44,910 4,721 79,461
EA Individuals
—-EEAMAEE - Loans for the purchase of other
MEED residential properties 29,864,112 44,204 33,772 7,537 21,934
EEBEAIMERNE Loans for use outside Hong Kong 35,858,064 256,544 373,852 129,588 131,693
BN
BEARER PE 1 R BE B2
HEER B iB3(E A PEER3 REEE
(FER3) Gross WEEE  Stage 1and
RERER Impaired advances Stage 3 Stage 2
Outstanding loans overdue for impairment impairment
201812 A31H At 31 December 2018 balance (Stage 3) over 3 months allowances allowances
EBBEANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
TEsa Industrial, commercial and financial
—WERE - Property investment 15,930,681 46,826 39,278 3417 89,814
fAA Individuals
-BEHEMEE - Loans for the purchase of other
MEER residential properties 26,609,223 27,406 14,575 1,807 18,520
EBBUIMERHER Loans for use outside Hong Kong 31,501,601 220,458 182,600 90,693 122,411
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5. BERBREZBNDHT@®

(Z) HHBEAEERKNERE

REFBEERBCGRITEKE)RAD - U THF
BAEXBNRBZOMNH2REELERY D
B RPE TS R RAR P72 SRRITRRZH TR
AIREEREREERENUSE - HhRB8EAR
7R E AN RITHE R BER T 2 P B AREELH
R

5. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES (Continued)

(b) Mainland activities exposures

The analysis of Mainland activities exposures is based on the
categories of non-bank counterparties and the type of direct
exposures defined by the HKMA under the Banking (Disclosure) Rules
with reference to the HKMA Return of Mainland Activities, which
includes the Mainland activities exposures extended by the Bank and
its Mainland subsidiary bank only.

BEBERA BERER)
HIEhEE HIEhEE
On-balance Off-balance BT
2019% 2019 sheet exposure sheet exposure Total exposures
1. PRS- RREfTEBLME 1. Central government, central government-
KENBARMEE owned entities and their subsidiaries and
RR([AE8RF]) joint ventures (“JV’s) 10,376,553 501,429 10,877,982
2 M EIT - BB ESRKE 2. Local governments, local government-owned
REHBARMEE R entities and their subsidiaries and JVs 1,075,406 323,331 1,398,737
3. BEEFREMMBRS 3. PRC nationals residing in Mainland China or
TEF B A PR A ) L AR other entities incorporated in Mainland China
ENBARNSEAR and their subsidiaries and JVs 13,873,770 1,310,785 15,184,555
4 ABELMFE—BER2HRE 4. Other entities of central government not
& E ke reported in item 1 above 2,397,774 49,341 2,447,115
5. ABELME-IB2H 23 A 5. Other entities of local governments not
FFE S reported in item 2 above 1,039,800 290,552 1,330,352
6. EEAEFEANMMIN2BERSE 6. PRC nationals residing outside Mainland China
BRI AN L O HERE - T or entities incorporated outside Mainland
W B SRR Bl A China where the credits are granted for use
in Mainland China 11,912,699 405,440 12,318,139
7. B SETF - HEREHAEY 7. Other counterparties where the exposures are
B RREIERI TR P RIEAE considered to be non-bank Mainland China
exposures 1,329,873 - 1,329,873
42,005,875 2,880,878 44,886,753
AT REAMBITHEARZ Total assets of the Bank and its Mainland
HRBRERCEERR subsidiary bank after provision 224,615,205
BEBBRANSBIEEESST  On-balance sheet exposures as percentage of
B total assets 18.70%

i DRERREeREEFERERREMEERR

Bz2% -

Note: The balances of exposures reported above include gross advances and

other balances of claims on the customers.
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5. ERRSEZEID @ 5. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES (Continued)
(Z) BB RPE R EREE (80) (b) Mainland activities exposures (Continued)
BEBREXA BEBERD
igfo ifoe
On-balance Off-balance e
20184 2018 sheet exposure sheet exposure Total exposures
1. PRS- RREfFEBLME 1. Central government, central government-
REKBARMNALAR owned entities and their subsidiaries and JVs 9,982,126 305,735 10,287,861
2. M E - S AE 2. Local governments, local government-owned
RAMBARMEERH entities and their subsidiaries and JVs 1,504,724 371,992 1,876,716
3. BEETEA 2 BER%AFE 3. PRC nationals residing in Mainland China or
PR R E RS R EL S other entities incorporated in Mainland China
ARG ERT and their subsidiaries and JVs 13,135,384 1,046,751 14,182,135
4 XBELME—AER 2RI 4. Other entities of central government not
fTEE s reported in item 1 above 1,154,781 9,949 1,164,730
5 KB LME_HZHK WAL 5. Other entities of local governments not
& E f ke reported in item 2 above 643,794 6,616 650,410
6. BEEFERMUIN2BERSE 6. PRC nationals residing outside Mainland China
BRI AN L OHERE - T or entities incorporated outside Mainland
W R RV SR Bl A China where the credits are granted for use
in Mainland China 9,618,828 359,654 9,978,482
7. B R FHTF - ERBWRES 7. Other counterparties where the exposures are
FE AR RITIRR P HIEAEE considered to be non-bank Mainland China
exposures 1,000,366 - 1,000,366
37,040,003 2,100,697 39,140,700
AT REARITI B AR Total assets of the Bank and its Mainland
ZMREEE CEERR subsidiary bank after provision 213,334,791
BEABRANNKE On-balance sheet exposures as percentage of
MEEGT AN total assets 17.36%
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5. BERBREZBNDHT@®

(A) REHASM 2B FERAERBHMER

BEFEFRZBRESMIRECEERBREBRRL
RPHEFRAEMDE - —RME * EEROER
HRRERZZHF TR RIEE - BRERER -

TRATFPENER  HETFPER(ERI) &
HIEPER - B3 - RER1 MR EEFHR
AT o

5. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES (Continued)

(c) Analysis of gross advances to customers and overdue
loans by geographical area

Advances to customers by geographical area are classified according
to the location of the counterparties after taking into account the
transfer of risk. In general, risk transfer applies when an advance is
guaranteed by a party located in an area which is different from that of
the counterparty.

The following table analyses gross advances to customers, impaired
advances to customers (Stage 3), overdue advances to customers,
Stage 3, and Stage 1 and Stage 2 impairment allowances by
geographical area.

HEEFER PR R P ER2

(P&Fx3) PEEr3 HE%ER

EFEXMAH Impaired BHEFER WE%HE  Stage1and

Gross  advances to Overdue Stage 3 Stage 2

advances customers  advances to impairment impairment

2019F12H31H At 31 December 2019 to customers (Stage 3) customers allowances allowances
B Hong Kong 113,233,394 933,795 500,123 355,400 548,920
H China 7,940,270 64,274 64,274 11,496 50,993
RF Macau 14,802,077 46,036 177,735 13,308 22,908
Hit Others 972,730 5,121 7,549 993 4,568
136,948,471 1,049,226 749,681 381,197 627,389

HEZPER )

(GER) REER3 R E%ER

REER @ Impaired  BHARFER WEEE  Stage 1and

Gross  advances to Overdue Stage 3 Stage 2

advances customers  advances to impairment impairment

2018124318 At 31 December 2018 to customers (Stage 3) customers allowances allowances
BB Hong Kong 105,025,978 832,748 441,976 332,656 479,963
HE China 7,442,961 75,691 66,817 12,147 46,637
RF Macau 14,459,024 59,521 59,521 17,867 16,860
Hit Others 1,702,316 2,206 12,795 319 7,474
128,630,279 970,166 581,109 362,989 550,934
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5. BERBREZBNDHT@®

(T) EIFR{ERE

BREREHREZRRRNERR  REXS
HFOAMEBMFELINER HHF REEHH
Rk —RME  EXZHFNEEREHETR
BRNZ—HTER  KETEES —BRITHE
1T > MERBRERTRNBER 1 &%R
BRA—BEREEES —BR - L5 REMRA
ZEBEBR - RBBKBEREEEE10%3A
EZRIETIEHEE -

5. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES (Continued)

(d) International claims

The information of international claims discloses exposures to foreign
counterparties on which the ultimate risk lies, and is derived according
to the location of the counterparties after taking into account any
transfer of risk. In general, transfer of risk from one country to another
is recognised if the claims against a counterparty are guaranteed by
another party in a different country or if the claims are on an overseas
branch of a bank whose head office is located in a different country.
Only regions constituting 10% or more of the aggregate international
claims after taking into account any recognised risk transfer are

disclosed.
FRITRARE
Non-bank private sector
kem
FERAT AARE
SREME Non-

ER#E Non-bank financial
2019%12A31R At 31 December 2019 ik Official financial private ERAE
BEER In millions of HK$ Banks sector institutions sector  Total claims
BEEA D Offshore centres 5,309 19,518 10,501 135,768 171,096

—Hf  EB - of which: Hong Kong 4,560 17,167 10,500 119,445 151,672
FRADAR Developing Asia and Pacific 28,110 1,377 877 16,492 46,856
—Hi: b - of which: Mainland China 20,533 1,297 524 13,277 35,631
FERITIARSE
Non-bank private sector

EI

JEIRIT TS

SREE Non-

B Non-bank financial
201812318 At 31 December 2018 AT Official financial private (EfEEsE
BEBT In millions of HK$ Banks sector institutions sector  Total claims
BEEA L Offshore centres 6,179 17,390 8,324 125,961 157,854

—Hp : BB - of which: Hong Kong 4,874 15,327 8,034 109,858 138,093
BEAGAE Developing Asia and Pacific 30,328 1,651 976 14,380 47,335
—Hep:p - of which: Mainland China 24,160 1,575 606 12,165 38,506
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF DAH SING BANK, LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Dah Sing Bank, Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 37 to
232, which comprise:

° the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2019;

° the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include
a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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ERMNER BASIS FOR OPINION

BMERBERESS A ASBHEN(EEEE We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on

B#ETTER T - RIMEZSER T RENEESE Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under

R E[ZEA BT T 4r 6 M B MR BRENR those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities

EIF DR IEE— SR o for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

BMIEGE - BPIFTESHBNREBERERES We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

MARBMNETE R R EER - appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

B Independence

BIEEZESTMASBMAACEESTMERST We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s

BNATEETEI SRR - BB BEEE - I Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have

BERTTFAIFRNEMBEREEEE - fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

BRETEE KEY AUDIT MATTERS

MRETEFESBBERMOEZAE - RAEAR Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,

MG BN BT R AEEMNEIE - s F were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial

HEeEARMEBTBREAAVBEHRERLAZRR statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in

ETRER - BT SHELIERHEBNE the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a

8o whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

BMEEFT R R E T S IEM AT Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

O BERERREFKBE . Impairment of loans and advances to customers

. S AR —BERT([EERTHIEE . Impairment of the investment in an associate, Bank of Chongging
A (“BOCQ”)
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (c

Key Audit Matter

Impairment of loans and advances to customers

Refer to notes 4(a) and 20 to the consolidated
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group recorded
loan impairment allowance of HK$1,008,586
thousand against the total loan portfolio of
HK$136,948,471 thousand, with HK$474,635
thousand, HK$152,754 thousand and
HK$381,197 thousand, as stage 1 and 2 and,
stage 3 impairment allowance respectively.

The balances of impairment allowance for
loans and advances to customers represent
the management’s estimates at the balance
sheet date of Expected Credit Losses (“ECL")
under Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard
9. Its application is considered as a complex
process and requires considerable judgements
and interpretation.

Key judgements and estimates in respect of
the measurement of ECL include:

o Selection of appropriate models
and determination of relevant key
measurement parameters and
assumptions;

o Criteria for determining whether or not
there was a significant increase in credit
risk (“SICR”), or a default or impairment
loss was incurred;

o Selection of economic indicators for
forward-looking measurement, and the
application of economic scenarios and
weightings; and

o The estimated future cash flows for loans
and advances to customers in stage 3.

ontinued)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

We understood and tested key controls in relation
to:

o Oversight and governance, including the Risk
Management and Compliance Committee,
Credit Management Committee, over the
review and approval of the internal credit
risk ratings, the ECL related policies, models
including any changes required, staging,
forward looking information used and
the scenario weightings applied, and the
calculated ECL balance;

* Regular monitoring and validation of
impairment models;

o Assessment of the credit quality, assignment
of internal credit risk ratings, and timely
identification, assessment and reporting
of non-performing loans and advances to
customers;

o Significant management judgments and
assumptions, including SICR, defaulted
or credit-impaired and forward-looking
adjustments;

* The accuracy and completeness of the
key data inputs between underlying source
systems and the impairment models.

In addition to testing the key controls, we have
also performed the following procedures:

o With the assistance of our internal modelling
specialists, we reviewed the major modelling
methodologies for ECL calculation, and
assessed the reasonableness of models
selection, key parameters estimation,
significant judgements and assumptions in
relation to the models.

REIRITAR AR 2019F F 3]

245



B BN RS
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

246

HARETTEE @)
BRETER AENETNNEERRESEE
EFEFRBREE)

ERAEEBREEGMT o BMETTHERE BRI
MERBATEREN & ERERERELTHERRER
TR T A B A% MBA - YRHE TR ER
REME ATk AR o ARTROSEL - EZR T &
HARBBRERHER AR
EFREERRESBY H@% ERNEERZHER
RAEFPERNEEEA T RfE—FHn T EEEY
mEBRENESREE REDERRREZEN D

ENERHE NERERERESTNGE
1 TR EREIS FRA
*még °

o HRERIEEE  RFRMETE
BEHRMERNSEES £
EERNEENDIIER LB
BTEHBEEBHGELD
e 3 —SHELERT S
BEEESMEREENAE
i3

o EMAERRTEREEEERE
HEEEAANEZ AL HREN
REHER  UEREHREES
BEEL R (5 A A R AT

i

o GEBIEREETNES K
78 7 B ARSI IRR AR
EEETENER - URERER
ANERZRE T ER BN
HREHEE « AMNEEE
EEEMAETE « LR TH
ExEFMANARS S RN
FERRRBERIEERAR
BN RRRERE ©

REAMCHIOER RHRRE
BERROELE BR2Y &
AHBNBERZAEN  LHRAM
MITRABATSES -

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Impairment of loans and advances to customers (Continued)

There is also an increase in the data inputs
required by the ECL models. This increases the
risk of completeness and accuracy of the data
used to calculate the ECL.

Loan impairment allowances is an audit focus
due to the materiality of the balances and
the underlying calculations are subject to
significant judgement of management.

o We selected samples and critically
assessed the key assumptions and inputs in
management’s credit reviews and evaluated
the reasonableness of the assigned credit
risk ratings. We further assessed the
appropriateness of the management’s
identification of SICR, defaults and credit-
impaired loans and challenged the criteria
used for staging, in consideration of the
financial information and non-financial
information of the borrowers, relevant
external evidence and other factors.

o For forward-looking adjustments, we
assessed management’s analysis of their
selection of economic indicators, economic
scenarios and weightings employed,;
and reviewed their sensitivity analysis of
probability weightings. We further challenged
and assessed the reasonableness around
weightings of multiple economic scenarios.

o We tested on a sample basis the
reconciliation between ECL models’ data
inputs and source system records to ensure
the accuracy and completeness of the data
used in the ECL models.

o For a sample of stage 3 impaired loans,
we understood the latest developments at
the borrowers and the basis of measuring
the impairment allowance and considered
whether key management judgments
were appropriate given the borrowers’
circumstances. We also re-performed
management’s impairment calculation
and tested key inputs to the impairment
calculation including valuation of collateral
held and estimated future cash flow from
borrowers.

Based on the procedures we performed, we
found the model methodology, key parameters,
significant judgement and assumptions adopted
by management were reasonable and in line with
our industry knowledge and market information.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Impairment of the investment in an associate, Bank of Chongqing (“BOCQ”)

Refer to notes 4(f) and 23 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group’s investment in BOCQ is accounted
for as an associate, using the equity method.
The Group carried the investment in BOCQ of
HK$3,888,775 thousand as at 31 December
2019, after making a provision for impairment
of HK$1,735,000 thousand as at year end.
The impairment loss charged for the year is
HK$287,000 thousand.

Management identified the carrying value of
the investment is higher than the market value
of BOCQ which is considered an indicator of
potential impairment. Management performed
an impairment assessment and has assessed
that the recoverable amount of the investment
in BOCQ was lower than its carrying value. The
recoverable amount was measured as value-in-
use (“VIU”) estimate calculated by discounted
cash flow model (‘DCF”).

We focused on this area due to the materiality
of the balance, the significance of impairment
charge and the highly subjective management
judgements and assumptions involved in
assessing the impairment.

We have performed the following procedures in
relation to the assessment of impairment of the
investment in BOCQ:

. We obtained an understanding of
the impairment assessment and the
processes applied by management with
respect to the determination of the VIU of
the investment in BOCQ;

. We evaluated the appropriateness of the
valuation model used by the management;

. We assessed the reasonableness of key
assumptions and inputs used by the
management, including the discount rate,
profit growth rate and exit value, based
on relevant supporting evidence (with
reference to external market information,
third party sources, including analyst
reports, and publicly available BOCQ
information) and our knowledge of the
business and industry;

. We performed sensitivity analysis on
the VIU estimates to evaluate how
sensitive management’s assessment is
to the change of different inputs of key
assumptions individually and collectively
in different scenarios.

Based on the procedures we performed, we
found that management’s judgement used in
the impairment assessment of the investment in
BOCQ was supported by available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Corporate Information, Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Profile, Report of the Directors, Directors of Subsidiaries and Lists of
Branches (but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon), which we obtained prior to the date
of this auditor’s report, and the Unaudited Supplementary Financial
Information, which is expected to be made available to us after that
date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not and will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified above
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that
we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information,
if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to Audit Committee and take
appropriate action considering our legal rights and obligations.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Cheng Sin Bun, Benson.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 24 March 2020
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DITH MR

LISTS OF BRANCHES

44T Branch

3k Address

E5F Tel

#E Fax

BRBAT

Hong Kong Island Branches

BEBF2T
Aberdeen

SEBERLAMT
Admiralty Centre

SR 21T

Causeway Bay

FER1T
Central
BaLST
Fortress Hill

ELHEDT

Gloucester Road

St 21T
Happy Valley

BIREWD1T

Heng Fa Chuen

HEBESIT
Johnston Road
tBST

North Point
LEESIT
Shaukiwan
AEHEDT
Shek Tong Tsui
ERA1T
Sheung Wan
REHDIT
Taikoo Shing

BB 0B %55 = B — SR SOt
Shop 1, G/F and Portion of the Basement of Site 3,
Aberdeen Centre

ERE18 B E T LS — B 105
Shop No. 10, 1st Floor of the Podium, Admiralty Centre,
No. 18 Harcourt Road

SRS EET R iE 4685 LB Oy N K /E
G/F and Basement, Cameron Commercial Centre,
No. 468 Hennessy Road, Causeway Bay

BEE P 195 IR K 1 TASRE

Shop A, G/F, Worldwide House, 19 Des Voeux Road Central
b A 28 2 76293-2995 JiE = A b T~ 15-2255% 45 J BB
Shop No.15-22, G/F and basement, Empire Apartments,
Nos. 293-299 King’s Road

HTITE10858 AR O TBIR A

Shop B, G/F, Everbright Centre, 108 Gloucester Road
IS B A1 S FA T TASRA

Shop A, G/F, Kam Yuk Mansion, No. 13 Yuk Sau Street,
Happy Valley

SO R ZR 10055k N TE TR A TE#T 218 234-2355% Al

Shop Units 234-235, 2/F, Heng Fa Chuen Paradise Mall,
100 Shing Tai Road, Chai Wan

BT 2EE 16455

164, Johnston Road, Wanchai

2 B433-437 KA E

Chu Kee Building, 433-437 King’s Road
LHEEIBE57-875 AL EH T G854

Shop G8, G/F, Tai On Building, 57-87 Shaukiwan Road

EERBTH443-45357 0 T 15-1657 4
Shop No. 15-16, G/F, 443-453 Queen’s Road West

FIR1EEHE 2885 5 M FE A T B2t HE —EB=E

G/F & 1/F, No. 288 Des Voeux Road Central, Sheung Wan

BB R A B A IS 157 8% & i 5015748

Shop No. G501, On Shing Terrace, No. 28 Taikoo Shing Road &
No. 1-9 Tai Yue Avenue, Taikoo Shing

2554 5463

2529 1338

2891 2201

2521 8134

2922 3389

2507 8866

2572 0708

2558 7485

2572 8849

2561 8241

2568 5271

2857 7473

2851 6281

2884 4802

2554 0843

31102818

2591 6037

2526 9427

2887 7604

2507 8654

2572 0718

2889 2520

2891 3743

2811 4474

2567 5904

2108 4539

2581 2216

2884 3151
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LISTS OF BRANCHES

44T Branch

3k Address

E5F Tel

#E Fax

hEEDTT
Kowloon Branches
REH DT

Shing Yip Street

AW DT
Hunghom

EBDAT

Jordan

BEDT

Kwun Tong

BEST

Lok Fu

EZHWHIT

Mei Foo Sun
Chuen

A DT
Mongkok
RMEDIT
Cheung Sha Wan
EEEES T
Telford Gardens
TED1T
Tokwawan
HERSIT
Tseung Kwan O
5 E R
FEBRODIT
Tseung Kwan O
Metro City Plaza
RYBHT
Tsimshatsui
BEARUWDIT
Wong Tai Sin
SR 2 1T

Yaumatei

BB 1090 TASE

Shop A, G/F, 10 Shing Yip Street, Kwun Tong

ALR A1 285k S FE MM T3 R ASRAH 11£ 257 45 KR 2123570 4

Shop No. 3 and 4 on G/F, Shop No. 2 on 1/F and Shop

No. 3 on 2/F, Cheron Court, 28 Wuhu Street, Hunghom
ISR E 33555

335 Nathan Road, Jordan

Bl R EEASTRE RO T 7-955 4

Shop Nos. 7-9, G/F, Yee On Centre, 45 Hong Ning Road,

Kwun Tong

581985 L= IS — 121101 E11025% 4

Shop Nos. 1101 and 1102, 1/F, Lok Fu Place, 198 Junction Road
FEF B AR A B 10AM TN26E M5 &

Shop No. N26E & F, G/F, 10A Nassau Street, Stage V,

Mei Foo Sun Chuen

it AR BGEBIT IR

697 Nathan Road, Mongkok

R EE88TR R Ot T 1557 &

Shop 1, G/F, CRE Centre, 889 Cheung Sha Wan Road

NREA IR RS — M —IEF5A-F6ASH

Units F5A-FBA, Level 2, Telford Plaza |, Kowloon Bay

1 IE3i8245B K 24757 = S22 80

G/F, Mei King Mansion, Phase I, No. 245B and 247 Tokwawan Road
15 E R E £ #1997 PopCorn &5 T I8 G585 i i

Shop G58, G/F, PopCorn, 9 Tong Chun Street, Tseung Kwan O

5 BMCP Discovery—1£1275% 4

Shop 127, Level 1, MCP Discovery, Tseung Kwan O

LR BUEEE-705R & A E
Golden Crown Court, 66-70 Nathan Road, Tsimshatsui

FEAMEARA L ERHD T G3CHE 4
Shop No. G3C, Ground Floor, Temple Mall South, Wong Tai Sin

SR T SR FE 561 5%
561 Nathan Road, Yaumatei

2191 8103

2365 8110

2385 0161

2389 3911

2337 6300

2370 2660

2394 4261

2361 0951

2927 4130

2365 9035

2752 1223

2927 2101

2366 9121

2326 5165

2782 1339

2191 8723

2363 5917

2782 0993

2389 8239

2337 6922

2370 2006

2391 9104

2958 0985

2755 4967

2363 5696

2752 1098

2702 2305

2311 1491

2350 0894

2385 9285

RIRITAR AT 2019F FH

253



DITAR

LISTS OF BRANCHES

44T Branch

3k Address

E5F Tel

#E Fax

HREDT
New Territories Branches

BF DT
Kwai Fong

BRILESS1T
Ma On Shan Plaza

BEXREDIT
Maritime Square
Bl 51T
Ocean Walk
PHST

Shatin
WIHES T

Sha Tsui Road

EXkaeT
Sheung Shui

RERIT
Tai Po

KE ST
Tai Wai

RKEAT
Tin Shui Wai

E8A1T

Tsuen Wan

B AIT
Tuen Mun

FRDAT
Tung Chung

BEST

Fanling

B EDTT
Yuen Long Castle
Peak Road

35 B RR1785% S N 2554

Shop 2, G/F, Edition 178, 178 Hing Fong Road, Kwai Chung
FSEL TR F86085% 534 L1 535 = 1233557 &

Shop 335 on Level 3, Ma On Shan Plaza, 608 Sai Sha Road,
Ma On Shan

B K S AEE335% 5 7K 108 D-E5 4

Shop 108 D-E, Maritime Square, 33 Tsing King Road, Tsing Yi
P95 22 % 168-2365% /8 84511 K 93-9555 &

Shop 11 and 93-95, Ocean Walk, 168-236 Wu Chui Road, Tuen Mun
D HIFER LM T 95k 4

Shop 9, G/F, Lucky Plaza, Shatin

28y E286-2885% i T

G/F, Nos. 286-288 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan

KT X 55-5955 JKRUE H T BYE4S

Shop B, G/F, Siu Kai House, 55-59 San Fung Avenue, Sheung Shui
RNIBL R 57 A E 51 T535% R 545% &

Units 53-54 on Level 1, Tai Po Plaza, No.1 On Tai Road, Tai Po

> B KB 3E55-5657 15 1B A114-1853 & B E B T 1 X 25R 4

Shops 1 and 2 on Ground Floor, Grandeur Garden,

14-18 Chik Fai Street, 55-56 Tai Wai Road, Shatin

RKBERFEIFRREIEREE 5 1EL1205% 58

Shop No. L120, First Floor, Tin Shing Shopping Centre,
Tin Shing Court, 3 Tin Ching Street, Tin Shui Wai
EEATE14-1655FHAE

Dang Fat Mansion, 14-16 Tai Ho Road, Tsuen Wan
P S & 1852-625% B IE H T 45% K657 4

Shops 4 and 5 on G/F, Man Cheung Mansion,
52-62 Tuen Mun Heung Sze Wui Road

U || 508 B SR A1 S SR SRS B 4 2355 4

Shop 23, G/F, Tung Chung Crescent, 1 Hing Tung Street,
Tung Chung, Lantau Island

148 B T3 88L& E S H TA11-A145.110-11255 47

Shop Nos. A11-A14 and 110-112, Ground Floor, Flora Plaza,
No. 88 Pak Wo Road, Fanling

TLEAE AR ST RAER 162168575 F 12 1 T CHR 4

Shop C, G/F, Len Shing Mansion, 162-168 Castle Peak Road,
Yuen Long

2487 8033

2929 4137

2435 1368

2404 6931

2606 3533

26151510

2671 5030

2667 2588

2691 1272

2448 9008

2492 8102

2441 6218

2109 3484

2677 8830

2479 4555

2489 1253

2633 3432

2435 1582

2404 7130

2601 2413

2615 1099

2672 1533

2664 3637

2606 1531

2448 9112

2415 0984

2441 6613

2109 4353

2669 9950

2479 4522
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DITAHMR (I IRTT)
LISTS OF BRANCHES (BANKING SUBSIDIARIES)

44T Branch

3k Address

E5F Tel

BT

Macau Branches
RERLT

Main Branch
REDT
Almirante Lacerda

HEDIT

lao Hon

BENT
Kin Wa

B DT
Mercadores
EWHT
Nape

BHEi 51T

Palha

AT O217T

Ponte e Horta
DHERT
Ribeira do Patane

ABlla1T
Toi San

B S H 21T

Pedro Coutinho

FE RS ER57255

Avenida da Praia Grande, 572

TRLE B K S B 43-BER

Avenida Almirante Lacerda, No. 43-B

WEN B — 45546 TERE(FE —H) i FACEE

Rua Um Bairro lao Hon No. 45, Industrial Yau Seng (Fase I) R/C AC
BIRGIE B IR245 BRI F 13 H TARE

Estrada Marginal da Areia Preta, No. 24, Edificio Kin Wa,

Bloco 13 R/C A

&3 A FT405R 30 NARE

Rua dos Mercadores No. 40 R/C A

R E 4 B 15315-3635% % FHh Lt FOBE
Alameda Dr. Carlos D’Asumpgao, 315-363,
Edificio Hot Line, R/C O

B2 i 457 TARE

Rua da Palha, No. 4, R/C A

AT O 29554 T FEE

Praga Ponte e Horta, No. 29, R/C F

B =T & 40257 TARE

Rua Visconde de Pago d’Arcos, No. 402, R/C A
BIEEAE+ —EFIR T ERE 518 T CCRE
Rua Onze Barrio Tamagnini Barbosa, S/N,
Jardim Cidade Nova, Bloco 18, R/C CC

=i S 14725-D5k 5 2 i T B
Rua de Pedro Coutinho No. 25D, Queens Court, R/C B

(853) 8791 0000

(853) 2831 6191

(853) 2837 8262

(853) 2845 0759

(853) 2857 2610

(853) 2872 2515

(853) 2837 3762

(853) 2837 8704

(853) 2895 2942

(853) 2823 8483

(853) 2821 6523

KEFEDT
Taipa Branch

RFERD 1T
Prince Flower City

IR BT A T IE9 — BERT R 1B
Rua de Evora, Prince Flower City, Lai San Kok, R/C I, Taipa

(853) 2884 2788

BEREST

Coloane Branch

BREBRAIT
Coloane

FRIRE IS B HD OS5 N DEE
Largo do Matadouro 9, R/C D, Coloane

(853) 2888 2374
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DT MR (HBIRTT)
LISTS OF BRANCHES (BANKING SUBSIDIARIES)

256

44T Branch

3k Address

E5F Tel

BT
Head Office

FINAGEXRT
Shenzhen Qianhai
Sub-Branch

BEMND1T

Guangzhou

EE51T
Shanghai

MESD{T
Nanchang

EIDAT
Zhenjiang

LT
Foshan Sub-Branch

I T 28 AR AR R 8 R R K 50165 R 100K EARE 1518

15/F, Tower A, Kingkey 100 Building, No. 5016 Shennan Road East,

Guiyuan Street, Luohu District, Shenzhen

AT L e B T3k 2 Mg 8250 (JL R )4- 74812123
Shop 123, Building 4-7, Zhuo Yue Wei Gang (North),
Industrial Road 7, Shekou, Nan Shan District, Shenzhen

EREEMT SR ARILEE604-250 KFTERITAIE1 B F2/E01E T
Unit 01, 1/F-2/F, Dah Sing Bank Building, 604-2,

North Renmin Road, Yue Xiu District, Guangzhou, Guangdong
BT O & R K4 50155 _£/8 B R &5 15/E06, 075 T
Room 06 & 07, 15th Floor, Sinar Mas Plaza,

No. 501 Dong Da Ming Road, Hongkou District, Shanghai

LR R ST HRE S LB 136581-2/E

1/F-2/F, 136 Dieshan Road, East Lake District, Nanchang, Jiangxi
TLERA LT R O = fR R 595K

59 Jiefang Road, Jing Kou District, Zhenjiang, Jiangsu

FE R A B 1L T g A 8 E BR 85 /B B SR B A

111145 ~ 12048

Shop 111, Shop 120, No. 1 Bauhinia Building,

Starcrest, 8 Jinyuan Road, Guicheng,

Nanhai District, Foshan, Guangdong

(86-755) 2519 9033

(86-755) 2238 5500

(86-20) 8116 0888

(86-21) 5598 7000

(86-791) 8688 7333

(86-511) 8530 9999

(86-757) 8513 3555
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